City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting
AGENDA

Monday, August 11, 2014
1:30 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages
1. Call to Order
This meeting is open to the public and all representations to Council form part of the
public record. A live audio feed is being broadcast and recorded by CastaNet and a
delayed broadcast is shown on Shaw Cable.
2.  Confirmation of Minutes 4-16
Regular PM Meeting - July 28, 2014
3. Public in Attendance
3.1 Linda Digby, Executive Director, Kelowna Museums Society, re: Annual Report 17 - 66
To provide Council with an annual report.
4. Development Application Reports & Related Bylaws
4.1 Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP14-0010 & 67 - 79
Rezoning Application No. Z14-0020 - 1225 Lund Road, Melcor Lakeside Inc.
To amend the Official Community Plan and Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 to allow for
a 5 unit townhouse development on the subject property.
4.1.1 Fny(!aw No. 10992 (OCP14-0010) - 1225 Lund Road, Melcor Lakeside 80 - 80
Requires a majority of all Members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 10992 first reading.
4.1.2 Bylaw No. 10993 (Z14-0020) - 1225 Lund Road, Melcor Lakeside Inc. 81-81
To give Bylaw No. 10993 first reading.
4.2 Rezoning Application No. Z14-0026 - 1280 Glenmore Drive, 561655 BC Ltd. 82 - 102



4.3

4.4

4.5

To rezone the subject parcel to allow a fee-simple five unit townhouse/row-
house style development.

4.2.1 Bylaw No. 10994 (Z14-0026) - 1280 Glenmore Drive, 561655 BC Ltd.

To give Bylaw No. 10994 first reading.

Text Amendment Application No. TA14-0009 - Boat Storage Definition

To consider a Text Amendment application to amend the definition of 'Boat
Storage' in Section 2 of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000.

4.3.1 Bylaw No. 10995 (TA14-0009) - Amendment to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000
- Boat Storage Definition

To give Bylaw No. 10995 first reading.

Bylaw No. 10947 (OCP14-0004) - Amendment to OCP 2030 Bylaw No. 10500,
City of Kelowna

Requires a majority of all Members of Council (5).

To adopt Bylaw No. 10947 in order to amend the Official Community Plan by
amending Map 4.1 - Generalized Future Land Use to change the designation of
the area bound by Ethel Street to the west, Bordon Avenue to the south,
Bowes Street to the east, and the rear land north of Laurier Avenue from the
S2RES - Single/Two Unit Residential designation to the MRL - Multiple Unit
Residential (Low Density) designation.

4.4.1 Bylaw No. 10955 (Z13-0041) - 979 & 989 Laurier Avenue, AJ Weins
Development Group Ltd.

To adopt Bylaw No. 10955 in order to rezone the subject properties
from the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing zone to the RM2 - Low Density
Housing zone.

4.4.2 Development Permit Application No. DP13-0182 - 979 & 989 Laurier
Avenue, AJ Weins Development Group Ltd.

To consider a Development Permit for two 3 unit row housing
projects.

Bylaw No. 10976 (OCP13-0017) - 901-911 Stremel Road, Tamdan Ventures Ltd.

Requires a majority of all Members of Council (5).

To adopt Bylaw No. 10976 in order to change the future land use designation
of portions of the subject property from the Commercial and Industrial
designations to the Service Commercial designation.

45.1 Bylaw No. 10977 (Z13-0040) - 901-911 Stremel Road,
Tamdan Ventures Ltd.

To adopt Bylaw No. 10977 in order to rezone portions of the subject

103 - 103

104 - 108

109 - 109

110 - 110

111 - 111

112 - 132

133-134

135 - 136



property from the C9 - Tourist Commercial and 12 - General Industrial
zones to the C-10 Service Commercial zone.

4.5.2 Development Permit Application No. DP13-0181 - 911 Stremel Road,
Tandam Ventures Ltd.

To consider the form and character of a new car dealership.

4.6 Area Structure Plan Application No. ASP10-0001 and Official Community Plan
Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP13-0019, Supplementary Report

To endorse the North Clifton Area Structure Plan and to provide a resolution
for Council to give direction to staff regarding a number of issues raised at the
Public Hearing for the OCP amendments resulting from the Area Structure
Plan.

Non-Development Reports & Related Bylaws

5.1 Suncor Energy Services Airport Use Agreement

To obtain Council's consent and approval to enter into an Air Carrier Airport
Use Agreement with Suncor Energy Services Inc.

Bylaws for Adoption (Non-Development Related)

6.1 Bylaw No. 10873 - A Bylaw to Rescind Ownership Housing Agreement Bylaw
Nos. 9525, 9694, 9713, 9737, 9834, 9884, 10182, 10183 & 10601

To adopt Bylaw No. 10873 in order to rescind various Owrnship Housing
Agreements.

Mayor and Councillor Items

Termination

137 - 164

165 - 166

167 - 189

190 - 191



Date:
Location:

Council Members
Present:

Staff Present:

City of Kelowna ..
Regular Council Meetmg
Mmutes_.; o

Monday, July 28, 2014
Council Chamber
City Hall, 1435 Wat‘er‘Street

Mayor Walter. Gray and CounCIllors Colm Basran, Andre Blanleil,
Maxine DeHart ‘Gail Given, Rabert Hobson, Mohini Singh, Luke
Stack and Gerry Zlmmermann '

_«Deputy City Manager Paut Macklem Clty Clerk, Stephen Fleming;

" “).Manager Urban Plannmg, Ryan Smith*; Manager, Subdivision,
s Agrlculture & Envrr ment Services, Todd Cashin®; Manager,
Development Engmeering, Steve Muenz*;  Manager, Park &
'Bmldlng Planmng, Terry Barton*; Manager, Long Range Policy
L Planmng, James Moore ; Commumty Engagement Consultant, Kari
e’ Rourke®;. Manager,‘_Utlllty Planning, Andrew Reeder*; Director,
"‘S‘Ubdivisidn ‘Agriculture & Environment, Shelley Gambacort*;

Planner Il, Melanie Steppuhn*; Manager, Cultural Services, Sandra
Kochan* Manager, Community & Neighbourhood Programs, Louise
Roberts* Planner Specialist, Pat McCormick*; and Council

Recordmg Secretary, Tania Tishenko

(*denotes partial attendahce)*‘ :

1. Call to Order

Mayor Gray called the meeting to order at 1:34 pm.

Mayor Gray advised that the meeting is open to the public and all representations to Council
form part of the public record. A live audio feed is being broadcast and recorded by CastaNet

and a delayed broadcast is shown on Shaw Cable.



2. Confirmation of Minutes

Moved By Councillor Zimmermann/Seconded By Councillor Stack

R530/14/07/28 THAT the Minutes of the Regular PM Meeting of July 14, 2014 be
confirmed as circulated.

Carried

3. Public in Attendance

3.1. Gold Quill Award of Excellence, IABC-«I‘"‘e:V City of Kelowna - My Downtown:
Bernard Avenue Revitalization Community Engagement
Staff: : ;
- Presented Council with the Gold Quill Award of Excellence from the Internatlonal
Association of Business Communicators. N

4. Development Application Reports & Related Byiaws

4.1. Rezoning Appllcatlon No 214-0013 290 & 310 Lochview Road, Randall &
Stacie M051ck1 and Rodney & Deborah Syryda ‘

Staff: e & W e N
- Displayed a PowerPomt presentatlon and responded to quest1ons from Council.

Mayor Gray 1nv1ted the AppliCant or Apphcants Representatwe to come forward.

Randy:s Mosrckr Apphcant :

- Explamed the layout of the land and the amount of developable lots available.
- Confirmed that the area is fire truck accessible with some challenges.

- Spoke of upgrades and addltlonal prlvate accesses.

Moved By Councillo-r ‘Sta‘ck/ Se’Conded By Councillor Zimmermann

R531/14/07/28 THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0013 to amend the City of
Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by changing the zoning classification of Lot 3 Section
7&8 Township 23 ODYD Plan 41162, located at 310 Lochview Rd and Lot 4 Sections 7&8
Township 23 ODYD Plan 41162, located at 290 Lochview Rd from the A1 - Agricultural 1
to the RR1 - Rural Residential 1 zone NOT be considered by Council.

Carried



4.2. Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A14-0006 - 342 Valley
Road, Adolph & Janet Hait and Clarence Rode

Staff:
- Displayed a PowerPoint presentation and responded to questions from Council.

Mayor Gray invited the Applicant, or Applicant's Representative, to come forward.

Adolph Hait, Applicant
- Confirmed that he has been living on the property since. 1961 and not 1971 as specified

- Needs room to maneuver RV in and out of shed.
- Subdivision would be over septic field.

Moved By Councillor Zimmermann/Seconde’d By Counci‘l\l‘or\'Hobson

R532/14/07/28 THAT Agricultural Land Reserve appeal A14 0006 for Lot 19, Block 5,
Section 4, TWP 23, ODYD Plan 896 Except Plans 22059 and H8323 located at 342 Valley
Road North for a subdivision:of agrlcultural land in the Agricultural 'Land Reserve,
pursuant to Section 21(2) of the Agrlcultural Land Comm:ss:on Act, Alternative Layout
as per ‘Map B’ be supported by Mummpal CounCIl

AND THAT the Mumcxpal Counc1l dlrects staff to forward the subject application to the
Agricultural Land Commxss;on for conSIderation o

Carried
43 Rezoninig Application No. Z14:0017.- 815 Juniper Road, Brad Ferrell

Staff : - G
- Dlsplayed a PowerPomt presentatlon and responded to questions from Council.

Moved By Councﬂ-lor-Hobson/Seconded By Councillor Given

R533/14/07/28 THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0017 to amend the City of
Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by changing the zoning classification of portions of Lot
7, Section 23, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 16489, located on 815 Juniper Road, from the
RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing zone as shown on Map
“A” attached to the report of Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Department,
dated July 7, 2014, be considered by Council;

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further
consideration;



AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
issuance of a Preliminary Layout Review Letter by the Approving Officer;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their
satisfaction.

Carried
4.3.1. Bylaw No. 10989 (Z14-0017) - 815 Jumper Road, Brad Ferrell
Moved By Councillor Stack/Seconded By Councillor DeHart b
R534/14/07/28 THAT Bylaw No. 109§9-"'B;;~:fé5d a flrsttlme ]
fany i Carried

4.4, Rezoning Appllcatlon No Z14 0018 - 1781 Caplstrano Drwe Mahesh Raj
Tripathi N S

Staff: o . ~
- Displayed a PowerPomt presentatlon amd responded to questions from Council.

Moved By Counc1llor Basran/ Seconded By Councﬂlor Hobson ;

R535/14/07/28 THAT Rezomng Apphcatlon No. Z14-0018 to amend the City of
Kelowna Zomng Bylaw No 8000 on Lot 28, Section 15, Township 23, ODYD, Plan
"-.KAP83551 located on 1781 Cap1strano Drive, Kelowna, BC from the CD6 -
Comprehenswe ReSIdentlal Golf Resort to RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone be considered

by Counc1l

AND THAT the Zone Amendmg Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further
consideration..

Carried

4.4.1. Bylaw No. 10987 (Z14-0018) - 1781 Capistrano Drive, Mehesh Raj
Tripathi

Moved By Councillor DeHart/Seconded By Councillor Stack

R536/14/07/28 THAT Bylaw No. 10987 be read a first time.
Carried



Staff:

4.5. Rezoning Application No. Z14-0024 - 505 Doyle Avenue, Interior Health
Authority

- Displayed a PowerPoint presentation and responded to questions from Council.

Moved By Councillor Stack/Seconded By Councillor Singh

Planning Department

R537/14/07/28 THAT Rezoning Application No« Z14 0024 to amend the City of
Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by changing thezoning classification of a portion of
Lot A, District Lot 139, ODYD Plan EPP25652,, k‘[oc,ated at 505 Doyle Avenue, Kelowna,
BC from the C4 - Urban Centre Comm,_eré‘ia..l”zorie\_”lio-,the C7 - Central Business
Commercial zone, as shown on Map “A”.attached to the' Réport of the Urban Planning
Department dated July 11, 2014, be consldered by Council; "

AND THAT the Zone Amendmg Bylaw be forwarded to a Publ1c Hearlng for further
consideration; & b G D

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amendmg Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
requirements of the Development Engmeermg Branch as attached to the Report of
the Urban Planmng Department dated July 15 2@14 being completed to its
satlsfactlon & VN \ W O a

AND THAT ﬁnal adoptlon of the Zone Amendmg Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
requirements of the Mlmystry of Transportatlon as attached to the Report of the Urban
" d July 15 2014 bemg completed to its satisfaction;

)"AND. THAT the br‘opérty owngr?fbe requrred to register a Section 219 No-Build Covenant

on the title to the subjéct prb‘perty;

AND FURTHER THAT the Section 219 No-Build Covenant be discharged upon approval of
a Development Permlt appllcatlon for the subject property;

Carried

4.5.1. Bylaw No. 10991 (Z14-0024) - 505 Doyle Avenue, Interior Health
Authority

Moved By Councillor Zimmermann/Seconded By Councillor DeHart




R538/14/07/28 THAT Bylaw No. 10991 be read a first time.

Carried

4.6. Rezoning Application No. Z10-0044, Extension Request - 120 Homer Road,
Nathan Morden

Staff:
- Gave an overview of the application and responded to questions from Council.

Moved By Councillor Given/Seconded By Councillor Stat:k

R539/14/07/28 THAT in accordance with. Development Appllcatlon Procedures Bylaw
No. 10540, the deadline for the adoptlon of Amending Bylaw No. 10403 (Z10-0044) to
amend the City of Kelowna Zonmg Bylaw No. 8000 by »changing the zoning
classification of Lot 13 Section 27 Township 26 ODYD Plan 14897, except Plan 39705,
located at 120 Homer Road, Kelowna BC, be:extendéd to August 12th:2014.

Carried

5. Bylaws for Adoptlon (Development Related)

5.1, BylawNo. 10914 (OCP13- 0020) 1‘055’ Frost Road ‘No. 21 Great Projects
Ltd. & Clty of Kelowna

Moved By Counclllor Stack/ Seconded Bv Councﬂlor Given

R540/ 1 4/07/28 THAT Bylaw No. 10914 be adopted

Carried

5., Bylaw No. 10915 (Z13 0043) - 1055 Frost Road, No. 21 Great Projects Ltd. &
City of Kelowna

Moved By Councillor Giveh/‘Seconded By Councillor Stack

R541/14/07/28 THAT Bylaw No. 10915 be adopted.

Carried



5.3. Bylaw No. 10972 (Z14-0014) - 890 Mayfair Road, Henry & Ingrid Jenzen

Moved By Councillor Given/Seconded By Councillor Stack

R542/14/07/28 THAT Bylaw No. 10972 be adopted.

Carried

6. Non-Development Reports & Related Bylaws
6.1. Quarterly Report Update

Deputy City Manager, Paul Macklem @ L
- Displayed a PowerPoint presentation and responded to questions from Council.

Moved By Councillor DeHart/Seconded By Councillor Zimmermann

R543/14/07/28 THAT Council receives, for mformatlon the Quarterly Report from
the Deputy City Manager, dated July 23 2014,

Carried
6.2. Revitdtlization Tax Exemption Agreement - 552-554 Leon Avenue

Staff: : . e
- Dlsplayed a PowerPomt preSentann and responded to questions from Council.

Moved By Counc1[lor DeHart/ SeCOnded By Counc1llor Given

R544/ 1 4/07/28 THAT Counc1l approves the City of Kelowna entering into
Rev1tal1zatlon Tax Exempmon Agreement with 0871089 B.C. LTD., INC.NO. BC0871089
for Lot A District Lot 139 ’dDYD Plan 34415, located on 552-554 Leon Avenue, Kelowna
BC, in the form. attached to the report from Land Use Management dated July 28",

2014,

AND FURTHER THAT the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the
Revitalization Tax Exemption Agreement.

Carried

10



6.3. Revitalization Tax Exemption Agreement - 1155 Brookside Avenue

Staff:
- Displayed a PowerPoint presentation and responded to questions from Council.

Moved By Councillor Blanleil/Seconded By Councillor Hobson

R545/14/07/28 THAT Council approves the City of Kelowna entering into
Revitalization Tax Exemption Agreement with Evergreen Lands Limited, Inc. No.
BC0382754 for Lot A Section 19 Township 26 ODYD Plan EPP31674, located at 1155
Brookside Avenue Kelowna BC, in the form attached to the report from Land Use

Management dated July 28", 2014;

AND FURTHER THAT the Mayor and. C1'cy Clerk be authorrzed to execute the
Revitalization Tax Exemption Agreement S,

Carried
6.4. Fascieux Creek Restoration Improvements.

Staff: G '
- Displayed a PowerPoint presentatlon and responded to questlons from Council.

Moved By Councrllor Smgh/ Seconded By Councﬂlor Stack

R546/14/07/28 THAT COUHCIl recelves for information, the report from the Utilities
l,,Planmng Manager dated July 28th 2014 w1th respect to Fascieux Creek Restoration;

AND THAT the followmg fees be wawed for the Green Parent Committee for the
purposes of restoring a portlon of Fascreux Creek:

1. D_evelopment permit application fee
2. 60 cubic metres of Ogo compost
3. Landfill tipping fees for up to 1,650 cubic metres of material

Carried

6.5. SEKID Boundary Inclusion for 4050 Casorso Road

Staff:
- Displayed a PowerPoint presentation and responded to questions from Council.

Moved By Councillor Hobson/Seconded By Councillor Zimmermann




R547/14/07/28 THAT Council approves the request by the South East Kelowna
Irrigation District (SEKID) to amend its water service area boundaries to include 4050
Casorso Road as outlined in the Report of the Utility Services Manager dated July 21,

2014.

Carried

6.6. Rescind Ownership Housing Agreements

Staff: v
- Displayed a PowerPoint presentation and responded to questlons from Council.

Moved By Councillor Given/Seconded By CovuncﬂLOr Basran

R548/14/07/28 THAT Council, recéives for information, the' report from the Policy
and Planning Department, dated July 28, 2014 with respect to rescmdlng all existing
ownership Housing Agreements Authorlzat1on Bylaws,

AND FURTHER THAT Bylaw No 10873 “being a Bylaw to Rescind Housing Agreement
Authorization Bylaw Nos. 9525, 9694 9713 19737, 9834, 9884, 10182, 10183 and 10601,
be forwarded for readmg con51derat10n AND FURTHER THAT Council directs staff to
proceed with the dlscharge of the housmg agreements from the title of the properties
identified in Bylaws 9525, 9694 9713, 9737 9834, 9884, 10182, 01083 and 10601.

Carried

6.6.1. B’Yléw No.’;”1‘0873 A B.yla:‘wt"to Rescind Ownership Housing Agreement
ByIaW NOS 9525 9694 9713, 9737, 9834, 9884, 10182, 10183 &
10601 '

Moved By Coun&‘ill’er ~Singh/ SeﬁfC‘thed By Councillor Hobson

R549/ 14/07/2.8"~11TﬁfAfT’Bylaw No. 10873 be read a first, second and third time.

Carried

6.7. Amendment of Sister Cities Policy

Staff:
- Gave an overview of the Sister Cities Policy and revisions to Policy 355 and responded to

questions from Council.



10

Moved By Councillor Given/Seconded By Councillor Stack

R550/14/07/28 THAT Council receives for information the report dated July 28,
2014 from the Cultural Services Manager and the Grants and Partnerships Manager
recommending revisions to Council Policy 355 pertaining to Sister City relationships;

AND THAT Council Policy No. 355, being Sister City Funding, be revised as outlined in
the report from the Cultural Services Manager and the Grants and Partnerships
Manager dated July 28, 2014;

AND FURTHER THAT the Cultural Services Manager is authorized to execute Sponsor
Agreements with the Kelowna Kasugai Sistér City: Association and the Kelowna

Veendam Sister City Association pursuant to revised Policy. 355.

Carried

6.8. Service Collaboration Agreement»With Alllied Health

Staff: G S
- Displayed a PowerPoint presentation and responded to questlons from Council.

Moved By Counc1llor Hobson/ Seconded By Councill@r Zlmmermann

R551/14/07/28 THAT Counc1l recewes for inf'or'mation the report from the
Community & Ne1ghbourhood Serv1ces Manager dated July 23, 2014, regarding the
expanded serv1ce collaboratlon between the Clty of Kelowna and Allied Health.

Carried
69Ben Lee Parku,Planrdund. Improvement Project

Staff: | :
- Displayed a PowerPomt presentatlon and responded to questions from Council.

Moved By Councillor StaCk/Seconded By Councillor Singh

R552/14/07/28 THAT Council receives, for information the Report from the Parks
and Building Planning Manager dated July 21, 2014, with respect to the 2014 Enabling
Accessibility Fund for improvements to the Ben Lee playground;

AND THAT Council supports the City submitting an application to the Employment and
Social Development Canada (ESDC) for the Enabling Accessibility in Communities Grant



11

as outlined in the Report from the Parks and Building Planning Manager dated July 21,
2014;

AND THAT Council approves $50,000 in funding from the Parks Purchasing &
Development Reserve for the Ben Lee Park - Playground Improvement Project, pending

the award of the Enabling Accessibility in Communities Grant to the City;

AND FURTHER THAT the 2014 Financial Plan be amended in order to provide this
funding.

Carried
6.10. Ellis Street Corridor Plan

Staff: P
- Displayed a PowerPoint presentation and responded to questlons from Council.

Moved By Councillor DeHart/ Seconded By Counctllor Zrmmermann

R553/14/07/28 THAT Councﬂ recewes, for mformauon the Report of the Planner
Specialist, Urban Des1gn dated" July 235 2014 w1th respect to the Ellis Street Corridor
Plan; R N . e :

AND THAT Counc1l endorfse_\ the Ellis ‘_reet Corridor Plan as a template for road
alignments and" as, the basis for coordmatlon of streetscape elements within the
Subject.Area as ldentlﬁed in the report of the Planner Specialist, Urban Design dated

July 28, 2014,

Carried

7. Bylaws for Adoptlon (Non Development Related)
71, Bylaw No 10936 Road Closure Bylaw, Portion of 1908 Henkel Road

Mayor Gray invited anyone in the publlc gallery who deems themselves affected by the
proposed road closure to come forward. No one came forward.

Moved By Councillor Singh/Seconded By Councillor Hobson

R554/14/07/28 THAT Bylaw No. 10936 be adopted.

Carried



12

7.2. Bylaw No. 10982 - Amendment No. 1 to City of Kelowna Election Sign Bylaw
No. 10411

Moved By Councillor Singh/Seconded By Councillor Hobson

R555/14/07/28 THAT Bylaw No. 10982 be adopted.

Carried

7.3. Bylaw No. 10983 - Amendment No. 1 to Hentage Building Tax Exemption
Bylaw No. 10966 g

Moved By Councillor Blanleil/Seconded By Councjl"[orBasran?.\: B

R556/14/07/28 THAT Bylaw No. 10983 be adopted.

Carried

7.4. Bylaw No. 10988 - A Bylaw to Rescmd Ownershlp Housing Agreement
Authorization Bylaw Nc) 10163 i

Moved By Councﬂlor Basran/Seconded By Councu{or Blanleﬂ W

R557/1 4/07/28 THAT Bylaw No. 10988 be adopted

Carried

8. "‘MaYOr and Counciil;lorxltéfhs"

Councillor DeHart \ -
- Spoke to her: attendance as Deputy Mayor at the Lieutenant Governors Foundation

Okanagan Ball, Old Navy Rlbbon Cutting and Dockside Marine grand opening.

Mayor Gray: S
- Reminded the commumty of the Snowbirds Show on Wednesday July 30™ at 5pm.

15



13

9. Termination

This meeting was declared terminated at 4:50 p.m.

W W

/ City Clérk

Mayor
/tt

16




Kelowna an%
Museums

Alive With Our History



-\__‘—|1.-_

'.._,'-.-"-':'"

gy
e B P n

—

=
R R

——

o P




i
]




/ ouch and Fe*'ﬁﬂ |
’ R _

8.
N\ N

o

o -
N
&l

e'd
404 /
““ )

iy
_—
=1

‘B  Kelowna
- @Museums

s, Okanagan Heritage Museum



____' s ot et

Vd,
a0g /
¢ s

¢

. 2
F Q-3 Kelowna g
' R Museums A8

- Okanagan Military Museum




l“//

Kelowna
Museums A%

BC Orchard Industry Museum




Kelowna
M&seums

BC Wine Museum & VQA Shop




a
Kelowna
Museums

Central Okanagan Sports
Hall of Fame Museum

¢



Kelowna Public Archives
Vince Bezeau Military Library &Archives

y !

t 4 o il
rezean Militam £

B
l

il iy ?



Ursula Surtees Conservation Lab



VOQA Wine Shop




The Laurel Packinghouse




Mission

The Kelowna Museums Society provides the public

with educational exhibitions and programs that

foster personal participation, stimulate curiosity, and engage
the senses with the cultures, histories, and possibilities

of the Okanagan Region.

Vision
To be Okanagan’s leader in
making the connection between people and placg,



Kelowna Museums Society 2013
Revenues - $1,187,564

Ot
10%

Self Generated
30%

M City of Kelowna

Other Grants
M Self Generated
H Other
City of Kelowna
54% u
[ ]

Other Grants
15%

30



Kelowna Museums Society 2013

Contributions- $1,237,564

Self Generated m City of Kelowna
29% Other Grants
M Self Generated
City of Kelowna W Other
51% m Volunteer and Inkind
[

Other Grants
15%

31



X 3000



33









36



Kelowna Museums Visitation 2013
total: 44,750

= Walk-in Guests

= School Children

® Public Programs

Also:
22,000 Event Attendees
at the Laurel

?? VQA shoppers
??Sports Hall of Fame

37



= $868,407




“Thank you for being so kid friendly, so
they can learn and enjoy the local
history!” — Zyanya (Kelowna)

“The Ripple Effect helps create some inspiration.”
— Paul (Kelowna)

“We are very impressed to see Okanagan Heritage
materials! Thank you for giving us a great
opportunity!” — Nagisa (Yokohama, Japan)

39



40












44



AR

-
-
yIvA MEXICe !

7 \












| %_._.““__.__M_.,_,,_..A

,,w._” 1
| B :.2.:“:.







Paul Dutfield







RRR!



Relationships

Relevance

REVQHUQS

54



95



?rm:.ﬁ L

__:: HHHHHHY
- —--.
\ s\\ #& ununn ——-—-—w t

LHHH
._::

_.i—







Some new partnerships....

with Kelowna Intercultural Society and
Inspired Word Café....coming this fall!

with UBCO Faculty of Creative & Critical
Studies....coming next spring!

with Okanagan Historical Society...coming
this fall!

58


















64



65




Kel
" MuSeams,

Alive With Our History

66



REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: July 11, 2014 KEIOwna.

RIM No. 1250-30

To: City Manager
From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LG)
Application: OCP14-0010 & Z14-0020 Owner: Melcor Lakeside Inc.

. . . Andrew Bruce (Melcor
Address: 1225 Lund Road Applicant: Developments Ltd.)
Title: Rezoning & Official Community Plan Amendment Applications

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES - Single / Two Unit Residential
Proposed OCP Designation:  MRL - Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density)

Existing Zone: RU1 - Large Lot Housing

Proposed Zone: RM3 - Low Density Multiple Housing

1.0 Recommendation

THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP14-0010 to amend Map 4.1 of the
Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by changing the Future Land Use
designation of Lot 47, Section 18, Township 27, ODYD, Plan KAP82430, located at 1225 Lund
Road, Kelowna, BC from the S2RES - Single / Two Unit Residential designation to the MRL -

Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) designation be considered by Council;

AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0020 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No.
8000 by changing the zoning classification of Lot 47, Section 18, Township 27, ODYD, Plan
KAP82430, located at 1225 Lund Road, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the

RM3 - Low Density Multiple Housing zone be considered by Council;

AND THAT the Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw and the Zone Amending Bylaw be

forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch, as attached to the Report of the Urban
Planning Department dated May 9, 2014, being completed to their satisfaction;

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered in conjunction
with Council’s consideration of a Development Permit for the subject property.

67



714-0020 & OCP14-0010 - Page 2

2.0 Purpose

To amend the Official Community Plan and Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 to allow for a 5 unit
townhouse development on the subject property.

3.0 Urban Planning

Urban Planning is supportive of the proposed rezoning and associated Official Community Plan
(OCP) amendment for the subject parcel.

The site is located on the periphery of a large area designated for single and two unit residential.
Multiple Unit Residential, Public Service Utilities and Major Park and Open Space designations
also surround the site, primarily to the north. By redesignating the subject parcel to a higher
density residential designation, it will serve as a natural transition from single family residential
to other surrounding areas and more density in close proximity to neighbourhood parks is
encouraged.

4.0 Proposal
4.1 Background

The developer’s original intention was to build two single unit dwellings on this site. Upon further
research, and based on the site’s proximity to parks and Black Mountain Elementary School, it
was determined that the best use of this site was a medium density residential development that
is attractive to families. All units have three bedrooms, walk-out basements and two car garages.

4.2 Project Description

Rezoning

The applicant is proposing to rezone the entire subject parcel from RU1 - Large Lot Housing to
RM3 - Low Density Multiple Housing. The intent of the RM3 zone is to allow for low density
multiple unit housing with more than four units, on urban services.

OCP Redesignation

In order to proceed with a rezoning application, the applicant must also apply for a future land
use redesignation in the OCP. While the current designation on the subject parcel is S2RES -
Single / Two Unit Residential, the appropriate designation for potential RM3 zoning is MRL -
Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density). The intent of MRL is to permit townhouses and other
small scale multiple housing developments.

Townhouses

The proposed development affiliated with this application is a five unit townhouse development
with an extensive landscaping plan. The development permit application will be brought forward
to Council should the bylaws associated with this subject application receive 3™ reading and the
applicant fulfils their outstanding technical conditions.

4.3 Site Context

The subject property is located at the northeast corner of Lund Road and Black Mountain Drive.
Neighbouring the site is a Black Mountain Irrigation District (BMID) pump station and
undeveloped, open space to the north, a neighbourhood park to the south, and single family
residential development to the east and west.

68



714-0020 & OCP14-0010 - Page 3

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows:

Orientation Zoning Land Use
S . . PSU - Public Service Utilities, MRL -
North mdsliJ:th],gs_’ sgAris aL,?(\jNg e;:gty:é:ltlple Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density),
s P P PARK - Major Park and Open Space
East RR1 - Rural Residential 1, RR3 - Rural S2RES - Single / Two Unit Residential
Residential 3
South P3 - Parks and Open Space PARK - Major Park and Open Space
West A1 - Agriculture 1 S2RES - Single / Two Unit Residential

Subject Property Map: 1225 Lund Road

69



714-0020 & OCP14-0010 - Page 4

CRITERIA | RM3 ZONE REQUIREMENTS | PROPOSAL
Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations

Min. Lot Area 900m* 2898m*

Min. Lot Width 30.0m 50.0m

Min. Lot Depth 30.0m 70.0m

Development Regulations

Max. Floor Area Ratio 0.75 0.39
Max. Height 10.00m 9.96m

Min. Front Yard 1.50m 1.52m
Side Yard (south) 4.00m 1.52m
Side Yard (north) 4.00m 4.00m
Rear Yard 7.50m 12.01m

Other Regulations
Minimum Parking Requirements 10 12 (2/unit + 2 visitor)

Private Open Space 125m* 165m’
Okanagan Lake Sightlines 120° N/A

5.0 Current Development Policies
5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)

Development Process

Complete Suburbs.’ Support a mix of uses within Kelowna’s suburbs (see Map 5.1 - Urban Core
Area), in accordance with “Smart Growth” principles to ensure complete communities. Uses that
should be present in all areas of the City (consistent with Map 4.1 - Future Land Use Map), at
appropriate locations, include: commercial, institutional, and all types of residential uses
(including affordable and special needs housing) at densities appropriate to their context.
Building heights in excess of four storeys will not be supported within the suburban areas, unless
provided for by zoning existing prior to adoption of OCP Bylaw 10500.

Compact Urban Form.? Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1.

Healthy Communities.® Through current zoning regulations and development processes, foster
healthy, inclusive communities and a diverse mix of housing forms, consistent with the
appearance of the surrounding neighbourhood.

Embracing Diversity.* Increase understanding of various forms of housing needs and styles
toward increasing acceptance of housing meeting the needs of diverse populations by
encouraging applicants to undertake early and on-going consultation relating to their project,
including provision of support material where appropriate.

' City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter).
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter).
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.7 (Development Process Chapter).
“ City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.8 (Development Process Chapter).

70



714-0020 & OCP14-0010 - Page 5

Housing Mix.’> Support a greater mix of housing unit size, form and tenure in new multi-unit
residential and mixed use developments.

Family Housing.® Support housing alternatives for families when single detached housing is too
costly, including features that are important to families such as: outdoor space, direct access to
grade, workshop space, larger units, safe design, and neighborhood characteristics (e.g.: location
and amenities).

6.0
6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Technical Comments
Building & Permitting Department

Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any
Building Permit(s)

A Geotechnical report is required to address the sub soil conditions and site drainage.

Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit
applications.

Development Engineering Department

See attached memorandum dated June 4, 2014.
Fire Department

Ensure fire department access is appropriate as per the BCBC 2012 Division B part 3.2.5.6.
Fire flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of Kelowna Subdivision
Bylaw #7900. The Subdivision Bylaw requires a minimum of 150L/sec for row housing.
Should this subdivision require hydrants to be installed on the property, the hydrants
installed shall be deemed private hydrants. All applicable sections of the Fire and Life
Safety Bylaw #10760 shall be met. The community shall be addressed off of Lund Rd as
one address, with unit numbers assigned for each townhouse unit.

Infrastructure Planning

This site is adjacent to parkland. No construction activities on this site shall disturb the
adjacent parkland.

Irrigation District (BMID)

The existing lot was created at the same time as the balance of The Meadowlands (Phase
3). There are actually two existing water services to this lot.

Ministry of Transportation
See attached email dated July 16, 2014.

Shaw Cable

Owner / developer to install an underground conduit system per Shaw Cable drawings and
specifications.

3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.

(Development Process Chapter).

11
é City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.13 (Development Process Chapter).

71



714-0020 & OCP14-0010 - Page 6

7.0  Application Chronology
Date of Application Received: May 8, 2014

Report prepared by:

Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor

Approved for Inclusion: Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager

Attachments:

Location Map

Site Plan

Conceptual Renderings

Landscape Plan

Development Engineering Memorandum

72



Map Output Page 1 of 1

OCP14-0010

Z214-0020

DP14-0085

Subject Property

PLAN 59358

» RR1

88

90

N8 PLAN 59358 1

86

N f 92

138
1

X % !
“ 45PL AN|2434
146 144 | 143| 14
54]

_ FEEDHAM AVE

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Overview Map&Clie... 08/05/2014

73



40,T=,,9T/1 :21835

NY1d 3115
1IY43A0

10°¢vY

VNMOT3X QVOY GNNT 5221

S3ISNOHNMOL
1NN S
NIVINNOW XJv1d

i stong

d@ 1o pansst
€¢-%0-¥10¢

Q11 SANAWA4OIIAND

YOI 13

3

ONI S1D3LTHO¥Y  NHOCIMIIW

+
3
©

74







0SkiL

= 1~ddT u

3

NY1d 3lis .,

.| dnows wiun \\\Y

*QL7 ANOHD W
Jroeteay

SININGOTIAIA HOOT1ANW

L 1N T4ASG 104 0SS

NOWLAROEIa

SISNOHNMOL Lt LOT e
[ v e st o
SIOVINI ION3Y3ITY
wWoYOXWEDD  pewed  woury ok - R -
wo'ox Wy Pponad oo
srorouosed
wsLoNuZT  pewed 208 sewsp pesy soime s usesoy wyorkyonss s
WO XwgT Ponoy zo8
WSLOX WO ‘Powod 208
WL OXWST powcd Zos svsD poey pojelorsen wepUeA0, ensosLewerel.,
ssasein
WZTXwsT  pemed 508 ould cOng promg Oresnd clnew snery
wrir s e soesoomr sy pr—
sansun INVNOAH | YMICIS ONLLSI 3IAIYA NIVLNNOW %0v18
038 X330 ANO XOH ALNILN ONLLSEE
Wo'G X wo's. ave ‘wywoy edey Buiquies) ‘sopromwe.) smndod
wWIxwEy  gve WHweg oud vorsieny e onond, Nisva e — — o . 3 )
wo9XuOE v ‘jeowog Orduy osoveder wwmpouped 100y a0 s T
waais. ¥3ainos _— . .
oou ng — : " e -—g - — -
"I5T ONALNVIY SALVING SIS 7 R % 0000000 D I
oIS DN — w\\u\ﬂ i aovas T | Foves [\ - Fovas T\ |~ 1 i
CNAa H00ALNO ¥000LNO ¥00AUNO | (1) ooy aa)
ERCEErt) olLvd 21E0E olLvd ELlEr] olLvd
T
HINODANNONO TVINNIYId
SSYHO TWINNINA
WINNZNIL mnoisv
N ° !
BNYHS SNOY¥ILINOD —%
W
BNYHS SNONAIDIA. / ) 3oNaaIsY ONATISIY JoNaaIsIN
3381 5n0NAID3G- | ) J
ONLLY3S = - -
ZC T
3LvO3¥00Y - m

JTUL SNOUIAINGD

MIINOVL HLIM AVNAS ONY VYL
WWIGL 4O HLAIA 'NIN ¥ OL 36V UYINNVAD N3N0 AVT
‘S3NI H3HSNYO FLINVAD SNNIN Wwioh

ONIOVA¥NS 3LYOINDOY GIHSNYD

WWOOZ-001 40 L4 “NIW ¥ OL DIN@YH HILTH HIAO AV]
3NOLS 'VIQ LO0z-ww0s
00Y AN

QIHEVS JAVOSANY ON - HLd3Q WG, ‘NIW
HIINI XHVA GUSOANOD GIAONDAY
HoIN

TOGAOL GIAOUAY HLAZA WS L WNIAIN ONIMOND

NOLLONHLSNOD
MLV NOLLYNO153N
404 GAWINOIY SY ALVH NOLLYOIddY.

st A4 TIVA

ok AN WANNY.

0b  3N9924 G3Y ONIGIIUD

ol 3NO534 MV

o SSYMO LVIHM TIVL

0L SSVHO LYIHM ¥3ANTTS

st 3AY VINNIY3d

02 GSVAD LVIHM G2USANO
Cxa_usﬁtczwsawua5smu<xonz5>zn

MOYD-000 %OFONYS %09 NIGIN ONIMOYD
/MOQYEN GZIVENLYN

[S\ESEN]

“INBINOOQ NOLLONKLSNOD
¥ SV 350 ¥OJ GIGNILNI LON 51 LI "ATNO NOISSINGNS LINY3d INTWAOIIAIO
404 035N 30 OL 51 NV HALOVHYHO ONY W04 SL01d3A ONWVHA SIHL
“NLSAS NOLLYOIMI
OLLYWOLAY INIIOI:d3 NY HLM GILYOINYI 38 OL SYANY JdVISONVI TIV
“HONN GIAONAAY JAVH TIVHS S8 ONLNYId TI¥ ‘Q31I03dS ISIMUIHLO
SS3INN S038 ONLNYI NIHLIM G39Y1d 38 OL SYANY YALSNT1D J3UL ONY BNUHS
“ALIIBYIIVAY NON ONIONIAI AUVA AYW SNOLLOTT3S
‘ONLLNY1d TYNI4 "ATNO T¥NLdIONOD Y GNOILOTTIS WINILYA ANV
3215 ONY ALNYNO 378Y.4300V NANININ
IHL 51031438 LG TNLIIINOI SI NIBUIH QILYNOISIA NOISIA FdYOSANVIIHL 2
"(NOLLIGS LN3YUND) QYVONYLS 34YOSONYI ‘0’8 JHL NI GIHSIIBYLSS SOUVANVIS
WANININ OL WHO: v e NI

V1vQa LN3WdOT13A3A 3dVOSANY]

TIHSNNO HLM AT
Sd3LS GINVYH HIANLL

<

QUVONYLS YNMOTIN 40 ALID
133W 0L XYM3AIS

31¥DIUOOV GIHSAUO NI 135
5V15 a35534d

(SLOZUHONY AB) IUNLONYLE

SITI3NLON

IONIJ ¥IBVILL QHYOB TIUHL

FDVNOIS

ERTERTEEH)

(dAL) HSINIA

IVAMLIILIHONY /M /,
OlLVd FLIHINCD \

3oNTOISIY




CITY OF KELOWNA
MEMORANDUM

Date: June 4, 2014

File No.:  Z14-0020

To: Urban Planning (LG)

From: Development Engineering Manager (SM)

Subject: 1225 Lund Road lot 47 plan KAP82430, Section 18, Township 27, ODYD

Development Engineering Services comments and requirements pertaining to this application to
rezone the subject property from RU1 to RM3 are as follows:

1)

2)

3)

4)

General
Provide easements as may be required.
Water

The property is located within the Black Mountain Irrigation District (BMID) service area.
All the fees and charges pertaining to this application is to be dealt directly with the BMID

Sanitary Sewer

According to our records, the subject property has two wastewater services to the
property line. One of the service must be decommissioned at the property owner’s cost.
The service must be disconnected at the main and capped. The cost of the service
decommissioning is estimated at $2,800.00 and is inclusive of a bonding escalation. A
connection card must provided indicating the actual remaining service.

Road improvements.

a) Lund Road must be upgraded to a full urban standard with a sidewalk behind the
existing curb and gutter. The sidewalk must extend to the end of the existing curb &
gutter and the driveway must be constructed to City standard SS-C7. The cost of this
frontage upgrade is estimated at $16,200.00 and is inclusive of a bonding escalation.

b) Black Mountain Drive is fully urbanized and this application does not trigger any
further upgrades.

2



Z14-0020 June 4, 2014

.9) Bonding and Levies Summary.
a) Performance security
Lund Road frontage upgrade
Wastewater Service decommissioning

TOTAL

a) Levies

3% Engineering and Administration fee

W

Steve Mlefiz, P. Erg.
Development Engingering Manager

BZ

Page 3 of 3

$16,200.00

$ 2,800.00
$19,000.00

$ 425.25 (405.00 + 20.25 GST)

78




Lindsey Ganczar

From: Lochhead, Lynda D TRAN:EX [Lynda.Lochhead@gov.bc.ca]
Sent: Wednesday, July 16, 2014 2:34 PM

To: Lindsey Ganczar; Clifford, Robyn M TRAN:EX

Subject: Z14-0020

Your file: Z14-0020
Our file: 2014-02072

Hi, Lindsey — your timing is impeccable — we just tackled our To Do List this morning and this file was one of them!! The
Ministry has no issues or concerns regarding this application to rezone from RU1 to RM3.

Take care,

LYNDA LOCHHEAD | DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT TECHNICIAN | BC MINISTRY OF TRANSPORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE | OKANAGAN
SHUSWAP DISTRICT | 300-1358 ST.PAUL ST, KELOWNA, BC V1Y 2E1 | PERMIT WEBSITE:

T:250.712.3664| C: 250.878.2011| F: 250.712.3669 |

EMAIL: Lynda.Lochhead@gov.bc.ca | WEBSITE FOR DEVELOPMENT APPROVALS:

www.th.gov.bc.ca/Development Approvals/home.htm | MINISTRY WEBSITE: http://tranbc.ca/

| PERMIT WEBSITE:: http://www.th.gov.bc.ca/permits/Apply.asp

é Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This e-mail is intended solely for the person or entity to which it is addressed and may contain confidential and/or privileged information.
Any review, dissemination, copying, printing or other use of this e-mail by persons or entities other than the addressee is prohibited. If
you have received this e-mail in error, please contact the sender immediately and delete the material from any computer.

From: Lindsey Ganczar [mailto:LGanczar@kelowna.ca]
Sent: Tuesday, July 15, 2014 1:11 PM

To: Clifford, Robyn M TRAN:EX

Cc: Lochhead, Lynda D TRAN:EX

Subject: RE: Your File: 2014-02072

I should have also requested an update on your file 2014-02072.

Thanks again!

Lindsey Ganczar, MCIP, RPP
Urban Planning Supervisor
250-469-8606 | lganczar@kelowna.ca

79



CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10992

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP14-0010
Melcor Lakeside Inc., Inc.No. A0O065181
1225 Lund Road

A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500".

The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1. THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 - Official
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future
Land Use designation of Lot 47, Section 18, Township 27, ODYD, Plan KAP82430,
located on 1225 Lund Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the S2RES - Single / Two Unit

Residential designation to the MRL - Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density)
designation;

2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.

Read a first time by the Municipal Council this

Considered at a Public Hearing on the

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

80




CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10993
Z14-0020 - Melcor Lakeside Inc., Inc.No. A0O065181
1225 Lund Road

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning
classification of Lot 47, Section 18, Township 27, ODYD, Plan KAP82430 located on
1225 Lund Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RM3 -
Low Density Multiple Housing zone.
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.
Read a first tigng by the Municipal Council this
Considered at a Public Hearing on the

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Approved under the Transportation Act

; f

(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation)

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

81




REPORT TO COUNCIL

Date:
RIM No.
To:

From:
Application:

Address:

Subject:

City of
7/18/2014 Kelowna
1250-30
City Manager
Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC)

561655 BC LTD., INC. NO.

714-0026 Owner: BCO561655

1280 Glenmore Dr Applicant: Randy Therrien

Rezoning Application

Existing OCP Designation: MRL - Multiple Unit Residential, Low-Density

Existing Zone:

Proposed Zone:

RU1 - Large Lot Housing

RM2 - Low Density Row Housing

1.0 Recommendation

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0026 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by
changing the zoning classification of Lot 1, Section 29, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 29608, located
on 1280 Glenmore Drive, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RM2 - Low

Density Row Housing zone be considered by Council;

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be subsequent to the following:

1. Requirements of Development Engineering Branch being completed to their

satisfaction;

2. Subdivision delineating the five properties;

3. A Party Wall Agreement is registered on title;

4. AND FURTHER THAT a Section 219 Building Use covenant be registered on each of the
five parcels restricting each parcel to one dwelling unit in order to prevent any

additional dwelling units to be developed within each townhome.

2.0 Purpose

To rezone the subject parcel to allow a freehold five unit townhouse development.

82



714-0026 - Page 2

3.0 Urban planning

Staff support the proposed rezoning to allow a freehold five unit townhouse development on the
subject property. The proposal is consistent with the Official Community Plan (OCP) Future Land
Use designation for the area and provides a appropriate land use transition from Glenmore Drive
to the surrounding low density residential neighbourhood to the west. The proposal does not
need any variances and has provided the required number of off-street parking stalls.

In addition to the subject parcel, the applicant also owns the property to the west (fronting
Mountainview Street). The applicant intends to bring forward an application to re-designate the
property to permit small lot single family housing.

The only concern Staff has with the current application is the potential to add additional
dwelling units within the townhouses when subdivided. The RM2 zone permits up to six dwelling
units, and when subdivision occurs (with party wall agreements) the RM2 zone rules will apply to
each new lot. This would permit additional dwelling units subject to parking and siting
considerations. Due to the parking concern, Staff are recommending that a Section 219 Building
Use covenant be registered on title that states only one dwelling unit is permitted per lot.

A Development Permit is required to review the form and character of the development and will
be brought forward to Council if the zoning is approved.

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook
neighbour consultation by individually contacting the neighbours as described in the attached
Schedule ‘A’. No major issues were identified during consultation with neighbouring parcels.

4.0 Proposal

4.1 Project Description

The subject property currently contains one single detached dwelling that will be demolished and
replaced with a five unit townhouse development.

4.2 Site Context

The site area is approximately 1,942 m” and is located within a well established residential
neighbourhood. The Kelowna Golf and Country Club is located to the east directly across
Glenmore Drive. The subject property is designated MRL (Multiple Residential - Low Density) and
the lot is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. Specifically, the adjacent land uses are as
follows:

Orientation Zoning Land Use
RU1 - Large Lot Housing . .
North RU2 - Medium Lot Housing Residential
East E3_LP - Parks and Open Space (Liquor Golf Course
rimary)
South RU1 - Large Lot Housing Residential
West RU1 - Large Lot Housing Residential

83



714-0026 - Page 3

SubJect Property Map: 1280 Glenmore Drlve

o RUZ
m 1232 "

.. v ’
2 ;103,104 105 106 107
- "j ,\ J‘ &

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table

Zoning Analysis Table

CRITERIA RM2 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL
Development Regulations
Principal Bldg Principal Bldg
Height 9.5 m (2.5 storeys) To the midpoint 9.5 m (2.5 stories) to the Peak
of the roof
Front Yard 4.5m >4.5m
Side Yard 40m 4.0m
0.0 m with party wall agreement 0.0 m with party wall agreement
Flanking Side Yard n/a n/a
6.0 m for 1 or 1 %2 storeys
Rear Yard 7.5 m for 2 or 2 Y storeys 7:5m
Site coverage of buildings 50 % 35.9%
Site coverage of
buildings, driveways & 55 % 46.8 %
parking
Other Regulations
M‘}{“m“.m Parking 2 / dwelling unit = 10 parking stalls 10
equirements
Private Open Space 25 m” / dwelling unit Greater than 25 m” / dwelling unit

84



714-0026 - Page 4

5.0 Current Development Policies
5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)
Development Process

Compact Urban Form.' Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1.

Sensitive Infill.> Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design,
height, and siting.

6.0 Technical Comments

6.1 Building & Permitting Department

e Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any
Building Permits.

e Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit
applications.

e The original set of drawings clearly showed this as a 4 plex, the current basement floor
plan is easily converted to the original 4 plex arrangement with little effort.

6.2  Development Engineering Department

e See attached

6.3 Fire Department
e No concerns with the concept but a lane cannot be considered as access for the fire
department. There appears to be no access from the front on Glenmore.
7.0  Application Chronology

Date of Application Received: June 5% 2014
Date of Public consultation: July 7" 2014

' City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter).
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter).

85



Report prepared by:

Adam Cseke, Planner

Reviewed by:

Approved for Inclusion:

Attachments:

Site Plan / Landscape Plan

Colour Board

Conceptual Elevations

Development Engineering Comments

714-0026 - Page 5

Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor

Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager

86



Map Output Page 1 of 1

ADDRESS

Z14-0026

Subject Property

T e

PLAN 64220

1485
PLAN 1476

9 Meters

Map: 847 x 913 m -- Scale 1:5,000 2014-06-05]

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

87

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Subject_Properties A... 05/06/2014



CITY OF KELOWNA
MEMORANDUM

Date: July 2, 2014

File No.: Z14-0026

To: Urban Planning (AC)

From: Development Engineering Manager (SM)

Subject: 1280 Glenmore Drive RU1 to RM2

Development Engineering Department have the following comments and requirements associated with
this application. The road and utility upgrading requirements outlined in this report will be a
requirement of this development.

The Development Engineering Technologist for this project is Sergio Sartori

General

a) Requirements of the subdivision application no. S14-0023 must be satisfied before bylaw
adoption.

b) Provide easements as may be required.

1. Domestic Water and Fire Protection

(a) The existing lot is serviced with two (2) 19mm diameter water service. The
developer’'s consulting engineer will determine the domestic and fire protection
requirements of this proposed development and establish hydrant requirements
and service needs. Only one service will be permitted for this development.

(b) If it is determined that upgrades to the remaining water/hydrant distribution
system must be made to achieve the required fire flows, additional bonding will
be required.

2. Sanitary Sewer

(a) The existing lot is serviced with two (2) 100mm diameter sanitary services. The
developer’s consulting engineer will confirm the requirements of this proposed
development. Only one service will be permitted for this development.

3. Storm Drainage

(a) The property is located within the City of Kelowna drainage service area.
The Subdivision, Development and Servicing Bylaw requires that each lot be provided
with an individual connection; however, the City Engineer may permit use of individual
ground water disposal systems, where soils are suitable. For on-site disposal of drainage
water, a hydro geotechnical report will be required complete with a design for the
disposal method (i.e. trench drain / rock pit). The Lot Grading Plan must show the design
and location of these systems for each lot.

88



Z14-0026

(b) The development is required to contain and dispose of site generated storm drainage on
the site by installing a ground recharge system designed by the consulting civil engineer.
The existing lot does not presently have a storm drainage service.
4. Road Improvements
(a) Glenmore Drive is upgraded to a full urban standard including curb & gutter, sidewalk;
therefore no further upgrades are required with the exception of the driveway access
removal. Access will be from the lane,
b) Lane must be constructed and paved to the City standard SS-R2.
5. Subdivision
By registered plan to provide the following:
(a) Dedicate a 6m lane thru the site as part of subdivision application S14-0023.
(b) Grant statutory rights-of-way if required for utility services.
6. Electric Power and Telecommunication Services

The electrical services to this development must be installed in an underground duct
system, and the building must be connected by an underground service. It is the
developer’s responsibility to make a servicing application with the respective electric
power, telephone and cable transmission companies to arrange for theses services which
would be at the applicant’s cost.

7. Street Lighting

Street lighting including underground ducts have been installed on all roads fronting on
the proposed development but must be reviewed to determine if current standards have
been met.

8. Engineering

Road and utility construction design, construction supervision, and quality control
supervision of all off-site and site services including on-site ground recharge drainage
collection and disposal systems, must be performed by an approved consulting civil
engineer. Designs must be submitted to the city engineering department for review and
marked “issued for construction” by the city engineer before construction may begin.

9. Design and Construction

(a)

(b)

(c)

Design, construction supervision and inspection of all off-site civil works and site
servicing must be performed by a Consulting Civil Engineer and all such work is subject
to the approval of the City Engineer. Drawings must conform to City standards and
requirements.

Engineering drawing submissions are to be in accordance with the City’s “Engineering
Drawing Submission Requirements” Policy. Please note the number of sets and drawings
required for submissions.

Quality Control and Assurance Plans must be provided in accordance with the
Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw No. 7900 (refer to Part 5 and Schedule 3).

89



Z14-0026

10.

11.

(d)

(e)

A “Consulting Engineering Confirmation Letter” (City document ‘C*) must be completed
prior to submission of any designs.

Before any construction related to the requirements of this subdivision application
commences, design drawings prepared by a professional engineer must be submitted to
the City’s Works & Utilities Department. The design drawings must first be “Issued for
Construction” by the City Engineer. On examination of design drawings, it may be
determined that rights-of-way are required for current or future needs.

Servicing Agreements for Works and Services

(a)

(b)

A Servicing Agreement is required for all works and services on City lands in accordance
with the Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw No. 7900. The applicant’s
Engineer, prior to preparation of Servicing Agreements, must provide adequate drawings
and estimates for the required works. The Servicing Agreement must be in the form as
described in Schedule 2 of the bylaw.

Part 3, “Security for Works and Services”, of the Bylaw, describes the Bonding and
Insurance requirements of the Owner. The liability limit is not to be less than $5,000,000
and the City is to be named on the insurance policy as an additional insured.

Geotechnical Report

As a requirement of this application the owner must provide a geotechnical report
prepared by a Professional Engineer qualified in the field of hydro-geotechnical survey to
address the following:

(a) Area ground water characteristics.

(b) Site suitability for development, unstable soils, etc.

(c) Drill and / or excavate test holes on the site and install pisometers if necessary. Log
test hole data to identify soil characteristics, identify areas of fill if any. Identify
unacceptable fill material, analyse soil sulphate content, Identify unsuitable
underlying soils such as peat, etc. and make recommendations for remediation if
necessary.

(d) List extraordinary requirements that may be required to accommodate construction
of roads and underground utilities as well as building foundation designs.

(e) Additional geotechnical survey may be necessary for building foundations,
etc.

Steve Muenz, P. Eng.
Development Engineering Manager

S8

90



91

== UD|d @d0OospuUb] [PNJAd=s0UOD

SN

lllll , AvOY¥ PWOWNITD 08¢l

- . vBio3eany
SECH LA SN[ 2 HSNE ONINANG J¥YMA AAYGT
= ] NOYVHS 40 3503 SSVID LVO 3n1E
o BB RS BT AAIGYVE aINOs34 38
i . N R 34V NODRIO $IANIAY
. : 7 3504 33y
..... ) j
® g
D X
5 L
@ | A
9 o, | 2 —
0 o & S =
@ 5 b3 : S =
=

B
Tl
P,
;

B

T I S

= ___..A,_t‘.‘:‘., R Y5 WISL TV
N JEENT M
wasay =2, -~
B
\\\n .
/ .\.\l\. YOO MO - 050 j0 S0P W 52 SR 0) 1peq Duguod iy '8
! _ == UDNBUCS BY| |5 {ASUOD LOJIIM BY] Inculm PeIded0 0] [Ik UOUAIRIGNS §212ad: U ON 'L
. e
sansmassnsbesnannnn T II...B« _I||uzo.z J o 0 84} 0} AQOIOAD FPOU B
SOUVA INOUI NIJWMLIE 1 ALYDH0¥d HINOS GNY HLNON DNOTY SOLLYd LNOYS IN3D! THOWNTTD sl P Aoniop
- = NITUOS GAIVAICIS JH WL F ; o Pinous l1osclo} Jo EiE3) [50] puo ayduios o5 0f opsopd 9
o YRR T T ; 7 R ) 7 I \w\ '92uDiD0ddo 0 PIOAD Of 9UOJS 0L U] 1 Il PAUMOID 0G 0f 3paQ Duguoid iy °5
= = | 2 i £ s 3 b o oS0} IO WOSY ARSI o) SOXD Bupuoid 1Y P
el “0fft 04} U0 SN DUTISKD 1D JO UOLDIO] SUY AJPSA O ODONUOD T
oy 4q pao0idol aq [oys poped 4 By} |0 PUS 2500 1D JOU) SDPS{O PUD SUDLd
“S{DpoOu PUO DI ID U JDA | j0 PopSd S3UBUDIUIDU PUD AUDEDM B SpiA0Id O} jI0NURD T
uoIPF Ui, - PIOpuDIS dDIIPUDT DT,
VNID SUl 0} usojuo of 103450:d Guyuoid puo jopajow wuokd Iy °L




=—=5i5 UD|4d @dpbosSpupn] |[PN}A3dUO0D
DEINOD AOOHINOGHSDIAN ANV INIWJOT1IAId A3ISOdOid - AvOd NOWNETO 08CL

n,
Gesgee Lk €

g 68 ¢o; Cemeie €6

xS
s e i
5 b B T T e o

- E——"
T
P
A
i

T
s
winita,

g,



NDITIA KYANA  OKINNVIS

DXINIARIDR

— 0D

PRI S
0z oL S []

Alomepis Buysxe

Uo|d ©@d0OsSpuUb

o HTUTRO RS

Hl

A

S [EMoRIS

- o

Sy E

=LA

|

4

ONJdaduold
dVOd FMOWNLTD 08¢1

YIX238aNy

HSNG DNINJNG J¥YMA AMAYQ
NOAVHS 4O 350d  SSYIO LvO 3NTg
Ad3give 3IN2s34 3n79

VIO NODO3IIO A3ANIAYT

350 SSV¥O Q33

VD WIWSL TdVYIN
135NNS 3y

o Y3yl main - B0 0 WAOP WAl 52 9419397 0} 2paq Buguod gy
i UDPASIOD BYL IO UISUOD UOKIIM O JAONIIM POIISI0 BQ [ UOYAYIEGAS S0f2ads junid ON
Q ‘IA0KIAD JO] UDENSUOD By} Of HIGDIDAD SPOW ]
— Pinoys [[osdoj jO BIASI (S0} 1 0 ‘9|15 0} ABATSP O JOpid
n\ﬂ._ ‘22u0I0dd 0y PIOAD 0} 0dOf5 0L U1 L Wil PIUMOID 04 0} 5paq Bupuoid 1y
] 030o] JO WALGGY 939304 O} SO Bupupid IV
W “0f18 9y} U SBYA BUISKS 0 O UOHD30| BU AT O JOIS0NUOD

“JOJ20INOD By} AQ PEO0Ida) 8 IDYS POfiad AJUBLOM-0Y] JO PUS BI0JAJ ([P} B4 HRIOW PUO §INDL
*SOOOW PUO SR [[0-U0 J034 | 0 Poped B5UDUSIIDWI PUD AUDLDM D DPA0I O} JOI20RUCD
UOHIP] YU PIOPUDIS SdOJEPUDT DT,

VNIOT 94 0} wuojuo 0f 200200 Bugunid puo jopaiou ‘guoid kY




[ _I MOBIg XAUQ I_

|

. szdm.w‘ *SEN./-:QIV#I_
H§ N }yﬂdzi
ITFo ~ Sy
STAAQ A

,..‘_,..
au0)§ payIels
L e a0 sy Rl TRl F A 'k R G R
INOLS 00740073 N ST ) T ——

15

-

A S

BONED Am.ﬂ.,w, < mrlmu/yv\

, ) .W.xbﬂmm?o\.ﬁo y !

, Wu.}waw\mﬁuaﬂ i W e Sl T U [ o
,

|

\
Whan, g

AT COIR DY, AN - BAST0C 2RROWNEY O

609 IUVIdHIATS -XEWA0]0) P=2Lureii)

ez




Tearen e
R
e ._.._.,_‘_495

o s
el
KEoea K2, va

i
sl
: ) b
o) Ihlp e e
FRONTYAND SETBACK — m L :r.“...‘fﬂ_ﬂang — HEARTAND SETIACK

| 20" ORIGINAL LANE

16
TRLAE Wt

ek JENISH HOUSE DESIGN LIMITED

il
I 1 | |
| _ =2
_ i : : A— |
m " |
i :
REVICER Bl AR
REVISED PLANS =
JUL 15 2014 =
CITY OF KELOWNA =

Land Use Manaogment

Sgo



UNIT "A” — END UNIT
LOWER FLOOR PLAN

ARCA = 848.5 5Q. FT.
8'-0 3747 COLING HOGHT

UNIT "B”™ — INTERIOR UNIT
OWER FLOOR PLAN

ARCA = BEO.1 S5@. FT.

8'=0 3/4" CLILING HEIGHT

TY OF KELUWNA

] i1 ARarn e
. Land Use Management

MULTI—=UNIT DEV.

W FLOOR PLAN

ekl JENISH HOUSE DESIGN LIMITED

H
il

‘gaézi g
b 53

[t
&




= Skt e
GRCAT_ROQM. E— —— z | ‘4
Rt | oo e | lﬁ \ 1
o
" | LR i | UNIT "A" — END UNIT
v e T S | s | B S ;
H ol i o e “ ” MAIN FLOOR PLAN
& = LounLt AREA = 940.5 SO. FT.
] wl R o e
_1m g ! .mwmea. GARAGL ARCA = 442 Q. FT,
1 ! | er s Wi, i &
1= M_ I 8'=0 3/4" COLNG HOGHT
il S
1y au ]
i .
L '
1 L= " || |BAMIEY/STORN -2 0 ] e
| i ) i
T T A_
= i ommm
i P
T £
= i ! o b
Iy b1 i UNIT "8" — INTERICR UNIT
¥ | ! pouoic
Ls u” | OARAGL MAIN FLOOR PLAN
! | (= L = ARCA = 033.1 SQ. FT.
! i | CARAGE ARCA = 442 SQ. FT.
ol m 0'-0 3/4" COLING HEIGHT
'
/m: ! i
A 1
! 1
] e e ) A

(S A e S et

REVIOEE

MULTI—UNIT DEWV
MAIN FLOOR PLAN

CITY OF KELUWNA
1and Use Managermem

w
i
‘l.

97

i e g,

e LIowa e
n P
T R ioa e

e see

JENISH HOUSE DESIGN LIMITED

i
]

lifil
HEEE;%;

|
|




cz_a..\p..lmzoczq
SECOND FLOOR PLAN

ARCA = 0D08.7 SQ. FT.

8'—0 3/4" COLING HEIGHT

- BEDROOM._#3 ]
= PO
—mn
i
Ed
il WK
1
P o RN
| =lLAUN mnﬁnﬂ mm <
3 I
o) . m
[laun ,w OATH' m >
q! =
= Al =z AcOEPOM$2
£ i
=

UNIT "B" — INTERIOR UNIT
SECOND FILOOR PLAN

ARCA = 1080.1 SQ. FT.

8'=0 3/4" COLING H

CUNTRM,
.......
o mT
~EVICER Bl ARG
REVISED PLARKS
-J.._I,._lh.. ) r_@ = End¥ ==l N
]

CITY OF KELUveiiA

Land Use Management

o pE
o Ty
T R 1oaee e

ekl JENISH HOUSE DESIGN LIMITED

hiftale
i




| |-l |8
% L %% S{ i

i | |g | Bl
E i i éa ig E‘ I | w M
B ICE
4 : 7 /.
; o ===7; S lE
E
T\
@ L B 'a | —}
\ E
| s{ e 1= =
TN ¢ e
s 5\ T
e
H i "]1 .‘-""‘lf
‘ [ W l’
| ,il" ]
| i E
e
1B
¢
- | B 2
s IFry TTTE e
o C) —
ay = I . /80 =2\ 1\ N
o E DD A e
cm o % [ I H
Z 0 ﬁ% e 23 ) 2 :! =
- 3 SR Y H o
= a O o 1 = /
- 3 ~ i ‘
r T
N = (L
=
_<

oo s
e

WALRR il k| JENISH HOUSE DESIGN LIMITED

sﬁgﬁ
i




ATINYS T LTMIN

LA

oY) Oarrn

—
u_uggn ] HE I

................

i

|
T [ E

NI
I

.Elﬂi%

1

[

HIE
i

Bl

JENISH HOUSE DESIGN LIMITED




HATCHED ARCA ON SCCOND FLOOR RODF DENOTES 4/12 PITCH

4/12

4/12

I L |
Afam - Wﬁ:% alllo 21

feN gy gl

!
N

ekl  JENISH HOUSE DESIGN LIMITED

1
5/12 A,
T

,
|

|

,runm..lllL.lln%

7
Z
¢

i
!

i

i
1
|

/12 3

s/ 5/12

R i X

HATCHED ARCA DENOTES RESULTANT PITOH

T

o
aar aire

Vet

aors

CITY OF KELOWNA S

Land Use Management



102

Eﬁanggzlﬁi}g ‘ol eﬂuinhn/wﬂ
8NS—d0y¥d—S/861 oN gor

1200~¢9L (05Z) Xv4 SILE=£9L (0SZ) 3NOHAITAL
08 YNMOT! ‘133MIS ASOONVd 029L—+0%
SHOATANNS ONVT YaYNYD GNY 0@

"P¥1 soppwiceg p Buileang pup uosnbusy

102 ‘2L AYW 3Lva

JYONNI 1D

JAINa

¥
4
iamh&rérrulu.voofulz.ﬁm
S——_ 5 5 ugsg
| =
i3
I
P
121 e
BoS8T [ M._ MY =
|7 o
: [ ]
I =
L 1g] o~
g oy $61°0 “ a__ S
a 1 & oy 9510 & <
m _V_ m o m _
__._.:
hu I
i% %
1 3
I m
o m
(. -
I
I
oBrvy N
_r:m SLE'SE
00892 NVd
L [ Srrrl NV1d
=
M 9
LSy—BYZ—400 0id
3ANG BYONNTID 0SZI
TBIHIHE R |
STUIIN 05 sz o o s o
SIYIIN 00F:L TTIVOS

8096<Z NV1d JAJO 92 dIHSNMOL
6¢ NOILO3IS | 107 40 NOISIAIdENS a3s0dodd 40 Nvid




CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10994
Z14-0026 - 561655 BC LTD., INC.NO. BC0561655
1280 Glenmore Drive

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning
classification of Lot 1, Section 29, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 29608 located on 1280
Glenmore Drive, Kelowna, B.C., from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RM2-
Low Density Row Housing zone.
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this
Considered at a Public Hearing on the

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

103




REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: 8/11/2014 KEIOW“a

RIM No. 0940-43

To: City Manager

From: Urban Planning Manager (RS)

Application: TA14-0009 Owner: N/A

Address: N/A Applicant:  Mission Group Enterprises
Subject: Zoning Bylaw Text Amendment

1.0 Recommendation

THAT Zoning Bylaw Text Amendment No. TA14-0009 to amend City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No.
8000 by amending Section 2 - Interpretation as outlined in the Report of the Urban Planning
Department dated July 30, 2014 be considered by Council.

AND THAT the Text Amendment Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further
consideration.

2.0 Purpose

Text Amendment application to “Boat Storage” definition in Section 2 of Zoning Bylaw No.8000.

3.0 Urban Planning

The Urban Planning Department was been approached by the owner of Aqua Marine Valet (550
Truswell Rd) to add boat fuelling service to the list of services already available to the users of
the dry land Boat Storage facility.

This use has actually been on the site for a number of years because of on-going Temporary Use
Permit application. Staff have not encountered any complaints related to the use since it was
approved under the Temporary Use Permit.

Given that the applicant has no ability to further extend the Temporary Use Permit, staff were
asked to consider a solution which would allow the use to occur long term. Staff believe that this
request has merit in that a change to the definition of “Boat Storage” would allow the fuel
services for boats stored on appropriately designated sites to occur over land, and would reduce
the potential for environmental impact that may occur if there was a fuel spill over water. This
change to add fuel service to the boat storage definition is intended to accommodate the users of
theffdry land boat storage who store their boat at the facility, and not to service visitor boat
traffic.

The applicant has proposed to add wording to the text amendment to include compliance with
the City of Kelowna Fire and Life Safety Bylaw No. 10760, as amended or replaced from time to
time ”, as well as a requirement that fuel dispensing only be part of a storage facility greater

104



TA14-0009 - Page 2

that 100 boats to preclude the dispensing of fuel for boat storage facilities that could be located
on much smaller lots.

4.0 Proposal
4.1 Background

The existing dry land boat storage facility located at 550 Truswell Road was developed on the
subject property in 1999. In 2008, the current owners purchased the subject property as part of
the comprehensive “Aqua” resort apartment hotel development proposed for the subject
property and the adjacent five lake front properties that are currently under application.

This application was originally presented to the APC on April 14, 2009 as a text amendment
(TA09-0002) to the C9 - Tourist Commercial zone, and the following recommendation was passed:

THAT the Advisory Planning Commission NOT support Text Amendment Application No.
TAQ09-0002, for 550 Truswell Rd; Lot 17, DL134, Plan 2714, Sec 1, Twp 25, ODYD; Except
Plan KAP66236; by Aqua Resort Ltd (J. Adamson), to allow facilities for more than 100
boats to provide on-site fuel dispensing.

In response to the to concerns of both the APC and Public in attendance, the applicant amended
the application to the form of a Temporary Use Permit to allow the temporary dispensing of fuel
on the property. Overall, the APC could not endorse the application given the proximity to an
existing marina fuelling facility located at the Hotel pier.

The original intent of the Temporary Use Permit was to allow the operator of the dry land boat
storage facility located on the subject property the option of fuelling on-site boats and marine
equipment, in addition to the storage and launching activities that are currently permitted. It is
anticipated that the operation of the dry land boat storage facility will remain until such time as
the "“Aqua” development proposal attains required federal, provincial and municipal approvals
pertaining to the ultimate development.

4.2 Project Description

The applicant has had 2 temporary use permits on the site and is not able to apply for further
extensions but wishes to continue the fuel services use indefinitely. Prior to Council
consideration of the original Temprorary Use Permits, the applicant had considered moving
forward with a Text Amendment but as noted above, concerns from the City’s Advisory Planning
Commission persuaded the applicant to withdraw the Text Amendment application.

The proposed changes proposed to the definition for “Boat Storage” are shown below:

The existing definition from the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw states;

BOAT STORAGE means the storage of boats and other marine equipment, which are in
working order, for the purpose of dry land moorage where the boats and marine
equipment are intended to be launched by the operator of the boat storage facility for
short term use by the boat and marine equipment owner. Boat Storage does not include
major servicing, sales, or major repair of boats or marine equipment and does not include
on-site fuel dispensing.

The applicant is proposing to amend the definition of Boat Storage by adding the following
wording (in italics) to the definition;

105



TA14-0009 - Page 3

BOAT STORAGE means the storage of boats and other marine equipment, which are in
working order, for the purpose of dry land moorage where the boats and marine
equipment are intended to be launched by the operator of the boat storage facility for
short term use by the boat and marine equipment owner. Where the Boat Storage
facility is actively storing 100 or more boats, Boat Storage includes on-site fuel
dispensing for the sole purpose of fuelling the boats and marine equipment. The fuel
storage tanks must adhere to the City of Kelowna Fire and Life Safety Bylaw No. 10760 (as
amended or replaced from time to time), and Best Management Practices outlined in the
CCME - Environmental Code of Practice for Aboveground and Underground Storage Tank
Systems Containing Petroleum and Allied Petroleum Products (as amended or replaced
from time to time). Boat Storage does not include major servicing, sales, or major repair
of boats or marine equipment.

The intent of this amendment is to allow the operator of a dry land boat storage facility the
option of fuelling boats and marine equipment, in addition to the storage and launching activities
that are currently permitted to occur on C9 zoned sites.

5.0 Current Development Policies
5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)

The subject property is designated as Mixed Use Tourism (MXT). This designation is intended for
developments that provide for a mix of hotel, apartment hotel, multiple unit residential uses and
associated commercial uses intended to service the tourism market. Building densities and height
would be consistent with the provisions of the C9, RM3, RM4 and RM5 zones of the Zoning Bylaw.

Tourist Commercial. Consider commercial development for tourism related uses in the Capozzi /
Truswell, Lakeshore, Cook Road area.

Marina Facilities. Allow private sector provision of another marina facility within the City,
providing that this can be done in an environmentally sound manner and providing that upland
transportation, parking and community impacts can be adequately addressed;

6.0 Technical Comments

6.1 Fire Deparment

A permit from the Kelowna Fire Department is required for a tank install as well a letter from an
engineer stating a tank installation meets all necessary requirements.

6.2  Development Engineering Branch

This application for a Text Amendment for this property does not compromise Works and Utilities
servicing requirements.

7.0  Application Chronology
Date Application Received: June 25, 2014

Report prepared by:

106



TA14-0009 - Page 4

Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager

Approved for Inclusion Doug Gilchrist
Divisional Director,Community Planning and Real Estate

Attachments:
Schedule “A”

107



SCHEDULE ‘A’ Boat Storage Definition Text Amendment

TA14-0009

Zoning Bylaw No. 8000

No. | Section old Existing Text Proposed Text
text
1. | Section 2 - | Same as | BOAT STORAGE means the storage | BOAT STORAGE means the storage of boats and
Boat existing. | of ~boats and  other marine | other marine equipment, which are in working
Storage equipment, which are in working | order, for the purpose of dry land moorage where
Definition order, for the purpose of dry land | the boats and marine equipment are intended to

moorage where the boats and
marine equipment are intended to
be launched by the operator of the
boat storage facility for short term
use by the boat and marine
equipment owner. Boat Storage
does not include major servicing,
sales, or major repair of boats or
marine equipment and does not
include on-site fuel dispensing.

be launched by the operator of the boat storage
facility for short term use by the boat and marine
equipment owner. Where the Boat Storage facility
is actively storing 100 or more boats, Boat Storage
includes on-site fuel dispensing for the sole
purpose of fuelling the boats and marine
equipment stored at the facility. The fuel storage
tanks must adhere to the Petroleum Products
Storage Tank Bylaw and Best Management Practices
outlined in the CCME - Environmental Code of
Practice for Aboveground and Underground Storage
Tank Systems Containing Petroleum and Allied
Petroleum Products. Boat Storage does not
include major servicing, sales, or major repair of
boats or marine equipment.

108



CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10995
TA14-0009 - Amendment to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 -
Boat Storage Definition

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".

The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1.

THAT Section 2 - Interpretation be amended by deleting the definition for BOAT
STORAGE that reads:

“BOAT STORAGE means the storage of boats and other marine equipment, which are
in working order, for the purpose of dry land moorage where the boats and marine
equipment are intended to be launched by the operator of the boat storage facility for
short term use by the boat and marine equipment owner. Boat Storage does not include
major servicing, sales, or major repair of boats or marine equipment and does not
include on-site fuel dispensing.”

And replace it with:

“BOAT STORAGE means the storage of boats and other marine equipment, which are
in working order, for the purpose of dry land moorage where the boats and marine
equipment are intended to be launched by the operator of the boat storage facility for
short term use by the boat and marine equipment owner. Where the Boat Storage
facility is actively storing 100 or more boats, Boat Storage includes on-site fuel
dispensing for the sole purpose of fuelling the boats and marine equipment stored at
the facility. The fuel storage tanks must adhere to the Petroleum Products Storage
Tank Bylaw and Best Management Practices outlined in the CCME - Environmental Code
of Practice for Aboveground and Underground Storage Tank Systems Containing
Petroleum and Allied Petroleum Products. Boat Storage does not include major
servicing, sales, or major repair of boats or marine equipment.”

This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.

Read a first time by the Municipal Council this

Considered at a Public Hearing on the

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Approved under the Transportation Act

(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation)

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

109




CITY OF KELOWNA
BYLAW NO. 10947

Amendment to the Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 -
Replacing Map 4.1 - Generalized Future Land Use Map

The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts that the

City of Kelowna "Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500" be amended as

follows:

1. THAT Map 4.1 - Generalized Future Land Use Map be deleted in its entirety and
replaced with a new Map 4.1 - Generalized Future Land Use Map as attached to and
forming part of this bylaw.

2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.

Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 28" day of April, 2014.
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 13 day of May, 2014.
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 13" day of May, 2014.

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

110




CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10955
Z13-0041 - AJ Weins Development Group Ltd., Inc. No.
BC0798391
979 and 989 Laurier Avenue

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the Zzoning
classification of Lots 1 and 2, District Lot 138, ODYD, Plan 6809 located on Laurier
Avenue, Kelowna, B.C., from the RU6 - Two Dwelling zone to the RM2 - Low Density
zone.
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 28" day of April, 2014.
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 13" day of May, 2014.

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 13*" day of May, 2014.
Approved under the Transportation Act this 4" day of June, 2014.

Lynda_lLochhead
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation)

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

111




REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: 8/11/2014 Kelowna
RIM No. 0940-40
To: City Manager
From: Urban Planning (AW)

DP13-0182, OCP14-0004 AJ Weins Development Group Ltd.,

Application: ¢ 713 6041 Owner: nc. No. BC0798391
Address: 979 & 989 Laurier Avenue Applicant: [HS Design (Chris Vickery)
Subject: Development Permit

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES - Single/Two Unit Residential

Existing Zone: RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing

Proposed Zone: RM2 -Low Density Row Housing

1.0 Recommendation

THAT Final Adoption of OCP Amending Bylaw No. 10947 and Zoning Amending Bylaw No. 10955 be
considered by Council;

AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Permit No. DP13-0182 for Lots 1 & 2,
District Lot 138, ODYD, Plan 6809, located at 979 & 989 Laurier Avenue, Kelowna, BC, subject to
the following:

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general
accordance with Schedule "A";

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general
accordance with Schedule “B”;

3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C";

4. The applicant be required to post with the City a Landscape Performance Security deposit
in the form of a "Letter of Credit" in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the
landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper;

5. The lots be consolidated prior to issuance of the Development Permit.

AND THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted condition No. 4 within 180

112



DP13-0182 - Page 2

days of Council approval of the Development Permit application in order for the permit to be
issued.

2.0 Purpose

To consider a Development Permit for two 3 unit row housing projects.

3.0 Land Use Management

Staff are supportive of the proposal, as it is seen to meet the Official Community Plan (OCP)
Design Guidelines and Urban Centre objectives. The proposal will enable the subject properties
to be developed with ground-oriented rowhouse development that is compatible with and
appropriate for this transitional residential area south of Highway 97 and west of the
Capri/Landmark Urban Centre. Further, it is supportive of City policies encouraging housing
intensification and diversification in the City’s urban core area, and near services and transit.
The design is sympathetic to the existing scale and character of the area and the construction of
the real lane creates a stronger pedestrian environment with all parking and vehicular
movements at the back away from the street.

4.0 Proposal

4.1 Project Description

The development of two 3-unit rowhouse development on the consolidated site would result in a
total of 6 dwelling units. A portion of the presently unconstructed rear lane would be developed
at this time to serve the subject site, and all vehicular access and parking for the subject
development would be taken from the lane only.

The proposal contemplates street-fronting units with main entries and porches along Laurier
Avenue, creating a strong pedestrian orientation. An enhanced frontage and landscaping along
Bowes Street is also anticipated. While 2 storeys in height, the second storey along the front
elevation is proposed to be contained largely within a steep sloped roof with dormers. The
proposed overall design aesthetic is of a traditional residential form, with steeply pitched roofs,
overhangs, and half-timbering detail. The proposal compares to the proposed RM2 zone
requirements as follows:

Zoning Analysis Table
PROPOSAL
CRITERIA RM2 ZONE REQUIREMENTS (consolidated lots)
Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations
Lot Area 1,000 m* 1,780 m*
Lot Width 30.0 m 46.0 m
Lot Depth 30.0 m 38.7m
Development Regulations
Floor Area Ratio 0.65 0.63
Site Coverage . .50% (builcjings) . 40%
55% (buildings, parking & driveways) 48%
Height 9.5 m / 2.5 storeys 7.6 m / 2 storeys
Front Yard 1.5m 4.5m
Side Yard (west) 4.0m 4.0m
Side Yard (east) 4.5m 4.5m
Rear Yard 7.5 m dwelling / 1.5 m garage 18.8 m dwelling / 2.1 m garage
Building Separation 3.0m 3.0m

113



DP13-0182 - Page 3

Other Regulations
Min. Parking Requirements 2 spaces/unit @ 6 units 12 spaces
Class I - 0.5/unit
Class Il - 0.1/unit
Private Open Space 25 m* 49 m* - 69 m*, per unit

Bicycle Parking Meets requirements

4.2 Site Context

The subject site is comprised of two, larger single family properties on the south side of Laurier
Avenue at Bowes Street. It is located approximately midway between Ethel Street to the west
and Gordon Drive and the Capri Shopping Mall to the east.

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows:

Orientation Zoning Land Use

RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing . . .
North RU6B - Two Dwelling Housing (Boarding Single and Two Family Dwellings

and Boarding Houses

House)
East RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing Single and Two Family Dwellings
South RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing Single Family Dwellings and

RM1 - Four Dwelling Housing Fourplex
West RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing Single and Two Family Dwellings

Subject Property Map: 979 & 989 Laurier Avenue

]»f
TR e M

114



DP13-0182 - Page 4

5.0 Current Development Policies
5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)
Chapter 5 - Development Process

Policy 5.2.3 - Compact Urban Form. Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of
existing infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done
by increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1.

Policy 5.23.1 - Ground-Oriented Housing. Encourage all multi-unit residential buildings in
neighbourhoods with schools and parks to contain ground-oriented units with 2 or more bedrooms
to provide a family housing choice within multi-unit rental or ownership markets. High density
residential projects in the Downtown area are encouraged to include a ground-oriented housing
component, especially where such can be provided on non-arterial and non-collector streets.

Chapter 14 - Urban Design Guidelines
Comprehensive Development Permit Objectives:
. Convey a strong sense of authenticity through urban design that is distinctive for Kelowna;

. Promote a high urban design standard and quality of construction for future development that
is coordinated with existing structures;

. Integrate new development with existing site conditions and preserve the character amenities
of the surrounding area;

. Promote interesting, pedestrian friendly streetscape design and pedestrian linkages;

« Provide for a scale and massing of commercial buildings that promotes a safe, enjoyable
living, pedestrian, working, shopping and service experience;

« Incorporate architectural features and detailing of buildings and landscapes that define an
area’s character;

. Promote alternative transportation with enhanced streetscapes and multimodal linkages;

« Protect and restore the urban ecology (i.e. architectural and site consideration with respect
to the ecological impact on urban design).

« Moderate urban water demand in the City so that adequate water supply is reserved for
agriculture and for natural ecosystem processes.

« Reduce outdoor water use in new or renovated landscape areas in the Cit by a target of 30%,
when compared to 2007.

6.0 Technical Comments
6.1 Building & Permitting Department

e Development Cost Charges (DCCs) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any Building
Permits.

e Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2012 edition of the British Columbia
Building Code (BCBC 12).

e This property falls within the Mill Creek flood plain bylaw area and compliance is
required. Minimum building elevations are required to be established prior to the release

115



6.2

6.3

DP13-0182 - Page 5

of the Development Permit. This building may be designed to low, which may affect the
form and character of the building.

Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit
applications.

Development Engineering Department
Addressed as part of Z13-0041.

Fire Department

Requirements of section 9.10.19 Smoke Alarms of the BCBC 2012 are to be met.
Emergency access is from the main roadway and not the lane behind.

Fire department access, fire flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of
Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. The Subdivision Bylaw #7900 requires a minimum of
90ltr/sec fire flows.

6.4 Interior Health
Provided that all development on the subject property is to be serviced by community
sanitary sewer and community water systems this office has no concern or objection to
approval of the application(s) as submitted.

6.5 FortisBC (Electric)
There are primary distribution facilities within Laurier Avenue. The applicant is
responsible for costs associated with any change to the subject lots' existing service, if
any, as well as the provision of appropriate land rights where required. Otherwise,
FortisBC Inc. (Electric) has no concerns with this circulation.

6.6 FortisBC (Gas)
No comments provided.

6.7 Shaw Cable
Owner / developer to supply and install an underground conduit system per Shaw Cable
drawings and specifications.

6.8  TELUS
TELUS will provide underground facilities to this development. Developer will be required
to supply and install conduit as per TELUS policy.

7.0  Application Chronology

Date Rezoning Application Received: November 12, 2013

Zoning Public Hearing: May 14", 2014

Zoning Conditions Addressed: July 20*", 2014

116



DP13-0182 - Page 6

Report prepared by:

Alec Warrender, Planner

Reviewed by: Ryan Smith, Manager, Urban Planning

Approved for Inclusion: I:l Doug Gilchrist, Div. Dir. of Community Planning & Real Estate

Attachments:

Subject Property Map

Site Plan

Conceptual Elevations
Conceptual Landscape Plan
Context/Site Photos

117



Map Output Page 1 of 1

Application

DP13-0182

Subject Property

v O DECD B
2120202 Py, godsprirsod -
LEON AV/E e I

ROWCLIFFE AVE

T
2 B Yol 43
T 1
I
1

I
11|12 U
L.4508) 5 (A 2
AN 13 &
n N
12|43
a
L.450. ]
2 A
CcP c . 76: 3
15 p 5% 9
KR72263
13 11
i £
F PLAN 12546
3R asA - At arfectngss not guara - ol B V777 s
Map: 847 x 913 m -- Scale 1:5,000 2013-11-12

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

118

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Overview Map&Clie... 2013-11-12



119

| | I |
1 ]
| |
| |
| |
- - 4 ! i "
| = |
1 + -
| { ]
e {
\Ik ]
70 4 609 LAURICR AVENUE <
KELOWNA, 0. VA 69 =
LEGAL ADDPESS LOT 182 PLAN 680% ﬂ; Y
CURRENT ZONING AUS - TWO DWELLING HO | Nl -1
PROPOAED TONING P2 - LOW DENSITY ROW HOUSING | \.V =1
CURROHT FUTURC LAND USE_ S2A5 - SINGLE/TWO UNIT AESIDENTIAL LAURIER AVENUE | S —
PROPOACO FUTURE LAND UK MLK - MULTIRLE LNIT RESIDINTIAL | &} 0.
I | s m R
1000.00m3. 1 vqu & RN 644 ARROWLEAF LANE
10.00m | LA qnl 1 KELOWNA, BC
STEODTH 230.00m i | | - Viways
PROPOSED BUILDING FOOTPRINT AT GRAGE o o - —_— T ——§ 4%} |
MAIN FLOGR FINISHED FLOOR AKCA UNIT'A' e a = QO (3
P | - |
MAIN FLOOR FINISHED FLOOR AREA UNIT et o g [ ) 11
SECOND FLOGR FINISHED FLOOK APFA UNIT ' il 3. — L
TOTAL FINISHED FLOOR AREA 91098 90,FT. /474.70m2 | 111 = “_H |
FAR, oy L T T e 1) - 1
GARAGE, AREA (INDIVIDUA, 28.50m2 p— i
= . ———— . = ]
VWY SKIRT ARCA (PERMEADLE) = I P IO T et eetees R AR TR e v egtusecs S A IR N (99} 1
ST, COVERAGE 00 - o 7 = 5 |
SITE COVERAGE WITH DRIVEWAY 93.0% ” — N
NT OF PROPOSED DWELLING 0.5m72.3 STOREYS. . 7/ | G |
PARING $TALLS PROVIDED
VISITOR PARKING STALLS PROVIDED.
PRIVAT OPEN SPACE ) s iy s
;
FRONT (NORTH) YARD SETBACK TO Pl 1.500m -
REAR (F0UTH] TARD SETUACK 7.500m e =d N T N e
SIDE (EAST) YARD SCTOACK 4.500m
S108(WEST] YARD SETpACK 000m PROJECT NORTH
i
;;;;;;;; NI SRS
e WK e e Rovmo | oa | orenron
& emmns | o ron eowng
o | uwwn | evioo swoseeT wom
979 LAURIER AVENUE 989 LAURIER AVENUE ¢ | amne | wevecosmoe
o | wiee | oo ron oeveomsen st
i , B
it ! Ly £
b g
M= ]
T |
|
AT o At 1 e
|
|
|
1 I
7 |
: . _
o .ﬁ s,
T Y 4
ot
|
| RESIDENTIAL MULTIFAMILY
|
y u
m w w W 979 & 989 LAURIER AVENUE
“. /, “ KELOWNA, BC V1Y 6A2
LOTS 1 & 2 PLAN 6809
SR T
- = = 3 S SITE
P
ATE
MAY 4, 2013
LANE [r—




5%
£

sz H . B 41
Thisiforms pagt of fevefppmen

Perngﬂt # b?l?)o‘f’ig i

:
e e mnd

_________

<<<<<<

RESIDENTIAL MULTIFAMILY
979 & 989 LAURIER AVENUE
KELOWNA, BC V1Y BAS

LOTS 1 & 2 PLAN G809

ELEVATIONS

MAY 4, 2013

|

2

S Oﬂ ——

8




|

{ a
o |
S—— | c= f
{ |
| A B | IHS DESIGN
| b | 644 ARROWLEAF LANE
| i QO ! KELOWNA, BC
- ;_w...”_g Ens_ A | [} | VIW 4YS
. | S
| i o ! R e P P
| | © | - "
caonoory | = !
- = [yl © of]
| M I
| = |
M -, (] 1
O |
| ) Q. M
_towor acomonoon “ L % {
/ o & f = |
s 7 | m 1 e “ |
o or oo AL —_— QO
- | T
|5 @
- -
| ¢/ B PROJECT NORTH
| E
Wovaon oreaTon
A i -E.imﬁe ”
o ool e
o E5UCD FOR DEVELHAENT ONT
WEST ELEVATION
Scala: 174 = 10
o T
WRKOPROOE T T T T T s e e e e
proatet
RESIDENTIAL MULTIFAMILY
979 & 989 LAURIER AVENUE
KELOWNA, BC V1Y 6A8

LOTS 1 & 2 PLAN 6809

1 e g onin)
5 Hhenm
LTI

T3 ruin) =
TG0 O MM FLOOR WALLS

DRAWNG TITLE

SIDE ELEVATIONS

DATE
MAY 4, 2013 _

OHANNG NUUBO

24 p.0um)
Tr oF Al

3

Oresee |
8

\_/ Seate:




IHS DESIGN
644 ARROWLEAF LANE
KELOWNA, BC
VIW4ys

THESE DRAMNGA AN THE TG
CEDIGN AND MAY NOT BU APROTUCLD
4D WHITTTN PORMIEAION 7+

s

1

-0l

Permit # DO_

|
| PROJECT NORTH

POWDER

 CEILING,

This forms part of development

VG
( ( - ,w 3 {
[ (== v ([T by | Neaion
,.kv. 4 | “
anal ‘ ,‘
p —
o
LIVING ROOM LIVING ROOM
= 9 coue 9 CELING
A LTSN
7 3 5
B,
&% o
% e UNIT &

é

x_._.mﬁm_m

KITCHEN
@ COUNG
PROIEST

et K 3 DINING
O e 144 _H o ma:z.a. 9" x 144’ B nﬂﬁxL
uanm_nrzm T A iy
RESIDENTIAL MULTIFAMILY
979 & 989 LAURIER AVENUE
KELOWNA, BC V1Y 6A%

LOTS 1 & 2 PLAN 6809

DRAWNG TITLE

MAIN FLOOR PLAN

ﬁ

MAIN FLOOR PLAN
/ Scaler 1747w 107
DATE

1
MAY 4, 2013

OnANNG NUBER




s

N
\
\
A
— \,
: \
L
g ENSUITE
il & CEUNG

|
| “LAUNDRY ===
BATH 2
& CELING
b
BEDROOM 3
¥ COUNG
@1 07
{
- " T

Dment

f develoy

Fd

o

a

This forms p

{ Permit # BWS*O'XJ

L

IHS DESIGN
644 ARROWLEAF LANE
KELOWNA, BC
VIW Y5

123

PROJECT NORTH
ROVIBION oIGRIPTON
” 4100 FOR ALONNG
o cTwiom
e 0 DATA
o CRVELGEMENT PERMIT
PROJEET

RESIDENTIAL MULTIFAMILY
979 & 989 LAURIER AVENUE
KELOWNA, BC V1Y 6A%
LOTS 1 & 2 PLAN 6809

DRAWNA TITLE

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

DATE.

MAY 4, 2013

OMANNG NUBUR




124

.ll.illl :

wa1e

g e || 4| panaa
§

| il
_: I

S i,

rop o oo rck AL, i

s

KLTCHEN,

SECTION
Scale: 1747 = 10"

SRIEALUEIRL (O nooesysten ) ELOORSYSTEM
i — T T

el : Y T -

i I s,
R wnine Wi o toxc —
e
PO AT W LT RS
e
st o aeseni

DS - it s it T
. B N R TS, (2> wammonwm,

it P way - (&) sousrme rounpamion

e o 00T O M 5 ek et
s

A

OMDATON WL T ot 117 WD RGULATION AN 104 OB ATIEITES O O ek WP - O,
E o ity
S ————— s, . :

. e sor i 1 aws. s @ INTERIORLOAD © 1727 ORYWALL (PAINTED)

ey o BEARING WAl i a1 o

e

R el Loy S SR el b i e g A T HAWE AT ARG OF 1 O W Sy
WAL o e s A SO OF T WIS G5 PUIER: AL T UANEASTU A OGOy
DETALATON o AL i, W€ 40 TR, ST ekt e P

RSN 0 THE AT 5 CONALCE W 10 KELCVA A, SR COMRARL O - (7> sunonemr
P p Rt
5 r—— () nmsmosrovon
23 CONIMM ALL DIMENZONS Q1T PRIOR TO BULINNING CONSTIUCTION BEAEIC WAL
-
S () ssmssrcomsemeas
5y i ypnn S PTG AL R AR
“ st rosomr A
w i
p S i " - T

E APPROVED LAVOUT

+ 172" DRYWALL (TEXTURED) IN FINISHED ARCAS ONLY
+ REPLR TO APPROVED FLOGR LAYOUT DIAGRAM

MIN. R-28 BATTS IN AREAS OVER LOWER GARAGE.
6 MIL POLY VAPOUR DARRIER

5" CONCRETE FROST WALL

RIGID INSULATION

+ 07X 16° CONTINUOUS CONCRETE FOOTING
+ 2 ROWS. 108 AR CONTINUOUS
+ 27 CLEAR'TO REDAR FROM BOTTOM OF FOOTING.

- UNDXCAVATED EARTH
- 6" PERIMETER DRAIN W/ MIN. 0” GRAVEL COVER
- PROVIDE MINIAUM 24° FROST PROTECTION

- " CONCRETE SLAD (20 MPA MIN)

+ 10W BARS (0 (6° EW. IN TILED FLOOR ARCAS
+ 6 MIL POLY LAPVED NOT LESS THAN 177

~ MINIHUM 4° CLEAN GRANULAR MATERIAL

- UNEXCAVED EARTH

IHS DESIGN
644 ARROWLEAF LANE
KELOWNA, BC
VIW Y5

THESD DHAMNGS A THE GXCLUSIVT, PROPRTY GF 11
OEGIGN AND MAY NOT BF RUROGUCLD OR USED WTNOUT
EAPREZIED WHITTON PURMISSION FROM TH SAME.

PN

PROJECT NORTH
sovaon | oarn | oucapron
A Wzl | 152U00 FOR NESONNG,
[ w3 | REAILD PROIECT WO
. acna | REVIZUD BT DATA
o Wi | B2ULD RO DEVELOPMENT PERMT
pROIEST
RESIDENTIAL MULTIFAMILY
979 & 988 LAURIER AVENUE

KELOWNA, BC V1Y 6A9
LOTS 1 &2 PLAN G809

DRAWING TG
TYPICAL SECTION
DATE
MAY 4, 2013
OANG NUUBER




125

s o e ivecHE e
@A....w_ Lo e i e s S \‘-5..5546.?:5
- woc ooy _
O e i
R S———
oo
s o
IHS DESIGN
\ | v £44 ARROWLEAF LANE
. , - | - 0 . 4 KELOWNA, BC
i oo - ] | s VIW 4Y5
m A ﬁ S
- i | g ,
i ! il " ©
oo 54 o b | 2 A.)Y |
chitem L oo
A=
(77 ) EAST ELEVATION SOUTH ELEVATION o) @ | |
Scala: 174" » 10" Seale; 174" = 107 8“ ,
sl <4 |
™ @
| = = .
| LU _ v
= 8 = |
] , PROJECT NORTH
195 w = |
I~ = o |
len &= & | o
.
@ WEST ELEVATION C NORTH ELEVATION
Scalo: 1747 = 107 Scalor 174" = 1907
rar -
- |
H) N v
I
| N
W g AN
| ] N / ,....w
7 N 2 |/
Oy &
N - Phinct
e
7 RESIDENTIAL MULTIFAMILY
/
 GARAGE BAY 2 979 & 989 LAURIER AVENUE
% s N KELOWNA, BC V1Y 6A9
] |
LOTS 1 & 2 PLAN 8809
7 o T
it A AN ! 7
i /// | S g
| N N 1 DOUBLE GARAGE
| X N i
N |
N 4
N e
N | MAY 4, 2013
N < 2 7
e L JIQIIMMHHI.:IL,IV Goa i onma RN
i 57 , 7
| o
mj DOUBLE GARAGE FLOOR PLAN 8
\__/ Saaler 174"~ 1507




Toror i
o= = TR
4 R IHS DESIGN
iy 644 ARROWLEAF LANE
- — KELOWNA, BC
— Viways
............ o] {
PN |
R gkt o= {
. (@] |l
1) — A I
“/v EAST ELEVATION ) SOUTH ELEVATION 1 - |
JScule: 174w 1407 JScalo: 174 = 1407 et (4o 3
| D o 1 |
e |
Potscuas s LmTe o | {
\l ATPHALT SHINOLES (TYH) vJ 1
‘\ S
— |
O s I}
e . =
W £ _
ﬂrl \mv { PROJECT NORTH
= —— |

ROviooN

iihe

2
E

NORTH ELEVATION
Scalor 17475 1407

EVATION.
SER

) WEST
A V Scale:

RESIDENTIAL MULTIFAMILY

|
| m»»n»om BAY 1 | 979 & 989 LAURIER AVENUE

KELOWNA, BC V1Y BAS
LOTS 1 & 2 PLAN 6809

RAWING TITLE

SINGLE GARAGE

MAY 4, 2012

T
5 u SINGLE GARAGE FLOOR PLAN m
F\ Scale: 174 = 107




| "} .
il
o
AR
iy
o
| Clin, o
=N
138
% g M
go &
SE C
b-‘g.., Im
2252 ¢ ‘
Gl )2 : {
- =1 |

127




00 — FRODUSTON\S20 — DRANNGS\521 ~ CURRENT\S112037-000_PLANTAGILAN DAG

PASI - BS NTEROI\S113\037-CO0_WENS_LAURERAVE?

128

PRIVATE WALKWAY ALL HARDSCAPE OFF
TO ENTRANCE thmNmm L <m SITE IMPROVEMENTS
[—PROPOSED STREET TREE ARE RESPONSIBILITY
L ON STREET PARKING DBFENIREERS
(8Y
CITY OF KELOWNA STANDARD
SIDEWALK (BY ENGINEERS) [rroERTYLNe
: 5 w?,.:m SEB\ED ; 3 s
] 500 ¢ o | ° -~ i dl

sob

OPAQUE FENCE

3m x 3m PATIO WTRELLIS
(BY ARCHITECT)

PORCH I PORCH

r | L
] 1
A [

PROPOSED

UNITS

GRAVEL PATH TO BACKYARD

4,15m x 3m PATIO w/TRELLIS
a< ARCHITECT)

— GRAVEL PATH TO
BACKYARD
[— SHRUB PLANTING

PROPOSED
UNITS

Y

1.5m DECORATIVE FENCE 2.0m OPAQUE
(BETWEEN LOTS)
I—— CONCRETE PLANK PATH EXISTING
3m x Im PATIO WITRELLIS [—4.15m x Im PATIO WITRELLIS
_\a< ARCHITECT) (BY ARCHITECT)

Il

_

l

)

Om umocni_sm FENCE

GARAGE

f,“”

GARAGE

GARAGE

CARAGE

1.5m vmnom>d<m 1nznﬂ

ﬁiwmzczsi “J
z.:q_za, { ! ,,

I

GARAGE

/

BOWES ST.

GENERAL NOTES:

1. PLANT MATERIALS AND CONSTRUCTION METHODS SHALL CONFORM TO MINIMUM STANDARDS ESTABLISHED IN.THE B.C...

LANDSCAPE STANDARDS, PUBLISHED BY B,
THE LANDSCAPE DESIGN DESIGNATED HEREI
AND SIZE.

TA AND B.CSLA.

»

AVAILABILITY.

MULCH.

6. THIS DRAWING DEPICTS FORM AND CHARACTER AND IS TO BE USED FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT SUBMISSION ONLY.

IT IS NOT INTENDED FOR USE AS A CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT.

STANDARDS.

REPRESENTATIVE PLANTING LIST:

Botanical Name Common Name

Troes
Acer rubrum October Glory
Cornus aiternifotia Pagods Dogwood
Syringareticulata Wory SitK tvory Siik Tree Lila
Shruba
Barterls thunborg Rose Glow' Roso Clow Barberry w02 Potted 1.25m x 1.0m
“Beorberts (hunbergl Centry' Royal Burgundy Sarberry 02 Potted 0.3m x 1.0m
Wintor Gom Wintor 90z Potted 1.2m»12m
Cornus sericea Farrow' Arctio Fire Red Twig Dogwood 502 Potted  1.25m x 1.0m
niporvs communis Esa’ Enuss Juniper 02 Potted 0.3mx15m
Taxus mocta Hckil' Hicks Yow 02 Potted 3.0m »1.0m
"2 Potted 0.6mx 1.0m
Grusses/Peronnials/Groundaover |
“Arctostaphylos uva-urs! Kinnikinick o1 Potted 0.1mx0Sm
“Calamagrosiis scutifiora Karl Foerstor 01 Potted  1.5mx 0.75m
“Ewomymus ‘Cotoratus” Purple Loaf Wintercreeper 01 Petted  0.3m x 0.75m
Festucaglouca Eljah Blue" Elljoh Blue Fosous L] Potted 0.3mx0.3m|
“Lavandula Munstead” Munstoad Lavender 0 Potted  0.4m x 0.6m
L Potted 1.5mx12m’
Penaisetum. ny 901 Petted  0.5mx0.5m
Colddstrum’ L] Potted 0.7Smx0.6m__
Caradonna o 01 Pottod  0.75m x 0.6m
“Secum spectatite ‘Autumn Joy' Autumn Joy Sedum o Potted 0.6m x 0.6m

PLANT LIST NOTES:

1. * PLANTS WITH ™ ARE INDICATED IN THE IN THE CITY GF KELOWNA "OKANAGAN INSPIRED PLANT LIST"

REPRESENTATIVE IMAGES OF PLANTS / PAVING:

LINE

EXISTING TREES NOTED ON PLAN ARE TO BE PROTECTED. PROTECTION PRACTICES TO MEET CITY OF KELOWNA

ALL OFF SITE TREES ARE TO RECEIVE 8 CUBIC.METERS OF SOIL AS PER CITY OF KELOWNA STANDARDS.

1S CONCEPTUAL BUT REFLECTS THE MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE QUALITY
PLANT MATERIAL SELECTIONS ARE CONCEPTUAL ONLY. FINAL PLANTING SELECTIONS MAY VARY Umvmzu.zo UPON
‘SHRUB AND TREE CLUSTER AREAS TO BE PLACED WITHIN PLANTING BEDS. ALL PLANTING BEDS SHALL HAVE APPROVED

AN AUTOMATIC TIMED IRRIGATION SYSTEM SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ALL LANDSCAPED AREAS. OFF SITE IRRIGATION

AREA

0SED STREET TREE

ITAL TREE

=3
@ E TREE
vﬁ/m
5 &

S ot

GRAVEL PATH

PATIO (BY ARCHITECT)

CONGRETE PLANK PATH

195UED FOR REVIEW

ounr

DESCHIPTION

IHS DESIGN

RESIDENTAL MULTIFAMILY 979 & 989 LAURIER AVENUE

bow et e

PLANTING PLAN

\P/// MMM GROUP | ==

oaRCT 0.
LAMDBEARE ARGHITECTURE |URUAN DEGIGHPLANNING | EHAINEE
540 L Ave, Kelawna, BC V1Y 0101 200.890,1934 1 250802 A4 wow.vnin.ca

et o,

1:100 _ll\_ OF 2




CTCN\S20 — DRAWAGS\S21 - CURRENT\S113037-000_PLANTAGALAN DAG

INTEROT\S113\037-CO0_WENS_LAURERKENUENSD) — FRO

PAST — B

129

LAURIER AVE

ON STREET PARKING

40 Loon Ava, Keliatia, BC V1!

(BY
PROPERTY LINE ErE
7 % G557 e 2 it o
G =2 %05 4 8554 %% A N 0% %% 2 X0 =
I N & RS Z % L G XA Ay | =
2% G %% R 7 2404 N A %% 1
> ) e i i N O
7 [ | | atamteietens | [REyR— T = ——- | e e | R % %% >
AT = = | i 1= = | =N 3R
® Z 5574 T —
> ] _Il_ I—a “ ] _II._ I3 “ \.\\\\n\ O
| I | | 4557 ;A
% % %
“ DT R "Dk -
N ! ! 7 =] 55 ,
| 11> =01 1| 40 - =
LJ | ] o %7 ) =
PROPOSED PROPOSED o 2% = )
UNITS UNITS 7 — =
! \\\\ ] .\IIJ. ~-~
> > % " R
o % [ {8 S
> - . 7 ‘H @
g ® g
I
\ S
[
W
/ W
7 % \\w 254 )
7 Z 7. i 7
7 1 =7 s <
7 - % L 4 G G55 Z
| Lt | %
| i Il Il w\x Czwm_mzz HYDROZONE LEGEND:
| o i L
CARAGE | oarace GARAGE ! | ! ! CARACE GARAGE GARAGE Z / § e s
| | | | | e o
7 MEDIUM WATER USAGE
L ! D 4 s,
| | Pop ' % HIGH WATER USAGE (ON SITE)
| | I ' | 7 TOTALAREA - 180m?
bz 7% HIGH WATER USAGE (OFF SITE)
%% TOTALAREA  -144m®
®| 7
7.
LANE
(e s e e e
RESIDENTAL MULTIFAMILY 979 & 989 LAURIER AVENUE T R O ZONE PLAN
IR O AN\ vvm Group | =
6. Dare bEscHIPTION IHS DESIGN LANDEEAPE AHCHITEGTURE usaN o o o0 L=2 o2




CITY OF KELOWNA

APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A:

H

Development Permit No.: DP13-0182

EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: RU6 — Two Dwelling Housing
WITHIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA: Character Neighbourhood Development Permit Area
ISSUED TO: IHS Design (Chris Vickery) (Owner: A J Weins Develbpment Group Ltd. Inc. No. BC0798391)

LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE: 979 & 989 Laurier Avenue

LOT SECTION DL TOWNSHIP DISTRICT PLAN
LEGAL 182 138" OoDYD 6809
DESCRIPTION:
~SCOPE OF APPRO\)AL
[1 This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Mumc1pahty as described above, and any and all buildings,

[

O

structures and other development thereon.

This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the ‘Municipality applicable thereto, except as
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below.

Applicants for Development and Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a Permit limits
the applicant to be:in strict compliance with regulations:of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw unless
specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit. ‘No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be granted
by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with'bylaw provisions and which may not have been identified
as required Variances by the applicant or City staff.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

a) “The dimensions and siting of the bu1ld1ng to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with
Schedule “A”;

b) The exterior design and ﬁmsh of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with
Schedule "B";

c) Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C";

d) The applicant be required to post with the City a Landscape Performance Security deposit in the form of a
“Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the landscaping, as determined by a
professional landscaper;

e) The lots be consolidated prior to issuance of the Development Permit.

f) The applicant be required to complete the above-noted condition No. 4 within 180 days of Council approval of
the Development Permit application in order for the permit to be issued.

130




-2- DP13-0182

The development shall commence by and in accordance with an approved Building Permit within ONE YEAR of
the date of the Municipal Council authorization resolution.

PERFORMANCE SECURITY:

As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, Council is holding the security set out below to ensure that
development is carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit. Should any interest be
earned upon the security, it shall accrue to the Permittee and be paid to the Permittee if the security is returned.
The condition of the posting of the security is that should the Permittee fail to carry out the development hereby
authorized, according to the terms and conditions of this Permit within the time provided, the Municipality may use
the security to carry out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any surplus shall be paid over to the
Permittee, or should the Permittee carry out the development Permitted by this Permit within the time set out
above, the security shall be returned to the Permittee. There is filed accordingly:

(a) Cash in the amount of $ N/A :
(b) A Certified Cheque in the amount of N/A :
(c) An Irrevocable Letter of Credit in the amount of _$74,812.50

Before any bond or security required under this Permit is reduced or released, the Developer will provide the City
with a statutory declaration certifying that all labour;”material, workers' compensation and other taxes and costs
have been paid.

DEVELOPMENT:

The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and
provisions of this Permit and any plans and:specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part
hereof.

If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permlt within one year of the date of
this Permit, this Permit shall lapse.

This Permit is not transferable unless specifically permitted by the Municipality. The authorization to transfer
the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution.

THIS Permit IS NOT ‘A BUILDING Permit.
APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT:

| hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in
support of this:Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects. Upon issuance of the
Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, | covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually
indemnify the Municipality against:

(@) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by
whomsoever brought; by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit.

(b) All:costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of
engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property
owned in-whole orin part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged,
directly or:indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain.

| further covenant and agree that should | be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit,
the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any
building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works
or other works called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and
Divisional Director of Community Planning & Real Estate.

131



-3~ DP13-0182

Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, | undertake to notify the
Community Planning & Real Estate Department immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the
application.

I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT.

Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent Date
Print Name in Bold Letters Telephone No.
APPROVALS:

ISSUED BY THE COMMUNITY PLANNING & REAL ESTATE DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE
DAY OF __ 2014, BY THE DIVISIONAL DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY PLANNING & REAL ESTATE SERVICES.

Doug Gilchrist
Divisional Director of Community Planning & Real Estate

132



CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10976

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP13-0017 -
Tamdan Ventures Ltd., Inc. No. BC0862314
901-911 Stremel Road

A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500".

The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1. THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 - Official
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future
Land Use designation of portions of Lot 1, Section 34, Township 26, ODYD, Plan !
EPP35554 located on Stremel Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the Commercial (COMM) and
Industrial (IND) designations to the Service Commercial (SC) designation as per Map
“A” attached to and forming part of this bylaw;

2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.

Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 23" day of June, 2014,

Considered at a Public Hearing on the 15" of July, 2014.

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 15" of July, 2014.

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

/ 133



Amend the OCP for a portion of the subject property
| from Industrial (IND) to Service Commercial (5C).

895-897

Subject Property Notes:

Amend the OCP for a portion of the subject property |
¢l from Commercial (COMM) to Service Commercial (5C).

!

MAP “A” OCP AMENDMENT

OCP13-0017
- Commercial Sj Legal Parcel
Industrial D Subject Property
- Major Park and Open Space \\“ COMM to SC ‘4;“ V‘_k
Resource Protection R IND to sC (. )

\
This map is for general information only.

A
: 4
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its Clty Of ".‘.:,"‘.’

accuracy. All information should be verified. Ke I own f

[ 15 30
= Metres Rev. Jun 12, 2014




CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10977
Z13-0040 - Tamdan Ventures Ltd., Inc. No. BC0862314
901-911 Stremel Road

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning
classification of portions of Lot 1, Section 34, Township 26, ODYD, Plan EPP35554
located on Stremel Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the C9-Tourist Commercial zone and
the 12-General Industrial zone to the C10-Service Commercial zone as per Map “B”
attached to and forming part of this bylaw.
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 23™ day of June, 2014.
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 15" day of July, 2014.
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 15" day of July, 2014.
Approved under the Transportation Act this 29'" day of July, 2014.

Robyn Clifford
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation)

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

135



Rezone a portion of the subject property
from 12 General Industrial
to C10 Service Commercial.

CTOCR - o

12

Subject Property Notes:

Rezone a portion of the subject property
from C9 Tourist Commercial
to C10 Service Commercial.

C3LP

MAP “B* PROPOSED ZONING

File #213-0040

r.._..] Legal Parcel C8to C10 ';;:‘::Q‘
T— i/ A

[ subject Property [11] 1210 10 14'1‘5;

. N2

This map fs for general Information only. Clty of “;‘;'44“

The City of Ketowna does not guarantee its K

accuracy. AL infarmation shauld be verified. e I owna

o 15 s

= Metres Rev. Jun 12, 2014

136



REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: 8/11/2014 KEIOW“a

RIM No. 1250-30

To: City Manager

From: Urban Planning Department (RS)

Application: DP13-0181 Owner: ?—h’?é\ﬂﬁéNB\é%gggiis LTD.,
Address: 911 Stremel Road Applicant: GTA Architecture
Subject: Development Permit Application

Existing OCP Designation: Commercial/Industrial

Proposed OCP Designation:  Service Commercial

Existing Zone: C9 - Tourist Commercial / 12 - General Industrial

Proposed Zone: C10 - Service Commercial

1.0 Recommendation

THAT final adoption of Official Community Plan Amending Bylaw No.10976 be considered by
Council;

AND THAT final adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No.10977 be considered by Council;
AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP13-0181 for Lot 1
Section 34, Township 26, ODYD Plan EPP35554, located on 911 Stremel Road, Kelowna, BC

subject to the following:

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general
accordance with Schedule "A”;

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land, be in general
accordance with Schedule “B”;

3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “C”;
4. The applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance Security deposit in

the form of a “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the landscaping,
as determined by a professional landscaper;

137



DP13-0181 - Page 2

AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted conditions within 180
days of Council’s approval of the Development Permit Application in order for the permit to be
issued.

2.0 Purpose

To consider the form and character of a new car dealership.

3.0 Urban Planning

Urban Planning staff is supportive of the form and character of the proposed development as it is
generally consistent with Comprehensive Development Permit Guidelines contained in the City’s
Official Community Plan. The building and supporting landscaping place considerable design
effort on the site’s Highway 97 frontage, which contributes to the development of an improved
highway corridor.

The proposed development also meets the requirements of the Zoning Bylaw, and the applicant is
not seeking any variances.

4.0 Proposal
4.1 Background

The majority of the subject property is the former home of the “Malibu Grand Prix” Go-Kart
Racing business.

4.2 Project Description

The applicant proposed to construct an automobile dealership (Orchard Ford) at the intersection
of Hwy.97 North and Stremel Road. The new building proposed would be located towards the
eastern side of the site and midway between north and south property boundaries.

The proposed building is two storeys in height with show room, office, and service and parts
areas at grade with a second storey office area above. The overall building area is 2869m”. The
design of the building has been directed by the Ford Motor Company’s Millennium program
standard which sets design standards for Ford dealerships. The exterior of the building is
comprised of white aluminium composite panels with low E curtain walls of window glazing.

In stark contrast to the relatively simple building elevations, the applicants have proposed a site
design and landscape plan allows for generous landscaping within the sites parking areas and
visual interest is added to the street frontages with 4 landscaped vehicle “playgrounds” for
display and marketing.

4.3 Site Context

The subject property is situated in an area in transition with a number of transportation related
project currently in the planning/pre-construction phases including the 6 lane widening of
Hwy.97N and the extension of Mayfair Road through the Advanced Precast site to the east. The
proposed land use (automotive sales) is consistent /compatible with surrounding land uses.

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows:

138



DP13-0181 - Page 3

Orientation Zoning Land Use

North RU1 - Large Lot Housing Single Family Home

. Advanced Pre-Cast & other construction
East 12 - General Industrial .

related businesses
. . McCurdy Corner Plaza - Movie Theatre,

South C3 - Community Commercial Bowling, Pub, Furniture/Appliance Sales
West C9 - Tourist Commercial Scandia

-911 Stre

7 I J / 7 e, AOR A
i} :} e g J o SO0 ! \ m igu!gﬂ‘ RU159115574
,/' $ £ £ -4 3010 i - / 1 i v -

-’;,;—/JJ % -‘i- lﬁ P
A ) Wk | R
\J L 4\ - E
‘_,m - I'

Subject Property Map: 901 mel Road

it ey

1100

P ST =

(A)

Cityo

1 Kelowna - Accuracy and comectness not guarantead.

4.4  Zoning Analysis

Zoning Analysis Table
CRITERIA C10 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL
Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations
Lot Area 1000m* 20900m*
Lot Width 40m 96m
Lot Depth 30m 145m
Development Regulations
Floor Area Ratio 0.65 0.18
Height 12m 66.75m
Front Yard 2Zm 9m
Side Yard (west) 2m 49m
Side Yard (east) Om 9m
Rear Yard Om 31m

139



DP13-0181 - Page 4

Site Coverage (Buildings) | 60% 11.85%
Other Regulations
Minimum Parking Requirements 82 stalls 103 stalls
Bicycle Parking 11 11
Loading Space 3m’ 3m*

5.0 Current Development Policies
5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)
Development Process

Compact Urban Form.' Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1.

Retention of Commercial Land.? In order to ensure that the City’s commercial land supply is not
eroded, where the OCP Bylaw 10500 indicated a commercial land use designation for the
property, the expectation would be that there be no net loss of commercial space on the site as
a result of the redevelopment to include other uses.

Urban Design Development Permit Areas (Chapter 14) - Revitalization Design Guidelines

Objectives

e Use appropriate architectural features and detailing of buildings and landscapes to
define area character;

e Convey a strong sense of authenticity through high quality urban design that is
distinctive of Kelowna;

e Enhance the urban centre’s main street character in a manner consistent with the
area’s character;

e Provide for a scale and massing of buildings that promotes an enjoyable living,
pedestrian, working, shopping and service experience;

e Encourage an appropriate mix of uses and housing types and sizes;

e Design and facilitate beautiful public open spaces that encourage year-round
enjoyment;

e Create open, architecturally-pleasing and accessible building facades to the street;
and

¢ Improve existing streets and sidewalks to promote alternative transportation.

Guidelines

Relationship to the Street (Objective 2.0)

e Ensure streetwall height is proportional (0.75:1 maximum) to the width of the street
as measured from building face to building face. Any development that exceeds this
height must utilize a podium and step back above the streetwall;

e Provide for public movement, street furniture, and building access zones to be
incorporated into sidewalks adjacent to development;

' City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Chapter 5 (Development Process), Policy 5.2.3.
City of Kelowna Official Community Plan. Chapter 5 (Development Process), Policy 5.24.2.

140



6.0
6.1

DP13-0181 - Page 5

o Design buildings to occupy 100% of a property’s frontage along streets, eliminating
elements that disrupt the streetwall such as off-street parking, dead spaces, empty
lots, or driveways;

o Coordinate building setbacks with adjacent sidewalks to increase the space for public
use (i.e., utilize a building setback or building indentation as a patio space or seating
area, incorporate corner rounding into the public realm with specialized paving
treatment and street furniture);

e Provide a high quality public realm consistent with the character of urban
development (i.e. incorporate focal points/plazas, pedestrian pathways, parks and
open space, enhanced streetscapes, and landscaping).

Technical Comments
Building & Permitting Department

Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any Building
Permit(s) for new construction

Demolition permits are required for any existing structures.

This building may be required to be sprinklered throughout. It appears that this building has
three major occupancies. Any proposed deviance from this requirement of BCBC 12 requires
an approved alternate solution report approved prior to the release of the Development
Permit.

A Geotechnical report is required to address the sub soil conditions at time of building permit
application.

A Building Code analysis is required for the structure at time of building permit applications,
but the following items may affect the form and character of the building(s):

The British Columbia Building Code (BCBC 2012) may define this development as two separate
buildings with possibly three separate major occupancies (D & E in building 1 and D & F2 in
building #2). If a firewall is to be utilized, a complete building code analysis would be
required to be reviewed prior to complete comments (at time of building permit application)
being provided for the spatial separation between the two buildings. Fire shutters would be a
requirement and hooked to the fire alarm system to allow for the unprotected openings
between buildings and a 900mm High non combustible fire wall must be constructed to
separate the two structures. A 900mm high firewall parapet will affect the form and
character of the building(s).

The exits from the upper floor levels do not appear to meet minimum code requirements
(number of exits, travel distance, etc). The code analysis is to contain a plan showing travel
distances along with a code compliance analysis for the interconnected floors, 2nd stories,
horizontal exits, convenience stairs and rated stairwell exits. This can be submitted at time
of building permit application, but additional rated stairs may be required depending on the
code analysis, which may affect the form and character of the building(s).

Size and location of all signage to be clearly defined as part of the development permit

Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit
applications

141



DP13-0181 - Page 6

6.2 Development Engineering Department
Addressed as part of Z13-0040.

6.3 Bylaw Services

No concerns.

6.4 Fire Department

Fire department access, fire flows 150lt/sec, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City
of Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. Requirements of the Fire and Life Safety Bylaw 10760 shall
be met. Additional comments will be required at the building permit applications.

6.5 Irrigation District - BMID

Addressed as part of Z13-0040.

6.6 Fortis - Electric

There are primary electrical distribution facilities within Stremel Road and Highway 97 N. The
applicant is responsible for costs associated with any changes to the subject properties' existing
service, if any, as well as the provision of appropriate land rights where required.

6.8 Infrastructure Planning

As per the Works and Services Bylaw street trees are required in the boulevard on both Highway 9
and Stremel Road. Boulevard and sidewalk widths, materials and locations should match what has
already been constructed to the south.

6.9  Ministry of Transportation

Concerns addressed as part of Z13-0040.

7.0  Application Chronology

Date of Application Received: November 8, 2013

Public Notification & Consultation: February 28 - March 10, 2014
Date of MOTI rezoning comments: May 27, 2014

Public Hearing/2" and 3" Readings for rezoning: July 15, 2014

Report prepared by:

Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager

Approved for Inclusion: Doug Gilchrist, Director, Community Planning & Real Estate

Attachments:
Site Plan

142



DP13-0181 - Page 7

Elevations

Landscape Plan

Development Engineering Report Dated: December 9, 2013
BMID Email Dated: November 20, 2013

143



Page 1 of 3

From: Bob Hrasko [rhrasko@shaw.ca]

Sent: November 20, 2013 10:23 AM

To: Deb Champion

Cc: jschlosser@shawbiz.ca; 'Trena Phillips'; 'Kevin Burtch'

Subject: RE: OCP13-0017,Z13-0040, DP 13-0181 - 901 & 911 Stremel Rd - Water Requirements
Attachments: BMID_Meter-Spec-Costs.pdf

Attention: Deb Champion — City of Kelowna

Referral
Re: OC

Comments from Black Mountain Irrigation District
P13-007, Z12-0040, 901-910 Stremmel Road

Orchard Ford Commercial Development

We have reviewed the referral and have the following information for the City and building/site developer related to
water service:

i

file:///P:/Land%20Use%20Management/1250%20LAND%20USE%20MANAGEMENT/1... 6/10/2014

The area is within the service area of BMID and is subject to the bylaws of the District regarding water supply
and servicing;

The lot is presently serviced by means of a 50mm diameter service line located mid-lot along the north property
line along Stremel Road. This service size may be adequate for the building and lot irrigation, however if a larger
service size is proven to be required by the building mechanical consultant, then the site developer will be
required to fund the installation of a new service line off of the BMID main on Stremel Road. Please note that
the existing main on Stremel is on the close side of the road to the property;

The Building Mechanical Consultant or the Site Civil Consultant is to provide BMID with a Fire Underwriters
Survey calculation that shows the estimated fire demand that will be created by the new building structure. This
calculation is to be certified and sealed by a Professional Engineer that is insured and is registered to practice
within the Province of BC;

The Building Mechanical or Civil Consultant is to advise BMID of the service size from the property line to the
building;

The building will require a water meter. The fees are payable to BMID and the meter would be installed by Corix
Utilities for BMID once the building is constructed and the plumbing is ready for meter installation. Based on a
50mm diameter size, the cost to supply and install a 50mm meter and remote read unit will be $899.55;

The building gross floor area is 2785.6 square meters. In accordance with BMID Bylaw No. 678, Capital
Expenditure Charge applies in the amount of $4500 for the first 150m2 and another $8.00m2 thereafter. The
builder will receive credit for the building area that exists (est. to be 938m2 x $8.00/m2 for 901 Stremel) and
credit for one SF home located at 911 Stremel ($4,500). Cost is estimated as follows:

Total CEC applicable = $4500 + $8.00x(2785.6m2-150m2)= $25,584.00

CEC credits = $4500 +938m2 x $8.00/m2 = (S 12,004.00)

TOTAL APPLICABLE CECs $13,580.00

See photo below for area estimate

144



Page 2 of 3

IIMWM&'\HO‘W

wioofhews v
939,31 [SoreMetrs  v]

7. Latecomers Charges apply for these two lots for water main improvements that were carried out in 2009 by a
third party, to improve fire flow to the Stremel Road. The BMID Latecomers Bylaw is Bylaw No. 684. The
charges accrue and are permitted to increase over time with inflation at a rate of 2.50%. The Latecomers
charges apply to the building area increase. The original building area is permitted a credit area of 938m2 and
the home is permitted a credit area of 150m2. Total building area subject to latecomers is 1,697.6m2. The
Latecomer charge is $3.86/m2 if paid in 2013 = $6,552.74 If paid in 2014, the rate is $3.96/m2 = 56,722.50.

8. Asthe two lot will be amalgamated, the service for the SF lot home must be fully disconnected with the
corporation stop shut off at the water main on Stremel Road;

9. An additional fire hydrant may be necessary and we will await recommendations on fire coverage from the
mechanical or civil consultant;

10. A connection fee will apply for the new account. The fee covers inspection time and administrative costs to set
up a new account. The connection fee for commercial/industrial connections is $350.00.

11. There will be engineering effort required to review the design drawings and check the water distribution system
fire flow with the computer model. A lump sum engineering fee of $200 is applicable.

12. The applicant will be required to come into the BMID office with this information and fill out an “Application for
Building” form. The form will summarize charges and requirements listed above. Once fees are paid, a “Water
Service Certificate” (Water Letter) will be issued by BMID.

13. Itis noted that actual building areas must be confirmed, which may result in modifications in the above
estimated charges

Please contact this office if you have further questions.
Thank you

Bob Hrasko, P.Eng.

Administrator

Black Mountain Irrigation District
285 Gray Road,

Kelowna, BC V1X 1W8

file:///P:/Land%20Use%20Management/1250%20LAND%20USE%20MANAGEMENT/1... 6/10/2014



Map Output Page 1 of 1

OCP13-0017 § L

Z13-0040

DP13-0181

Subject Property m ,_[J_w
J_../'\ﬁ.

] ] Ly o [+ I'h .
; PLAN 13343 PLAN “3pgza |1+ @

& PLAN 10770

3
‘4 3236 [,

3| 4 3 ...
598?..

A
PLAN 83148

DY
B
/ ’7 ------

10
PLAN 3236

PLAN 88474

FINDLAY RD

cp
: } 3
B W

D FERIIE B e 5

: /B AN 22054 s P2 BU
A 169 Met 4
ity of Kelowna -Accura & M e [\ \s
[Map: 847 x 913 m -- Scale 1:5,000 2013-11-08

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

146

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Overview_Map&Clie... 2013-11-08



sy T cioz A, (B eSS
£ LIS
1810 - ¢TI Jq ##ed
ﬂm 1 v ni
wgo'LC ‘40 WO'0 QYA ¥VIH NIN #CQEQOmm\rmU %O ﬁm mﬂ.{hO% wwfrv{
WOE'SE ‘WZY'eE :dONd "LS ONDINYTS WOHS W02 'WO'0 :QXVA 3AIS NI
LS2HSNIA00 w9 :doNd WO {GUVA LNOYS NI —_— —
81°0 :dO¥d $9°0 “OLLVY V3V YOO XYW 4 IIL.. - | WJ laimi Bl Q
%S’} :dO¥d %09 IOVHIN0D LS XVIN 1 m,__ L B B | VO
i WQidO¥d  SAIMOLS € HO WOZL 40 NISSTTIHL SI -LHOIZH XVIN e B0 ENddl ] ey
SNOLLYINO3Y LNIWAOTIAIA S'0L'¥H
28 ‘'YNMOT3N
- SAOHS ¥IVd3Yd LNIWINDI ANV IALLOWOLAY ®
STIVS HONIN ONY nv pidoyd
NZé m;rw TANIYNIS LS1T HO4 MYIAB 40 Z'04'7k NOLLO3S 335 ‘3SN TVIONIWNOD TWH3NID
JHSYTVIa MIN - S3SN IVAIONING Z0bYE
MIOJMVHDN0 TVIOHIWWOD 3DIAU3S - 04 - 017k NOLLIZS
—— wE'L LHOEH NI
SO w'L HLONTT NIW
- " W0 HLOMNIN  ONDIMYd TTOADIE
et st SOUVANVLS INSWJOTIA3Q 978
. $AG ALA $30VdS £ :dO¥d
o (S30VdS £ =001/9'0X6ELL) VIO WOOL/F'0 :ll SSYIO
oS {1v.3¥) €8 T18vL
"I PoHRLY pemosoduwo, Auey $30VAS ¥:dO¥d  SIIAOTANI 04 ¥3d | YO V49 ZW0OL ¥3d 04'0 1l SSY1D
©8 318VL
$30VdS 40 ¥IANNN 478
m ONIYVA TTOADIE L33ULS340 '8
u. VIN :dO¥d wo'E HLAWM GILONYLSEO SIAIS Z NI vis
VIN :d0¥d WSz HLQIM GILONULSEO IAIS L NIN (3 A3AEns o A IR TV
VIN :dOY¥d wO'S HLONTT NIN :
$30VdS TIVINS 0F :dO¥d S3OVAS ZE = ¥'0 X SAOVAS D3Y 28 . pred 226269 (052) :INOHd
%07 UIBWNN XYW :321S QIN 3dVISONVT 219 ALA "8 'YNMOTIN
wo'Z :doyd WO'Z :LHOITH NIN EN muzwd,zi._ V6sZ
16 wo'g :do¥d wO'9 :HIONTT NIW ASN3Q T3N-LOVINOD
% SYINOLSND we'Z :dOud WSZHIGMNIN (e AGN3A STIVNNNY
sz :44V1S SLHvd ONV 3DIAN3S 32S 4R —
oy mﬂ(._.m 301440 ANV STvS $30VASCidO¥d  QIWINOIM LON 001 /13000 ONIQTING '8 ¥3d (¢ SNOLLOIS ONIGIING 25V
SNOS¥3d) QVOT LNV. WI0L 0378VSIQ IHL VO SIOVAS ONDIVA L'H'8 qung 15
NOSHad) QVOT LN m:onx,vﬁ LULE SNOLVAZT3 ONIGTING v woo'uB(sopoYSYIUDGBeIuoX T YN ..oﬁe.iﬁgss_:ﬁ_ L]
SNOUVATIAONIQTING  1'vy (062) : 99E7-6.6 (052) XV '8991-6.6 (052) :INOHd
(OHL+WS0E+93Y 59) oldie L1y ZvE2-0Lv (052) 3NOHA 26 (05
i AV1dSIQ LINQ0Yd + NYId B0 ONODa8 6Z1 ALA “O'8 'YNMOT3X 05 A "0.8 WNAGTDS
$30VdS £0} :03S0d0¥d TVLOL NV1d 30074 NIV 133418 SIM3I €SEL '10Z ey QVOY OIIIIONIYS 6881 - EvT
$30VdS Z8 :03NIND3Y WVIOL g SNINIW3S VINIZ :LOVINOD Y3SSOHIS NHOP
3MU03dSNId ‘NOIS30 3L1S HON3E R ISMONOJINOL ANNVO :LOV.NOD
Q3YINO3Y ¥4 4 ¥ SIIONVANDDO HOMV €4 9 24 NIIMLIE NOLLYEVAIS Juid 04'H'E $30VdS 9 = ZX004/ZW6EL L A33H5 ¥3A00 OOV p 017 LI3LHOYV DISMOYOJWOL ANNYD
$301330 dN-3LIM 3DIANIS ONY S3D1440 SIS IVHOLOAUHIIY 3dvVISaNvI TIVHALIIUHONY
aid Ulw Sy SSHOOTS - 3dvesoc =ZXSAVE 81 - ”
JTBLLSNBWOONON N0 TTBLLSNEWOO - AVE 30IAY3S ¥3d Z 'SAOHS HIVA3Y IALLOWOLAY OL'8 TTaVL SONIMVNA 40 1S SINVLINSNOD
SLIIULS Z ONIOVA SATHOLS 31 Zul 0004 VUV XVIN - $3OVAS ¥IBWNN NINZH8
SATUOLS Z XYW - ONIYUVE TTOIHIA L1IFULS 24O 18
7w 628 'SATYOLS Z ‘£ dNOU 'T8TTE
ONIGYOT NV ONIXHVd - 8 NOILOIS
Q31HOddNS NVHL ST LON (ONRIVIEAVO -
Uil Ui Sy ONIIED - wo'G :doud ¥ TIAT1 L6 AVMHOIH) QHVA QIS
Ui Ulw Sy SHO0TS - wo'E :dOYd €13A31:Q8VA 30IS
o I1BLLSNBWOONON O TIBLLSNEWOO - WO'E :dONd €713AT1 QHVA HVIY
— =] = [ SAIYOLS Z ) 2 005} VIUY XVIA - wo'6 :dO¥d ¥ T3AT LS ONIINYIH) LNOMA
presye——— = SATUOLS € XV - IINQIHOS STIATT LNINLYINL ¥334NE IVOSANVT 'NIW b2 TTBVL
ZW 092} 'SAZYOLS Z ‘24 ANOYD PLTTE HIRIYVE INOVAO HO ¥I44NE O'C NIW € TIAT1 (0
‘NOLLYOIISSYIO 3000 DISvE ¥344N8 WO'E NIN :» T3A31 (Q
V9L
z :S133ULS 40 'ON ONIOVS SU44NE IAVISANYT WNNININ 9'L
INON SUIDININGS
WLLOVE v3uv ONIGTING TIVL WS’y B JQIM WE ‘NI ‘INYT SS300V JAINOYd LTL
$3R0LS Z :LHOIZH ONIQTING GINIINOS SNIE :dOBd
wgs9g NOLLYA3T3 30va0 $107GNY SLITULS INIOVIQY WOH: ONINIIHOS SNIE ONITOADIY ¥ 3SN43M L
£1uvd :L4Vd 3000 ONINYIAOD . SNIE ONITOAIZY ONV 3SN43Y €2
€424 ‘NOLLYDIJISSYID AONVANIOO0 NOMVIV ONINIZYOS NV ONIdYOSANYT - L NOLLIIS
SISATVNY (2102) 3002 ONIGTING O'8 *SISATVNY 0008 "ON MVIAS ONINOZ 28 YNMOT3H 40 ALID
&
o oVO ONI¥3IANIY TVNLIIONOD
buv N (s0.0% 91°GXu bs 856'922) @Y 60°Z XO¥AAY
N @9 EZNENS
&

¥ w ¥ 00°26¢ NOLLYAITE 30V T

%*V (wg) AFHOLS OML LHOIEH ONIGTING 019 :doNd U@ JQ\Z ;OJ.MV_ hm_¢0\ﬁVM )—uz.u.Ml_lw 106

IVIRILSNANI -1 “IVIOHIWNOD LSIHNOL - 6D :LNIYHND

e o . oz ANTIWJIOTINIATVIDOYINNOD

oy IR T 6o e e VIV L Lo
e QYOS AIVHDINO
LT Y03 oY v - 08 'YNMOTIN ‘avoy dzwm.www-w_.m%nahmo .
pr—
et "ouz:um_.oE

‘GANLVG OV SNOISNTAI0 TIV AsiuBA -

OTIVOS 30 40N LS ONMYBO BL -




I ] £102°AI0C,

NV1d 31IS

T

208 ‘YNMOT13N

NZé ?I
JHSYTIVIA MIAN
QYOLQN¥VHONO

MU D 0!

owo

7901 0L6/05% PUoudoR L
BICKBLIOSE 204

A8 ALA

“siQwnD st ‘sunopy
Py prOOULS 0991-TYT

*PY 120)2Y pemoladuo). AueD

213

——mw
NINGOTINIG Mo 4 aanzt

_LIn34 DNGTINT 404 QNTSH

Voran

RIS
4407010 V0T

L3310 ov eV
MIIHL Y20 150 NOLLINAOULIY ANY -

*LOTLHOUY TL 40 ALUIAONA
‘NI IHL 6 ONMYID TIHL =

“LOBUHIMY IHL HOHS
NOISGINId NILLINM LNOHLM OIMOTIV
LON 34Y BNOLLYSLATON QMY SNCILVIAVA -
“LOTLIHOKY ML OL
SNOISININO ONY SHOUY) TIV LHOdIU
"YNOW 40 LKIWIINIANGD O1 HOIHd
‘SHNLYA GNY SNOIGNIFAG TIV A4IIA~

"GIIV39 30 LON LG ONMYHO SIML +

SLNINIHINOIE MVIAG IHL
3LVOIANI S30VdS d3¥38NNN FHL "8 NOILO3S

MYTAE 133N OL S3OVCS 28 SIAINOIY
0008 MYTAE ONINOZ YNAOT3N 40 ALID

s|qedyiddy JoN

8¥20L MVYIAE NIV1d AOOTd X330 TTIN

«0-0€=,} :IIVIS

¥595€dda NV 1d L 107
NV1d 3LIS

BBLPEL

Y
a

[T

tigest

sooeds bupyied g/¢

seouds Bupued 29

ONDIYVYd 3DINEIS ANNOLWOD

LT

L
L

|

e

A 1T

=

3 sooeds m:c:un _.m/

nadanidding®

[
s

T

0°£6€ ‘8VS HO dOL.

diHsSd3vaa M3

s
m
=

-
1
i

wrza
e
o
9 L
L] | 1
T T

I T8 1]

W YSSREdda NVd |

WM.:U.IW) \Smu

[o]

g NOIS NOTAd

1 rm——y

._-Ol_

sooeds Bupped 810} gL |

soouds Bu

7 m‘quowJ
[T

H S3IDIH3IA M3N

oL ]]]

g
o
@

tosl
aa T
===

T
Eacil F—

ML )

&nﬁr PESPO

| I 0 N 5 6 O 0 O O 0 0 10

avod T3NINTHLS

V NOIS NOTAd

J3HSITOW3Aa 39 Ol
SONITTINEG ONILSIX3

VIV A3dVOSANY

e

(w 99) -1z

o3




¥OO0Td NIV

T

28 ‘YNMOT3N

N 26fimy
JHSYTIVIA MIN

e 20neseont suwe
9901 6605 wwouders

90y G005 04

HwnoD s Sumow

P DB 6R91-CYE

AR hueo

Q@IOI QIVHIO

peviveewan

e v 0TS | 10 || cdon

£33

T e o] & e

‘1405 z000¢ onigune wios |
,.»Ldn @y “NOLLDNUASNGD MaN
{ 00 ONOJ3S

| wos et “NOLLDAULSNOD MaN |

i3 w400 04
preetpeaetepnerd]

T O S s T

s i Gt vhaw apS Y

o O e

b4

L
(
it
(
\

fou azes

SJTTTHTRRLIT T

£




NP O
/570 -~/ /T #H

sl AIAAArT 1M

| — gy g ;
| U [ § QO N U
| c

¥0074 ANODI3S

28 ‘YNMOIN

N L6y !
JHSYTIVIA MIN ® , ,

™ 7 ® ® ®

ﬁ e e e et EOUE ST I ©®
pr——— — ©
004 046057 ‘swoucem @. ||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||| i v A e e e ———— e

000y 020,057 Xuy m 2083 roowom T T .H
A ain gz i wora
WIGWNIOD Usg “BUNOY 00N AOON0GL i T 930440
P PRyBUITS 0RTL-CYT 3 =
Bw0
“PY 0L EMAI0dWO L AL to e LT oy
P17 R0y L Aueo | — s | |
m Wx..r TR e
T
e] © ” =1 [=1
| ==/ =
i % ] = —
! rolvd ==
; N == I T
| o ==
' N
1 £ ey
;, cocwes | T ,
N
! 4
wova
- || y €
K o
” oowH:
I g
| I
o |
m | ~o
w0
| T
| H
5 Moz =
i 830440
| ranina 3omm
| i i
I |
|
|
|
I
! Mo
! ety ]
i ®
o
ronGuCanwa
B
|
|
T

! i
| 1
B ® @
VTSR R, ©
P

MO 34 NALLIWA ORI GIROTIV
LON TV SNOLYDIHG0M GNY SHOLLYIRYA -

L0 DL OL
SNOIBINAO ONY SHORT TIV LeOd
50 20 LNI/3INIANOD OL ¥Obd
‘SANLYO OHY SNGIENBAIG TV Asfu3A -

QUIVOS 30 LON LS ONMVIQ B




/810 -7 4T # Hulisd
wisiudoisaan 10 1ed SULIOL SIULE
L aoandh o o ™ | B o o b 4 Ha ™ =

151

Lz T4 ooz AIng

NVd 400d

e

28 ‘YNMOT3N

N £6Fn}
JHSYITVIA MIAN
QIO QIVHI¥O

w2 DamBysPearpons yewe

9991 60/057 ‘wouders
90TV 6L0/052 X34

AS ALA

TIOWNOD UG ‘BURON
Y @OUOS 6091-CHE

PRI PEYRLY pemosodwo) Aued

e18

o B

ot veraoraawiare |16 || weien

LOTUNIY Tk 50 ALEOBY
INSMTOXE BnL B OMMVEG BIRL -
“LIRUKDHY DL HORs
NOISSN34 NELLAM LFOLIM GTMOTIY
LON TV SNOLYDISIO0 OV SNOUVIEYA -

LOBLRORY I 0L

£

ey 1 LING
31NA3aHOS

o/

\"4

0= =2Z8¢ FWOS

Nvi1d d400Hd

4004 Q3dO1S

4004 Q3407

400y 1vid

400 1vid




NY1d NY1d A3A¥NS

208 ‘YNMOTI3N
N 26 fin

JHSYITVIA MIN
QIOL QIVHIIO

PV PONYRIY premasodiwo) AueD

13

[reTw————— aaes

LO0LTY 5 TV
W34 NV3E 130 NOLLINO0RATY ANY -

LIUUNDEY Tl 50 ALTOBS
INSITONE ThL B SMMYRQ kL -

LOBUKIEY Dl Ok
NOIES! A B4 NDLLIWA LRI GZHOTIV
LON TV SNOLLYDIs1O01 ONY SHOLLVIRVA -
190UROwY 3RO

‘SNOKSINAQ ONY BUONN TV LxOdD
XROM 20 IN3AEINIANOD Ol Oibd
SARLYO GNY SNOISNDAIG TIY AsfbBA -
“GITN% 1O LON LS0N OMMYVEQ BIL

.a..%..,ﬂ(om .\I-x\llul-»....li;:if
€102 '6Z ¥380LO0 "ABN3A TIVNNNY A8 A38Vd3Nd 1
88661 NV1d ¥ 1O 2 ZyL¥E NYd L LO1 AQ ==t 0% P
NY1d A3ANNS IR * ==

1Z0S9d¥X Nv1d

BSSYPAVY NVId  Mus

LSSPYavy NvId
]

LYIYE NYTd

(v 217
¥SS€dd3 NvId
5

Sk
-}
-

|

LSSYYAYN NVId 88661 NvId
v
v

v iae v i =
i e Y S

¥SSSEdd3 NVd
‘10T41SIA IIVA NOISIAIQ SOOAOSO
‘92 dIHSNMOL ‘#€ NOILLD3S ‘T L0140 Nv1d 3LIS




m 7310 -¢/ JT #¢

| TUewdoeRsS P10 ped-su
prr— pr— m
Ty
Sin i @ s @( m T Qm
ONRIIANIY LHOIN TVNLdIONOD HLJON ONDIOOT ONIYIANIY TVNLIIONOD m s

L

S3ALLO3dS¥3d

28 ‘YNMOIIN

N6 s TINTYLS
JHSYITVIA MIN
QIO QIVHI¥O

w2 nomeysGeagoud sewe

9991 60052 wuoucem |
09EY 6L0/05%

Vg

[

|
”_,/
e
|
=

SAS ALA
BIoWN0D umwg SumOm
DM PRIBULTE 00g1-CHT

BV PO premasodwoy. Aueo

213

SN e z TN s

1SV3 HINOS ONIIOOT ONIY3AN TYNLIIONOD 1Sv3 HLYON ONDIOOT ONRIIANIY TYNLdIDNOD !

o o] 8 |

s om0 WO e | 16 || vedens




SN OILVYA3I3

i

28 ‘YNMOT3N

N 26 fingy
JHSYTIVIA MIN

QIOJ@IVHI¥O

e neARGRAONS Tewe

9901 64005 ‘wuoudere
P0CYOL0/05Z X0

‘P PONYALY pemosodwo) Aued

e33

smvenores

/570

AUT LIV

S)

57 Jq +

P AW ) ey s

<04 =.8/L TWVOS

N .6 AMH 0 NOILVAZTI3 LS3IM

iz

NOILVA313

&
=]

= =8
=3
D“
%]

'G¥0J '0I0NLS) B3 AN

|
AR I il
| | l\i |
5 N 7 ot i i B g It
& L~ IS0
| \ 7
391A¥3S
1 1
, -
R | QVHONO |
Ex..,,s!v: AL | LUK OYOJ GLINYVA TIININGD
umooimiaeics il - i Sbs
, —

f=f=~4=

EAN|

B
|l |
R

SAVE HSYM

]

W=

QuVHONO —

i zazeic
LUMMOYOJ TLINVA LUTNINCD
| 18v00u4 RELZE L CL AUNM

@ 0404 '030NLS) 8413 MM




JETo =TT #

155

.0-1 =8/ FIVOS

NOILVA o-

SNOILVYA33 ,/; T 1 ﬁk\ BT E T\NW ,f 4 7

|5 I [ i 5

TR 1A 0 T 0 | W 8

ame “ ] , , ,
58 ‘YNMOT2N 391A¥3S | .f , , ”

N 26Fng ) I W * | | i §
JHSYTIVAA WIN ; | 7 , | :
@OJMIVHIYO w ; | _

H eazzivel
0 DemeusPeoyons pewe h

i gy sueive
e —— i V04 030N 5.3 Juno I 1k 0V GV UMD
oocr 2005z 704 1 | g v
QY04 '0OONUR) BII UMM —
A5 AR U

WO YSG TusOey

popecem e @
‘P PO prsmosodwo) Aued

e18

VRN
, \

Di-S

i
i
]
[
[
&
N

L QUYHONO, _,

szoive
UMM OUO4 GLUNYY LUINONOD |
5VINd BT L2 I9-Ch UMM

[— (9310008 Aums

'
i Tirce
! QY04 030MS) 43 MM |
TNV ! |
o o 2o [rssemos A Lo i |
[ yr— eomze

]
|
By
]

zezz e
UMM QYOS GLUNIYd TLIHINOD
18¥04d R 42 T 1Y CLAUKM
L93LKONY S 3V
(34 ¥Y30 15N NOLLINOOBATY ANY +

0404 0O0NS) .43 MM ———




/810 - ¢ Ja |
wiawudoisasn 10 1ed swior siu |
T 1ol |
sy T 0z AT, | .o..,.“%% . PRy m
T T ESHINGIHOS)
- _, , | ,m ,,k\ i . , ,;, ,
3 “ I ,, N 77 o
SNOILO3S m w | | ,
k ,. - =
28 TN M Go e e L L L I P e G R
N Z6fin | = ,
JHSYTTVIAMIAN | | ”
@OL%_.OMOEI ” ,‘ | M
== ®© © ©® © ®
P PO _x“”l.o.“....._.u“»._ir.iﬂwa

13

N | T
i | ! i
g g ” L.
by Vi B AT D T, Ik
: 7 v = 7 , §
: Wx- N \ e \/ RN NEE AN ;
! ﬁq : _
W ®© ® ® ® ®
E'..xu“.l,!“.nl:n!li ..u... = .“” <01 =.8/L TWVOS
0-0 NOILO3S
T 2 , = 7
‘ T | N : ,
I " SN ‘.W
& g TN i mi
& 3 — . __V_HZ,,: TTTTI H
& | , e |
S . 7 T 3|
S ST TN
NG .
%4 1 R DR R R
& !

_ A.U i
| , ,
B W3 157 ROLNOONEN v~
AORURNY Bk 50 ALNTONS
NS DhL B OMMYNO SikL -

LB Tk OB
NS M3 NLLLISA A1Om LM TIHOTIY
LON T HOUYOLHOON ONY SNOLVIVVA -
o LMDV ThL 0L
(AN GV SXGNN] TV LuONTE
HeOM 30 NININIMOD 0L ¥O
‘BANLYG Gy SHONING T ASTUBA -

‘TIIOE 30 LOM LENA OMMYEQ BL -




LTy T oz

SNOILD3S il
s " ME
IE} L | AT RN T o] ||
—— , - SN
, T — M, H
28 ‘'YNMO13) W i [
_— e @ |
- — - = e el | ’
e AN AN NG \.\ £ Ve A RN
SN 7

JHSYTIVIA MIN , — % : .
QOJAVHDY0 | i C

£ Dameus Goyond 1ews.
i |
8094 6L005T Svoucem) 1 L
990¥ 020057 33 ( ) H
515 ALA ( H ) ( ” ) A ” v
mawnoD umug Susowy
P2 DRBuS 001-CYE
‘P RoNRIY psmoiodwo | Aued

13

<0 =8/1 :3VOS

3-3 NOILDO3S

T T , ! |
n : || ] | | IR E
5 [ g | | , i . IS . |
o | | i _ é i , |
g : ; = 7N v, | | ﬁ S J —
T - | | | W . e e o T T !
R — - — e e e R o A N e
e 7 R — q
, |

i |
| ' | |
[— ! l i
oraA ov| aw |issvenas I 1 H
i L NIITI0 04 0w | 4o L= ,

LUKV SV BV
ST MYEE LA NOUINGOR AN ANY -

L9TURORY T4 £0 ALYILONd
INSMTOXD DL 5 ONMYE] Bl

‘SANLYQ ONY ENGISNE/IG TV AstbZA -
‘T8 30 40N 150 OMMYEQ Bk~




JFI0 =57 4a # %

58

o v
T
i

slafe]zlg

g

NYd TvNLdIONQD

diNS¥ATVAQ
M3AN - QN0 QUVYHIUO
423rQug

28 o™
Q4T SIUNLNIA Nvawvs
v

26 vvaaray
Q47 LO3LINUY
HBMOUQHNOL AMNVD

o nes

(s aser)
[EETE e -

owen/ wrwa sy

jll‘l.. 1].'4.' — ——— e X — T
‘ N~
s N \g
_ ............. AHOIN AV GTHNIAS * 1AYD ONANS-
) L) LR
e ey LMD L¥ Q3UN038 * BUYD |
........... . Shat —. } (@) oMY
| K 7S &) :
|
R e Tl s g\ 4
& I W ONIQING dIHSYITVIa
i
)+ )+ )
R =7 G

(4H W5 0>) SBNNNS TIVAYS § SRSIVMO,
* BOYINGI DNO'TY SONLNY 4 MO

v
IVNO3 GIANOUIIY WY 0O FY5Y

XFUN 36 TIVHS DEEVA 1TV SYIBY XD0U 177 MAVENEE OFTIVASNI 28 TIVieS Diass 3419
X008 O25ED EO ANNOE JALYDOD3 20 WWEO! 4O NBY ¥ JAYH TIVKS SYIBY 2900 §

NIW A0 LY VY HOVE

v‘s-uggzgiggnnsigsottuu
719 GNY WS

SVA
AALYN 04 NCUYEOLSIY 67, BOINILN 29 ONY SYAEY ONIANYM 03 NOUYIAD3ES
A2 SORIUNI 20 Irii. LITW TIVHS WINGIW ONIMOUD SIULOIW) NOLYDIAIDTGS
_SONIMVI! NO NMOKS 5V SYATY SALYIN 10 NI HACIO NI WO ONY SY30Y ONUNYIG
TIV N HAGI0 "NIW WWGOE 1y G3DVI9 36 TIVHE WNIGIW ONMOBD QR0 NIWIDY A

RIS ONIMOD Q200N ¥
ALTBYIVAY NOG! DNIANIGEC AUVA

AW SNCLOTIIS ONLUNYIE TYNIS ATNG IWNLIIINDD WY SNOUSTIZE WY ANVIY €

215 GNY ASTVID 31978805V

WIWINWY 3HA SLOTIATS A0G WNAEIINOS $1 NIAKIW O3LYNOISIO NDISIO J0YD50NYY It T

'SQUYONYLS S0YDSANY) D8 s

YISIS ANV VAND'S AD Q358G
N

e ;S
WNWINW OL WIOANOD TIVHS SGOHLIW NOLLDNASNOD ONY STYZIYW ANV 1

3340N




e e e p—— -

ST T-¢17d0)

waiidoigazmeilo 11
] ou

diHS¥3avaa
M3N - QU0 QUVHONO
A23rcYd

29 VMo
‘047 SBUALNBA NVaWVL

"
163 A 54 e o e (5002

..........

5 | OTOTATALAYERY

SCIVONYIS NOUVDRY SYNMOTS! 50 ALD !
§§d~§§-m—4§ﬂvﬁﬂﬁ.

7004 38 TIVHS U0V TIY SY2UY 1000 TV HIVINZ Q3
3008 QSN YO GNAGY ALLVIOD20 30 WARG 30 N1
SYTUY ONUNYIA JALLYN 311 OI 1630 DO WK QoY S

NI UALS LY MW YD GALICONOD 35¥°4 GNY A

SALYN UOJ NOWYROLSIS ¢, LORIIN 32 GV SV |

A2 YORILNI 30 SHL LIIN TIVHS WRIO3W ONIMC!
TONIVEYE0 NO NMONS Y SY2RY JALLYN TIY N 1130 T
ézzﬂd!!aa»«guggnm
anar

IVAN BRI NTUO b At b v et e

VL N




December 24, 2013

City of Kelowna
1435 Water Street
Kelowna, B.C.

V1J U4

Attention: Development Services

Project: Orchard Ford - New Dealership

Please be advised that a landscape security bond of $317,221.88 will be required for the
Orchard Ford commercial development project. This sum is equal to 125% of the
estimated installed cost for all planting areas, inclusive of trees, shrubs, grasses,
perennials, turf from sod, topsoil, mulch, irrigation, and required bicycle racks per City
of Kelowna Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000, Table 8.3.

Please see the attached Bonding Cost Estimate for a further breakdown.

Should you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

BENCH Site Design Inc.

Xenia Semeniuk, MBCSLA
Registered Landscape Architect

cc
John Schlosser, Client Representative

105-1289 Ellis Street, Kelowna BC V1Y 1Z9 | E studio@benchsitedesign.com | T (250) 860-6778

160



CITY OF KELOWNA
MEMORANDUM

Date: December 9, 2013

File No.: Z13-0040

To: Land Use Planner (JM)

From: Development Engineering Manager (SM)

Subject: 911 Stremel Road- Ford Dealership — Lots 1, plan 24147 and lot A plan 19988

Development Engineering Comments and requirements regarding this application to rezone the
subject properties from C9 and I-1 to C10 are as follows:

These are Development Engineering initial comments and they may be subject to the MOTI
comments and requirements.

1. Geotechnical Study.

A comprehensive Geotechnical Study is required, which is to be prepared by a
Professional Engineer competent in the field of geotechnical engineering. The study is to
address the following:

- Overall site suitability for development.

- Slope analysis (i.e. 0-10 %, 10-20 %, 20-30% and over 30 %).

- Presence of ground water and/or springs.

- Presence of fill areas.

- Presence of swelling clays.

- Presence of sulfates.

- Potential site erosion.

- Provide specific requirements for footings and foundation construction.

- Provide specific construction design sections for roads and utilities over and
above the City’s current construction standards

2. Domestic water and fire protection.

a) This development is within the service area of the Black Mountain Irrigation District (BMID).
The developer is required to make satisfactory arrangements with the BMID for these items.
All charges for service connection and decommission of redundant services as well as all
necessary upgrading costs are to be paid directly to BMID.

b) The water system must be capable of supplying domestic and fire flow demands in
accordance with the Subdivision & Servicing Bylaw for the requested zoning. The applicant
must provide water computations for this development to confirm the available water supply.

A2

161



December 9, 2013 Z13-0040 page 2 of 3

3.

Sanitary Sewer.

a) The subject property is located within the Specified Area #20, and is therefore subject
to the Specified Area #20 charges of $3,530.47 per Single Family Equivalent (SFE)
which is valid until March 31, 2014. The proposed building is 30,092 sq.ft. and in
commercial zone each 2600 sq.ft. of building equals to one SFE for a total of 11.57
SFE. The subject properties have, in 2005, cash commuted a total of 7.09 SFE,
therefore the net SFE payable under this application is 4.48 SFE for a total charge of
$15,816.50 (valid until March 31, 2014).

b) There are two services to the property as a consequence of the lot consolidation. One
service of 150mm. dia. and one service of 100mm. dia. The smaller service will have to
be decommissioned at the owner’s expense.

Drainage.

c) A comprehensive site drainage management plan and design to comply with the City’s
drainage design and policy manual, is a requirement of this application. This plan can
become part of the geotechnical study to identify the ground recharge/detention areas.

d) The property is located at the downstream end of Ashbridge Brook; there is an old
culvert at the South-West corner of the property located within a registered Right of
Way. The open channel of Ashbridge brook has been replaced with a 450mm. closed
pipe and the portion of the brook along the Southerly property line has been filled. A
connection between the two existing pipes will have to be installed complete with
manholes in order to maintain the flow as well as a Right of Way must be registered
over the new section of pipe within the subject property.

e) The condition of the existing CMP crossing the property will have to be assessed to
confirm its integrity. The cost of the installation of the storm pipe extension will have to
be determined for bonding purpose.

Power and Telecommunication Services.

The services to this development are to be installed underground. It is the developer’'s
responsibility to make a servicing application to the respective utility companies. The utility
companies are then required to obtain the city’s approval before commencing their works.

Road improvements.

Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) is a requirement of this application. The TIA terms of
Reference to be established in collaboration with the Ministry of Transportation and the
City of Kelowna Transportation & Mobility Branch. The costs of road improvements, based
upon the TIA outcome, will have to be determined for bonding purpose.

7. Design and Construction.

a) Design, construction supervision and inspection of all off-site civil works and site
servicing must be performed by a Consulting Civil Engineer and all such work is
subject to the approval of the City Engineer. Drawings must conform to City standards
and requirements.

b) Engineering drawing submissions are to be in accordance with the City’s “Engineering
Drawing Submission Requirements” Policy. Please note the number of sets and
drawings required for submissions.

.13

162



December 9, 2013 Z13-0040 page 3 of 3

c)

d)

e)

Quality Control and Assurance Plans must be provided in accordance with the
Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw No. 7900 (refer to Part 5 and Schedule 3)

A “Consulting Engineering Confirmation Letter” (City document ‘C’) must be completed
prior to submission of any designs.

Before any construction related to the requirements of this subdivision application
commences, design drawings prepared by a professional engineer must be submitted
to the City’s Works & Utilities Department. The design drawings must first be “Issued
for Construction” by the City Engineer. On examination of design drawings, it may be
determined that rights-of-way are required for current or future needs.

8. Servicing Agreements for Works and Services

a)

A Servicing Agreement is required for all works and services on City lands in
accordance with the Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw No. 7900. The
applicant's Engineer, prior to preparation of Servicing Agreements, must provide
adequate drawings or reports and estimates for the required works. The Servicing
Agreement must be in the form as described in Schedule 2 of the bylaw.

Part 3, “Security for Works and Services”, of the Bylaw, describes the Bonding and
Insurance requirements of the Owner. The liability limit is not to be less than
$5,000,000 and the City is to be named on the insurance policy as an additional
insured.

9. Bonding and Levies Summary.

a) Performance Bonding
Ashbridge Brook pipe installation / upgrades To be determined
Frontage upgrades To be determined

b) Levies
Engineering Development and Inspection Fee To be determined
100mm. wastewater service decommission To be determined
Specified Area #20 charges $15,816.50

(valid until March 31, 2014)

Steve Muenz, P. Eng.
Development Engineering Manager

B2

163



Inoaey uj [mog Apindon
sjueus]
Aidaa ou ¥T/TC 9=4 Ja1eay1 Yauug syl peoy ApIn)dIA 816
Ajdas ou ¥T/TT 924 JiejAeN 00TT
Aldau ou v1/129°4 liejAen 098
Aidas ou AWARACEE! JieyheN vS8
AldaJ ou v1/12 924 JreyhelN 008
inoAey ul v1/12 924 elpueas peoy 32IMuUs4 868¢
Aidasou ¥T/T2 924 peoy 32IMua4 068¢
Aidasou vT/12 924 peoy 3oIMua4 TZ8¢
lnoaey ul ¥T/12 924 As|99) uoser peoy youiedzid /v/
Aldaa ou ¥1/12 924 peoy suul4 68
Aidasou VAYATAEE! peoy suuld4 €€8
Ajdas ou v1/12 924 peoy suul4 0Z8
Aidas ou v1/17 924 peoy suul4 808
Aldas ou v1/17 924 peoy [waJ1s /86
Ajdai ou vT/1Z 924 peoy [aWa.1S G683
Aidau ou ¥T/12 924 peoy [pwa.1s 688
Ajdai ou ¥T/1C 924 peoy [swans €6/
InoAej ul ¥1/12 9°4 euoIa)y ‘I peoy [awa.1s 99/
Aidasou ¥1/T2 924 peoy [awaJ1S 59/
Ajdas ou v1/1C 924 peoy [pwains S5/
a3yaniaa
ISNOdSIY 3JILON 31va 4INMO $S34aav ALY3doyd
| | 40T yosen 03 yagz Asenigay | |

W 00T UIyUM

s1aumo Apadold 01 sad110N :NOILVLINSNOD JI19Nd  :QHO4 QYVHIYO LI-ZIV

164



Report to Council

City of
Date: 07/31/14 Kelowna

File: 1250-20
To: City Manager
From: James Moore, Long Range Policy Planning Manager

Subject: OCP13-0019_supplementary

Recommendation:
THAT Council endorses Area Structure Plan No. ASP10-0001;

AND THAT further to discussions following the July 15, 2014 Public Hearing and adoption
consideration of ASP10-0001 and OCP13-0019, Council directs staff as follows:

1. THAT trail access to the Lake from the Park be provided in accordance with City
standards;

2. AND THAT the Bennett Road access be limited via gate to emergency vehicles only
until such time as the Clifton Road extension is constructed and open to public traffic;

3. AND THAT staff bring forward a road safety improvement plan for McKinley and Clifton
Roads prior to initial consideration by Council of the initial rezoning application;

4. AND FURTHER THAT staff be directed to work with the applicant to ensure the Clifton
Road extension be completed as quickly as possible, while considering any necessary
upgrades to existing roads.

Purpose:

To endorse the North Clifton Area Structure Plan and to provide a resolution for Council to
give direction to staff regarding a number of issues raised at the Public Hearing for the OCP
amendments resulting from the Area Structure Plan.

Background:

On Tuesday, July 15, 2014, a Public Hearing was held for the OCP amendments resulting from
the conclusion of the North Clifton Area Structure Plan development process. Residents from
both Clifton Highlands and McKinley Landing neighbourhoods were present and raised
concerns about the proposal.

165



At its Regular Meeting immediately following the Public Hearing, Council asked staff to report
back with a draft resolution providing further direction to staff on the following issues:

e Timing of the permanent road connection between Clifton Highlands and McKinley
Landing neighbourhoods;

e Scope and timing of upgrades to improve the safety of existing roads in both
neighbourhoods;

e Limiting access through the existing Bennett Road until such a time as the permanent
road connection between both neighbourhoods is completed;

e Access via trail to the lakeshore as part of the proposed park.

Following the Public Hearing, Council adopted the OCP amendments.

Internal Circulation:

Todd Cashin, Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services Manager
Damien Burggraeve, Planner Il

Steve Muenz, Development Engineering Manager

Moudud Hasan, Transportation & Mobility Manager

Terry Barton, Parks & Building Planning Manager

Considerations not applicable to this report:

Legal/Statutory Authority:
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements:
Existing Policy:

Financial/Budgetary Considerations:
Personnel Implications:

External Agency/Public Comments:
Communications Comments:

Alternate Recommendation:

Submitted by:

J. Moore, Long Range Policy Planning Manager

Approved for inclusion: D. Gilchrist, Div. Dir., Community Planning & Real Estate

Ccc:

Danielle Noble-Brandt, Policy & Planning Department Manager
Shelley Gambacort, Director of Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment
Todd Cashin, Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services Manager

166



Report to Council

City of
vate: 8112014 Kelowna

File: 1140-50-8179

To: City Manager
From: Sam Samaddar, Airport Director
Subject: Air Carrier Airport Use Agreement with Suncor Energy Services Inc. - YLW

Report Prepared by: Toni McQueenie, Legal & Administrative Services
Coordinator

Recommendation:

THAT Council approves the City entering into an Air Carrier Airport Use Agreement with
Suncor Energy Services Inc. in the form attached to the report of the Airport Director dated
August 11, 2014, allowing Suncor Energy Services Inc. to operate at Kelowna International
Airport;

AND THAT the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the Air Carrier Airport Use
Agreement.

Purpose:

To obtain Council's consent and approval to enter into an Air Carrier Airport Use Agreement
with Suncor Energy Services Inc.

Background:
Suncor Energy Services Inc. is headquartered in Calgary, Alberta and has operations
throughout Canada, the USA, and Europe.

It was one of the first companies to develop the Alberta oil sands, and currently employs
more than 12,000 people in its diverse operation.

Using air service to transport employees is a means of expanding the available labour pool,
and accessing skilled labour quickly.

Suncor Energy Services Inc. will operate between Kelowna, Vancouver, and Edmonton on a
scheduled seasonal basis using a CRJ-900 86-seat aircraft.

167



Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements:
The form of Air Carrier Airport Use Agreement being entered into is the standard template
used for all air carriers and was approved by the City’s solicitor in 1996.

Alternate Recommendation:

Considerations not applicable to this report:
Internal Circulation: N/A

Legal/Statutory Authority: N/A

Existing Policy: N/A

Financial/Budgetary Considerations: N/A
Personnel Implications: N/A

External Agency/Public Comments: N/A
Communications Comments: N/A

Submitted by:

/72

S. Samaddar, Airport Director

Approved for inclusion: ﬂ Paul Macklem, Deputy City Manager

Attachments:

Adobe - Air Carrier Airport Use Agreement

168



ORIGINAL

KELOWNA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

AIR CARRIER AIRPORT USE AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE

CITY OF KELOWNA

AND

SUNCOR ENERGY SERVICES INC.

(YLW FILE NO. 1140-50-8179)

169




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article 1.00 - Purpose

Article 2.00 - Term of Agreement

Article 3.00 - Conduct of Business

Article 4.00 - Default

Article 5.00 - Assignment

Article 6.00 - Waiver or Non-Action

Article 7.00 - Hold Harmless/Indemnification/Claims

Article 8.00 - Members of the House of Commons

Article 9.00 - Choice of Law and Jurisdiction

Article 10.00 - Entire Agreement

Article 11.00 - Bribes

Article 12.00 - Interpretation

Article 13.00 - Differences

Article 14.00 - Effect of Agreement

Article 15.00 - Severance

Article 16.00 - No Implied Obligations

Article 17.00 - Notices

Article 18.00 - Definition

Schedule A - AIF Monthly Remittance

11
12
12
12
13
13
13
13
14
14
14
15
15
15
15

170



THIS AGREEMENT made this day of , 2014.

BETWEEN

City of Kelowna
1435 Water Street
Kelowna, B.C.
V1Y 1J4

(the "City")
AND
Suncor Energy Services Inc.
P.O. Box 2844, 150 6™ Avenue S.W.
Calgary, AB T2P 3E3

(the "Air Carrier")

WHEREAS:

A. The City is the operator of the Kelowna International Airport (the “Airport”)
located in the City of Kelowna, Province of British Columbia;

B. The Air Carrier is desirous of using, in common with others, the Airport;

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSES that, in consideration of the fees,
charges, covenants, and agreements to be paid, observed, and performed by the Air
Carrier, and other good and valuable consideration (the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby expressly acknowledged) the City and the Air Carrier covenant and
agree as follows:

Article 1.00 - Purpose

1. The City covenants that provided the Air Carrier pays all monies due under this
Agreement and performs the covenants herein on its part contained, it may:

1.1.  Operate its business or a part thereof at the Airport;

1.2.  Use, in common with others so authorized, the runways, taxiways,
navigational aids and other common use landing field facilities of the
Airport, for its aircraft landings and takeoffs required in connection with
the operation of its air transportation business to and from the Airport;

171




1.3.

1.4.

Page 2

Possess the right of access from the Airport as made necessary by the Air
Carrier's operations over, and upon streets, roads, paths, hallways,
corridors or open spaces only, provided that the right herein defined
shall not be exercised in such manner and to such extent as to impede or
interfere with the operation of the Airport by the City, its lessees, air
carriers or others; and

On and off load its passengers or cargo from such areas of the Airport as
the Airport Director may from time to time designate. Such assignment
of areas shall not constitute any pre-emptive or exclusive right to areas
designated. When traffic conditions are such that the areas are in use,
the Air Carrier may use other areas designated by the Airport Director if,
by such use, others are not inconvenienced or disturbed.

Article 2.00 - Term of Agreement

The term of this Agreement shall commence on April 1, 2014 and shall continue
to be in effect until terminated as hereinafter provided.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

This Agreement may be terminated at any time by the City in the
absolute discretion of the Airport Director. Such termination shall be
effected by providing thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Air
Carrier and upon the date of termination specified in the notice all
rights of the Air Carrier pursuant to this Agreement shall thereupon
cease.

The Air Carrier may terminate this Agreement by giving thirty (30) days
prior written notice to the Airport Director.

This Agreement may be terminated by the mutual written consent of the
parties without notice.

The Air Carrier shall forthwith cease to carry on business or operation at
the Airport as of the effective date of termination of this Agreement.

Article 3.00 - Conduct of Business

The Air Carrier covenants and agrees with the City to the terms and conditions
set forth below at all times during the term of this Agreement and agrees that
non-compliance with any such terms or conditions at any time during the term
of this Agreement shall constitute grounds for termination of this Agreement by
the City by written notice to the Air Carrier, or such other remedy as the City,
in its discretion, may deem appropriate. The Air Carrier waives any notice of
default or termination not expressly provided for in this Agreement.

172




3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4,

3.5.

3.6.

Page 3

The Air Carrier or its Affiliates (as defined below) shall hold all required
valid licenses, certificates or permits from the federal government to
provide commercial air transportation services to the routes it is serving
to and from the Airport. For the purposes of this Agreement, “Affiliate”
shall have the same meaning given to that term in the Canada Business
Corporations Act, or any similar, replacement or supplemental law in
effect from time to time, which meaning shall, mutatis mutandis, apply
to partnerships, limited liability partnerships and limited partnerships.

The Air Carrier shall abide by and comply promptly with all laws,
regulations, orders, rules, requirements and recommendations which
may be applicable to the Air Carrier or to the use of the Airport, made
by any and all federal, provincial, civil, municipal and other authorities
or association of insurance underwriters or agents and all notices in
pursuance of same and whether served upon the City or the Air Carrier,
but if served upon the City alone, only if written notice thereof is given
to the Air Carrier. The City and the Airport Director shall abide by and
comply promptly with all laws, regulations, orders, rules, requirements
and recommendations which may be applicable to the City and/or the
Airport Director or to the use of the Airport, made by any and all
federal, provincial, civil, municipal and other authorities or association
of insurance underwriters or agents and all notices in pursuance of
same.

The Air Carrier shall comply forthwith and cause its directors, officers,
employees and agents to comply with any reasonable direction of the
Airport Director with respect to matters which, in the opinion of the
Airport Director, concern safety, security or matters of urgency at the
Airport.

The Air Carrier shall observe and obey all reasonable rules and
regulations not conflicting with the provisions of this Agreement as may
now exist or may be promulgated from time to time by the Airport
Director, provided that such rules and regulations shall be furnished in
writing to the Air Carrier.

The Air Carrier shall maintain strict control over all security passes
issued to the employees or agents of the Air Carrier; follow any direction
of the Airport Director with respect to security measures at the Airport;
and report forthwith to the Airport Director any loss or misuse of
security passes or the termination of its employees or agents that may
affect Airport security.

The Air Carrier shall not, under this Agreement, conduct a separate
business on or about the Airport, nor shall it offer, supply, sell or give
away, whether singly or in conjunction with its air transportation

173



3.7.

3.8.

3.9.

3.10.

3.11.

Page 4

business, any service or commodity other than usual food or beverages in
the course of the flight unless authorized in writing by the Airport
Director.

The Air Carrier shall, before commencing operations and subject to the
approval of the Airport Director which may not be unreasonably
withheld, make and maintain:

a) Arrangement for fuelling and ground handling; and

b) Provide to the Airport Director for approval, a written proposal of
the Air Carrier's policy and procedures with respect to the
handling and containment, clean-up, and disposal of dangerous
goods and hazardous materials, including aircraft fuel and oil, de-
icing and other potential pollutants at the Airport.

Subject to the approval of the Airport Director which may not be
unreasonably withheld, the Air Carrier shall make and maintain
arrangements for the use of gate/apron space, ticket counter and
baggage claim.

The Air Carrier shall provide to the City, not later than the fifth day of
each month, a report of the Air Carrier's operations at the Airport during
the preceding month, separately setting forth the total number of
enplaning and deplaning domestic and international passengers
(including on-line and interline passengers) carried by the Air Carrier
during the preceding month and the number of landings by the Air
Carrier by type of aircraft. The Air Carrier shall also provide such other
information on its operation at the Airport in such form and at such
times as may be required by the Airport Director. It is understood by the
parties that such information will, with the exception of its inclusion in
overall statistical totals, be kept confidential by the City, subject to
applicable law.

The Air Carrier shall submit proposed schedules to the Airport Director in
writing for the winter/spring period no later than June 15th, and for the
summer/fall period no later than November 15",

The Air Carrier shall at its own expense and cost, procure and maintain
or cause to be procured and maintained via an Affiliate, the insurance
policies listed below with limits no less than those shown in the
respective items, unless in connection with the performance of some
particular part of this Agreement, the City advises in writing that it has
determined that the exposure to liability justifies less limits. The
insurance policy or policies shall be maintained continuously from
commencement of this Agreement until the termination of this

174



3.12

Page 5

Agreement or such longer period as may be specified by the City, such
longer period not to exceed twenty-four (24) months.

As a minimum, the Air Carrier shall, without limiting its obligations or
liabilities under any other contract with the City, procure and maintain,
at its own expense and cost, the following insurance policies:

a) Aviation Premises/Operations Liability Insurance providing for all
sums which the Air Carrier shall become legally obligated to pay
for damages because of bodily injury (including death at any time
resulting therefrom) sustained by any person or persons or
because of damage to or destruction of property caused by an
occurrence or accident arising out of or related to the operations
carried on in connection with this Agreement. This insurance shall
include, but not be limited to, aircraft liability, passenger legal
liability, personal injury, premises liability, baggage and cargo
liability and such other coverage as may from time to time be
generally issued by insurance companies to airlines in connection
with their Canadian airport operations. Limits of liability for this
insurance shall not be less than an inclusive limit of twenty-five
million Canadian dollars ($25,000,000.00 CAD) for each
occurrence or accident, or such greater amount as required by
law or regulation applicable to the Air Carrier;

b) The Air Carrier’s insurance shall include a cross liability clause
providing that the inclusion of more than one insured shall not in
any way affect the rights of any other insured thereunder, in
respect to any claim, demand, suit or judgment made against any
other insured.

C) Automobile Liability Insurance covering all motor vehicles, owned,
operated and used or to be used by the Air Carrier directly or
indirectly in the performance of this Agreement. The limit of
liability shall not be less than two million Canadian dollars
(52,000,000.00 CAD) inclusive, for loss or damage including
personal injuries and death resulting from any one accident or
occurrence.

The policy required by section 3.11 above shall provide that the City is
named as an additional insured with respect to the premises liability at
the Airport, but only with respect to any potential legal liabilities arising
out of the operations, actions or conduct of the named insured as per
this agreement, and that said policy is primary without any right of
contribution from any insurance otherwise maintained by the City.

175



3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

Page 6

The Air Carrier agrees to submit a Certificate of Insurance to the Airport
Director prior to commencement of this Agreement. The Certificate of
Insurance shall endeavor to provide that thirty (30) days written notice
shall be given to the Airport Director, prior to any cancellations of any
such policy or policies.

The Air Carrier’s Certificate of Insurance is subject to review by the
Airport Director but in no event shall the Airport Director require other
insurance or alterations to any applicable insurance policies in force
during the period of this Agreement without the prior written approval
of the Air Carrier, which may not be unreasonably withheld.

The Air Carrier may take out such additional insurance, as it may
consider necessary and desirable. All such additional insurance shall be
at no expense to the City.

All insurance, which the Air Carrier is required to obtain with respect to
this Agreement, shall be with insurance companies registered in and
licensed to underwrite such insurance in the province of British
Columbia.

If the Air Carrier fails to do all or anything which is required of it
pursuant to this Agreement with regard to insurance, the City may do all
that is necessary to effect and maintain such required insurance, and
any monies expended by the City shall be repayable by and recovered
from the Air Carrier. The Air Carrier expressly authorizes the City to
deduct from any monies owing the Air Carrier, any monies owing by the
Air Carrier to the City.

The failure or refusal to pay losses by any insurance company providing
insurance on behalf of the Air Carrier shall not be held to waive or
release the Air Carrier from any of the provisions of section 3.11 or this
Agreement, with respect to the liability of the Air Carrier or otherwise.
Any insurance deductible maintained by the Air Carrier under any of the
insurance policies is solely for its account and any such amount incurred
by the City will be recovered from the Air Carrier as stated in section
3.17.

The Air Carrier shall pay or cause to be paid all rates, taxes and
assessments, of whatsoever description that may at any time during the
term of this Agreement be lawfully imposed, or become due and payable
by the Air Carrier.

The Air Carrier shall pay to the City all applicable aircraft landing,
parking and facility charges as amended from time to time.

176



3.21

Page 7

The Air Carrier shall collect and remit to the City an Airport
Improvement Fee (AIF) from all departing enplaned passengers in the
amount of $15.00 Canadian per passenger in accordance with the
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between the Air Transport Association
of Canada and Signatory Air Carriers and Certain Airports including the
Kelowna International Airport dated September 23, 1997 and as
amended from time to time. The amount of AIF collected may be
adjusted from time to time by the City as provided for in the MOA
(Article 6.2) and included in the City of Kelowna Airport Fees Bylaw No.
7982 (Section 22). The AIF shall be remitted monthly along with an
Airport Improvement Fee Monthly Remittance Form (Schedule A)
indicating the current month departing enplaning passengers (DEPAX),
the addition of applicable tax(es), and the quantities of DEPAX who
purchased tickets, including paperless tickets which are kept in
electronic form, in North America and outside North America. The
remittance form shall be signed and dated by an authorized
representative of the Air Carrier. The Air Carrier will remit the amount
shown on the Remittance Form.

3.21.1The obligation to collect and remit an AIF will not apply to:

a) (i) those passengers continuing a journey less than four
hours after arrival at the Airport for domestic Canada and
transborder itineraries; and (ii) those passengers
continuing a journey less than 24 hours after arrival at the
Airport for international itineraries. A passenger will be
considered to be continuing a journey even though
multiple air carriers may participate in the itinerary on
one or more air carrier ticket(s);

b) airline employees travelling on business, including duty
travel of crews of one air carrier on another air carrier;
c) infants under two years of age for whom no ticket was

purchased, even though a no cost ticket may have been
issued in the name of the infant;

d) those passengers travelling on passes or other travel
documents with discount codes ID/IN. However,
passengers travelling on frequent flier mileage redemption
programs or promotional tickets (such as two for one
tickets) do not qualify as ID passengers within the meaning
of this clause 3.21.1 d).

3.21.2 Regardless of which air carrier sells a ticket to a DEPAX passenger
or whose designator code is on the passenger’s ticket, the air
carrier on whom the DEPAX passenger actually travels shall be the
party responsible for the collection and remittance of the AIF for
that DEPAX passenger.

177



3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

Page 8

The Air Carrier shall, without limiting the liability of the Air Carrier
under this Agreement or otherwise, pay to the City all costs of the City
in using its employees, agents, equipment, and materials, plus a
reasonable administrative charge for damage to or destruction of the
property of the City caused by the Air Carrier, its employees or agents,
including but not limited to fuel, oil and other spills.

The Air Carrier shall pay all other fees or charges to the City arising out
of the Air Carrier's operation or activities at the Airport, including any
sums for employee parking, identification badges, keys and the like.

The Air Carrier shall pay interest on late payments for amounts owing by
the Air Carrier to the City pursuant to this Agreement at the rate of 1.5
percent per month (equivalent to 18.00 percent per annum) or such
other rate which the City shall determine from time to time in its
absolute discretion to reflect prevailing interest rates until the amount
of the default and all interest thereon have been paid. All interest shall
be calculated daily and compounded monthly and shall apply
retroactively from the due date for payment.

In the event that a party shall prevail in any action for the enforcement
of any of its rights hereunder, the other party shall pay such party such
reasonable legal costs, in addition to any other debt or damages
recoverable in such action.

Before commencing operations, the Air Carrier shall provide the Airport
Director with a Security Deposit calculated to be the sum of three (3)
months Landing Fees plus General Terminal Fees based upon the
proposed schedule(s) submitted to the Airport Director plus all other
related fees and charges.

a) The Security Deposit shall be in the form of cash, bank draft,
certified cheque, or irrevocable letter of credit in a form
acceptable to the City. Interest will not be paid when the
Security Deposit is remitted in the form of an irrevocable letter of
credit. Where payable, interest will be calculated at a rate
determined by the City. In the case of a letter of credit, if the
Air Carrier fails to provide the Airport Director with a renewal or
replacement letter of credit at least sixty (60) days prior to the
date on which such previous letter of credit expires, then the City
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement by written notice
to the Air Carrier.

b) The Security Deposit plus interest retained by the City shall upon
termination of this Agreement be returned to the Air Carrier or be

178




d)

Page 9

credited to its account. However, if the Air Carrier fails to pay all
sums herein described and/or impairs or damages the Airport or
any part thereof during the term of this Agreement, the City may
apply the Security Deposit and accrued interest, if any, or any
part thereof to the arrears of sums and/or damages and injuries.
If the Security Deposit is so applied by the City, then within
fifteen (15) days of having received written notification, the Air
Carrier shall restore the Security Deposit to the amount as
provided herein. The application of the Security Deposit and
interest by the City in accordance with the above shall not
constitute a waiver nor in any way defeat or affect the rights and
remedies which the City has in law.

The Air Carrier asserts that monies deposited herein as Security
Deposit are not subject to any existing encumbrance, charge, or
security agreement.

The Air Carrier covenants and agrees that it will not assign or
encumber nor attempt to assign or encumber the monies
deposited herein as Security Deposit and that the City shall not be
bound by any such assignment, encumbrance, attempted
assignment or attempted encumbrance.

The City shall have the right on at least thirty (30) days prior
written notice to the Air Carrier to increase or decrease the
amount of the Security Deposit that the Air Carrier is required to
maintain hereunder so that such amount continues to represent
the amount determined in accordance with Section 3.26. If the
Air Carrier does not, within thirty (30) days of receipt of the
above-mentioned written notice, provide the City with the full
amount of any such increase in the Security Deposit, then the City
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement by written notice
to the Air Carrier.

3.27 The Air Carrier shall at all times maintain the airside surfaces free of all
foreign objects and litter, and shall whenever directed to do so by the

3.28

Airport Director, remove immediately from the airside surfaces or a

portion thereof all of its equipment and anything related to its
operations.

The Air Carrier shall require its personnel and employees to maintain

and keep the areas of the Airport used by it in the loading and unloading
of its passengers or cargo in a neat, clean and orderly condition, free
from litter, debris, refuse, petroleum products or grease that may
accumulate thereon as a result of the use of the said areas by its

179



3.29

3.30

3.31

3.32

3.33

3.34

Page 10

passengers, or its employees, contractors, or others servicing and
operating its aircraft.

The Air Carrier shall immediately remove any aircraft owned or operated
by the Air Carrier that, through accident or for any other reason,
becomes disabled or be abandoned in any area which could interfere
with the continuous normal operations of any of the Airport landing and
field facilities to such location as shall be designated by the Airport
Director unless such aircraft is required to remain in place pending
investigation by the appropriate regulatory agencies of the federal
government.

Should the Air Carrier fail to immediately remove such disabled aircraft
as herein provided, or should aircraft owned or operated by the Air
Carrier be allowed to remain on the Airport beyond the needs of normal
operation, the City shall have the right to remove such aircraft by any
means the City deems necessary under the circumstances, and the Air
Carrier shall indemnify and save harmless the City, its officers, officials,
employees and agents from any and all costs, liability, damage or
expense, including all reasonable legal costs and storage costs incurred
by the City or claimed by anyone by reason of removal of such aircraft.

The Air Carrier shall comply with the Airport's noise management and
abatement program and with any procedures or directions of the Airport
Director with respect to noise management and abatement at the
Airport.

The Air Carrier shall comply with the City of Kelowna Local Airport
Traffic Directives for the operation of vehicles on airport movement
areas, as published by the Airport Director, or any revision or
amendment as made from time to time.

The Air Carrier shall provide resources and services for disabled persons.

Where required by the Airport Director, the Air Carrier shall ensure that
all signs are provided in both English and French, with equal prominence
given to the two languages.

The Air Carrier shall obtain the written approval of the Airport Director
for all signs and advertising materials including lettering and other
advertising media erected, installed or placed in the Airport and the Air
Carrier shall conform to the aesthetic standards of the Airport and any
direction the Airport Director may make from time to time with respect
to displays and advertising signs and the Air Carrier shall pay the costs of
installing, maintaining, changing and removing all such signs or displays.

180



Page 11

3.35 The Air Carrier shall not cause or allow air freight and cargo items,
excluding passenger luggage and related articles, to be handled through
the Air Terminal Building unless approved in writing by the Airport
Director.

Article 4.00 - Default

It shall constitute default of the terms of this Agreement and justification for
immediate termination by the City upon the occurrence of the following:

4.1 The Air Carrier fails to observe or perform any of its covenants and
obligations under this Agreement and the Air Carrier has not within
fifteen (15) days (or sooner in the case of emergency or necessity as
determined in the reasonable discretion of the Airport Director) after
receipt by the Air Carrier of written notice from the City specifying the
default, (i) cured the default, or (ii) if the cure of default reasonably
requires a longer period than fifteen (15) days, the Air Carrier has not
provided written notice to the City signed by the Airport Director setting
out the particulars of such failure to observe or perform its covenants
and obligations under this Agreement; or

4,2 The Air Carrier becomes bankrupt or insolvent or takes the benefit of
any legislation in force for bankrupt or insolvent debtors; or

4.3 The making or entering into by the Air Carrier of any assignment for the
benefit of creditors; or

4.4  Proceedings are instituted for the winding-up or termination of the
corporate existence of the Air Carrier provided that such winding-up or
termination of the corporate existence of the Air Carrier was outside of
a planned corporate restructuring of the Air Carrier and/or its Affiliates;
or

4.5 The levy of any attachment, execution, appointment of a receiver or
other process of court by which the operating rights herein granted may
be claimed or attempted to be held and used by any person by reason
thereof, whether such person is an officer or appointee of court or
otherwise, or any attempted assignment of this Agreement by operation
of law; or

4.6  Any violation or disregard of the provisions of this Agreement which
materially endangers safety, security, life or property on the Airport.

181



5.1

5.2

Page 12

Article 5.00 - Assignment

The Air Carrier may not assign this Agreement or the benefit of this
Agreement without the City’s prior consent in writing. The City may
withhold such consent at its sole discretion and without reason. The Air
Carrier shall be responsible for all costs associated with any assighment
of the Agreement, including the City’s associated legal and
administrative costs. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Air Carrier may
assign this Agreement to any of its Affiliates or to any third party which
amalgamates or merges with the Air Carrier or which acquires all or
substantially all of the assets of the Air Carrier, conditional upon the
successor party covenanting and agreeing to be bound to the City by the
provisions of this Agreement.

The acceptance of any monies from or the performance of any obligation
hereunder by a person other than the Air Carrier shall not be construed
as an admission by the City to any right or interest of such person as an
assignee, transferee or otherwise in the place of the Air Carrier.

Article 6.00 - Waiver or Non-Action

The acceptance of the City of a part payment of any sums required to be paid
hereunder shall not constitute waiver or release of the right of the City to
payment in full of such sums or a waiver of any other right of the City of
obligation of the Air Carrier. Failure by the City to take action in respect of
any breach of any Air Carrier obligation under this Agreement by the Air Carrier
shall not be considered to be a waiver of such obligation.

Article 7.00 - Hold Harmless/Indemnification/Claims

The Air Carrier:

7.1

7.2

Shall be liable for all loss, costs, damages, and expenses whatsoever
incurred or suffered by the City, its elected officials, officers,
employees and agents (the Indemnitees) including but not limited to
damage to or loss of property and loss of use thereof, and injury to or
death of a person or persons resulting from or in connection with the
performance, purported performance, or non-performance of this
Agreement by the Air Carrier, excepting only where such loss, costs,
damages and expenses are as a result of the negligence or wilful
misconduct of the Indemnitees.

Shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnitees from and
against all claims, demands, actions, proceedings, and liabilities
whatsoever and all costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith

182



10.

1.

Page 13

and resulting from the performance, purported performance, or non-
performance of this Agreement by the Air Carrier, excepting only where
such claim, demand, action, proceeding or liability is based on the
negligence or wilful misconduct of the Indemnitees.

7.3  Expressly waive any and all claims for compensation for any and all loss
or damage sustained by reason of any defect, deficiency or impairment
or any of the services to or in any space at the Airport, including but not
limited to, power, gas, telephone, steam, heating, air conditioning,
water supply system, drainage or sewerage systems, or dome wires
leading to or inside of any space used, or by reason of any loss resulting
from the failure of any such system or facilities which may occur from
time to time from any cause, and the Air Carrier hereby expressly
releases and discharges the Indemnitees from any and all demands,
claims, actions and causes of action arising from any of the causes
aforesaid excepting only where such demand, claim, action, cause of
action, proceeding, loss, damage or liability is based on the negligence
or wilful misconduct of the Indemnitees.

Article 8.00 - Members of the House of Commons

No member of the House of Commons of Canada shall be admitted to any share
or part of this Agreement, or to any benefit to arise therefrom.

Article 9.00 - Choice of Law and Jurisdiction

This Agreement shall be construed according to the laws of the Province of
British Columbia.
Article 10.00 - Entire Agreement

The provisions in this Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the
parties and supersede all previous communications, representations,
warranties, covenants or agreements, whether verbal or written, between the
parties with respect to the subject matter of the Agreement. This Agreement
may be altered or amended only by written instrument executed by both
parties hereto.

Article 11.00 - Bribes

The Air Carrier hereby confirms that it has not, nor has any person on its
behalf, given, promised or offered to any official or employee of the City for,
or with a view to, obtaining the rights granted herein any bribe, gift or other
inducement and that it has not, nor has any person on its behalf, employed any
person to solicit or secure the rights granted herein upon any agreement for a
commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee.

183



12.

13.

14.

Page 14

Article 12.00 - Interpretation

In this Agreement:

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

reference to the singular includes a reference to the plural and vice
versa, unless the context requires otherwise;

a particular numbered section or lettered Schedule is a reference to the
correspondingly numbered section or lettered Schedule of this
Agreement;

an "enactment” is a reference to an enactment as that term is defined in
the Interpretation Act (British Columbia) on the day this Agreement is
made;

any enactment is a reference to that enactment as amended, revised,
consolidated or replaced;

section headings are inserted for ease of reference and are not to be
used in interpreting this Agreement;

The following is a schedule to this Agreement and forms an integral part
of this Agreement:

Schedule “A” - AIF Monthly Remittance Form
a “party” is a reference to a party to this Agreement;
time is of the essence; and
where the word “including” is followed by a list, the contents of the list
shall not circumscribe the generality of the expression immediately

preceding the word “including”.

Article 13.00 - Differences

All matters of difference arising between the City and the Air Carrier in any
matter connected with or arising out of this Agreement whether as to
interpretation or otherwise, shall be determined by the Agreement but without
prejudice to any recourse available under law.

Article 14.00 - Effect of Agreement

This Agreement and everything herein contained shall enure to the benefit of
and be binding upon the successors of each of the parties hereto, and where
there is a male, female or corporate party, the provisions hereof shall be read

184



15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 15

with all grammatical changes to gender and number required by the context,
and all covenants and obligations shall not be deemed joint and several.

Article 15.00 - Severance

If any portion of this Agreement is held invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the invalid portion shall be severed and the decision that it is
invalid shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the Agreement.

Article 16.00 - No Implied Obligations

No implied terms or obligations of any kind by or on behalf of the City shall
arise from anything in this Agreement and the express covenants and
agreements herein contained and made by the City are the only covenants and
agreements upon which any rights against the City may be founded.

Article 17.00 - Notices

Where any notice, request, direction or other communication (any of which is a
“Notice”) is to be given or made by a party under the Agreement, it shall be in
writing and is effective if delivered in person or sent by mail to the address
above. A Notice is deemed given if delivered in person, when delivered or if by
mail, 5 days following deposit with Canada Post. A party may change its
address or fax number by giving notice to the other party under this section.

Article 18.00 - Definition

In the Agreement "Airport Director” shall mean the Airport Director or the
person acting on his or her behalf at the Airport.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed these Presents the day and
year first above written.

CITY OF KELOWNA
By its authorized signatory(ies)

185




Page 16

SUNCOR ENERGY SERVICES INC.
/,By‘"it’s" Authorized signatory(ies)

P ‘/,} 1 /4[ N
/ f £ ”’% ( s

.

o A Vo )
7

[ Vo \V
i ’*«’\Lg Py - ,)iﬁi&fi? g

7

186



SCHEDULE “A”

File: 1640-01

CITY OF KELOWNA
KELOWNA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT FEE

MONTHLY REMITTANCE FORM

Air Carrier: SUNCOR ENERGY SERVICES INC. Month/Year:
Current Month DEPAX: X $15.00 X§$
(AIF Rate) (Gross Remittance)
Gross AlF
Remittance
(Per Above)
Before Tax S
5% GST S
Total S

Authorized Air Carrier Representative

1. DEPAX who purchased ticket
In North America

Signature
2. DEPAX who purchased ticket
Outside North America
Title
3. Total DEPAX reported this
Month (1 + 2 = 3)
Date

2013-12-06 187

(ADM-03a)



Willis

Telephone: (604) 688-5580
Fax: (604) 683 5746
Website: www.willis.com

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE
Reference no. SE/2013/GEN/08

To: The City of Kelowna
1435 Water Street
Kelowna, B.C. V1Y 1J4

Attn:  Airport Director

November 12, 2013

This is to certify that Insurance, as described hereunder, has been arranged on behalf of the Insured named herein and
that such insurance, at the date hereof is in full force and effect.

Insured Suncor Energy Inc. Term From 1% June 2013
P.0. Box 2844 To 1% June 2014
150 — 6™ Avenue S.W. both days at 12.01am Standard Time
Calgary, Alberta T2P 3E3 at the address of the Insured
Insurers Canadian Aviation Insurance Managers, Ltd. and
Global Aerospace Underwriting Managers (Canada) Limited
Policy No. 20003895-AB-13

Aircraft Insured

Coverage

Sum Insured/Limits of
Liability

Territorial Limits

Special Provisions

All aircraft owned and/or operated by the Named insured

Section | Aircraft Third Party Legal Liability for Bodily Injury (Including Passengers) and
Property Damage, Personal Injury, Baggage and Cargo Liability

Section Il Aviation General Liabifity including fiability arising out of airport premises.

Section!  Combined Single Limit not less than CAD 25,000,000 each occurrence, each
aircraft.

Section Il Combined Single Limit not less than CAD 25,000,000 each occurrence and in
the aggregate with respect to Products.

Worldwide

Pursuant to the Kelowna International Airport Air Carrier Airport Use Agreement between
The City of Kelowna ("City") and the Named Insured, Insurers agree that the following
special conditions apply:

1. Gity is added as an Additional Insured but soley with respect to the Named
insured's operations

2." ltis agreed that written notice of cancellation or material change in the insurance
evidenced by the Certificate, will be given to the City, by Insurers at least thirty
(30) days prior to any such change or cancellation becoming effective excepting,
however, only ten (10) days notice will be given in the event of non-payment of
premium, and as regards coverage in respect of War and Allied Perils Coverage
(where applicable), which are subject to automatic and/or seven (7) days notice
of cancellation provisions. Such notice will NOT, however be given at normal

Willis Corroon Aerospace of Canada Ltd.
1600 — 1098 West Pender Street
Vancouver, BC V8E 2M6

¥s

5,

e g S e

i b i et o




Willis

Telephone: (604) 688-5580
Fax: (604) 683 5746
Website: www.willis.com

expiry of insurances or any endorsement.
3. The Policy contains a Cross Liability clause.

4. The Policy provides coverage for the operation of licensed and unlicensed vehicles
while operated airside.

5. The Insurance outlined above shall be primary without right of contribution from
any insurance otherwise maintained by the City.

Subject always to the scope of the policies noted above and the policies’ declarations, insuring agreements, definitions,
terms, conditions, limitations, exclusions, deductibles, warranties and endorsements remaining paramount.

This Certificate of Insurance is issued as a summary of the insurances under the policies noted above and
confers no rights upon the Certificate Holder(s) as regards those insurances other than those provided by
the policies.

As respects each Certificate Holder(s) respective interests, this Certificate of Insurance shall automatically
terminate upon the earlier of: (i) Policy expiration; (i) Cancellation of the policies prior to policy expiration,
as notified to the Certificate Holder(s) as required herein; (iif) agreed termination of the Contract(s); and/or in
the case of physical damage insurance relating to those Certificate Holder(s) who have an insurable interest
in the Equipment as of the date of issuance of this Certificate of Insurance: agreed termination of the Named
Insured’s and/or the Certificate Holder(s) insurable interest in the Equipment.

The undersigned is not an Insurer and has no liability as an Insurer as a result of issuing this Certificate or
under the above policies.

If Certificates have been issued prior to the Date of Issue of this Certificate, this Certificate cancels and
supersedes each such Certificate.

(Re)Insurers Liability Clause LMA3333 (21/06/07)

WILLIS CORROON AEROSPACE OF CANADA LTD.

K S

Authorized Signatory

Willis Corroon Aerospace of Ganada Ltd.
1500 — 1095 West Pender Street
Vancouver, BC VBE 2Ms

A P, T e e e 1

189




CITY OF KELOWNA
BYLAW NO. 10873

A Bylaw to Rescind Ownership Housing Agreement

Authorization Bylaw Nos. 9525, 9694, 9713, 9737, 9834,

9884,10182,10183 and 10601

The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1.

10.

THAT Housing Agreement Authorization Bylaw No. 9525 - Ziprick Place BC Ltd Inc. and
all amendments thereto, be rescinded for the land known as Lot 1, Section 22,
Township 26, ODYD, Plan KAP50112 Except Plan KAP78236 located at 135 Ziprick Road;

AND THAT Housing Agreement Authorization Bylaw No. 9694 - Invue Developments
Corporation and all amendments thereto, be rescinded for the land known as Lot A,
District Lot 129, Plan 30261 located at 2040 Springfield Road;

AND THAT Housing Agreement Authorization Bylaw No. 9713 - 0701849 BC Ltd and all
amendments thereto, be rescinded for the land known as Lot 2, District Lot 138,
ODYD, Plan 3809 located at 1094 Lawson Road;

AND THAT Housing Agreement Authorization Bylaw No. 9737 - Rancar Services Ltd and
all amendments thereto, be rescinded for the land known as Lot A, Section 6,
Township 26, ODYD, Plan24498 located at 644 Lequime Road;

AND THAT Housing Agreement Authorization Bylaw No. 9834 - Adla Ventures Ltd and
all amendments thereto, be rescinded for the land known as Lot 6, Section 22,
Township 26, ODYD, Plan 3576 located at 515 Gerstmar Road;

AND THAT Housing Agreement Authorization Bylaw No. 9884 - 1314694 Alberta Ltd and
all amendments thereto, be rescinded for the lands known as Lots 6, 7 and 8, District
Lot 129, ODYD, Plan 14187 located at 1923, 1937 and 1979 Ambrosi Road and Lot A,
District Lot 129, ODYD, Plan 34047 located at 1926 Barlee Road;

AND THAT Housing Agreement Authorization Bylaw No. 10182 - Rohit Communities
Kelowna Ltd., Inc. No. BC0763831 and all amendments thereto, be rescinded for the
lands known as Strata Lots 12, 13, 30, 31, 48 and 49, Section 22, Township 26, ODYD,
Strata Plan KAS3631 located at 151 Taylor Road;

AND THAT Housing Agreement Authorization Bylaw No. 10183 - Mode Properties Ltd.,
Inc. No. BC0788187 and all amendments thereto, be rescinded for the lands known as
Strata Lots 38, 39, 40, 41 and 62, District Lot 141, ODYD, Plan KAS3658 located at 1550
Dickson Avenue;

AND THAT Housing Agreement Authorization Bylaw No. 10601 - 0911176 BC Ltd and all
amendments thereto, be rescinded for the land known as Lot 3, Section 30, Township
24, ODYD, Plan 10537 located at 1170 Brant Avenue;

This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Bylaw No. 10873 being A Bylaw to Rescind
Ownership Housing Agreement Authorization Bylaw Nos. 9525, 9694, 9713, 9737, 9834,
9884, 10182, 10183 and 10601.”

190




11. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.

Read a first, second and third time by the Municipal Council this 28" day of July, 2014.
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

191




	Agenda
	2. Minutes - July 28, 2014 PM Regular Meeting.pdf
	3.1 KMS pres 2014.pdf
	4.1 Report OCP14-0010 Z14-0020 1225 Lund Road.docx
	4.1 2014 08 11 Attachments  OCP14-0010 Z14-0020.pdf
	4.1.1 Bylaw No. 10992 (OCP14-0010).pdf
	4.1.2 Bylaw No. 10993 (Z14-0020).pdf
	4.2 2014 08 11 Report Z14-0026 1280 Glenmore Dr .docx
	4.2 2014 08 11 Attachments Z14-0026 1280 Glenmore Dr.pdf
	4.2.1 Bylaw No. 10994 (Z14-0026).pdf
	4.3 2014-08-11 Report - TA14-0009 - Boat Storage Definition.docx
	4.3 2014-08-11 Attachment Schedule A - Boat Storage Definition.docx
	4.3.1 Bylaw No. 10995 (TA14-0009).pdf
	4.4 Bylaw No. 10947 (OCP14-0004).pdf
	4.4.1 Bylaw No. 10955 (Z13-0041).pdf
	4.4.2 2014 08 11 Report DP13-0182 Laurier Ave.docx
	4.4.2 2014 08 11 Attachments DP13-0182 Laurier Ave.pdf
	4.5 Bylaw No. 10976 (OCP13-0017).pdf
	4.5.1 Bylaw No. 10977 (Z13-0040).pdf
	4.5.2 2014 08 11 Report DP13-0181 911 Stremel.docx
	4.5.2 Email from BMID.pdf
	4.5.2 2014 08 11 Attachments DP13-0181 911 Stremel Rd.pdf
	4.6 OCP13-0019_supplementary.docx
	5.1 2014-08-11 Report Suncor Energy Services.docx
	5.1 2014-08-11 Schedule A Suncor Energy Services Air Carrier Airport Use Agreement.pdf
	6.1 Bylaw No. 10873.pdf

